SI wwwi.slough.gov.uk I

Borough Counql Taking pride in our communities and town

Date of issue: 14" January 2011

MEETING CABINET
Councillor Anderson Leader of the Council -
Finance & Strategy
Councillor S Chaudhry Community & Leisure
Councillor A S Dhaliwal Performance & Accountability

Councillor Matloob Opportunity & Skills
Councillor Pantelic Education and Children
Councillor Parmar Environment & Open Spaces
Councillor Small Health & Wellbeing
Councillor Swindlehurst Neighbourhoods & Renewal

DATE AND TIME: MONDAY, 24TH JANUARY, 2011 AT 6.30 PM

VENUE: COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, BATH ROAD,
SLOUGH

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES CATHERINE MEEK

OFFICER:

(for all enquiries) 01753 875120

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal with
the business set out in the following agenda.

Q= By

RUTH BAGLEY
Chief Executive

| AGENDA |

PART I

sustainable
forest




AGENDA REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD
ITEM

Apologies for absence.
1. Declarations of Interest

(Members are reminded of their duty to declare
personal and personal prejudicial interests in matters
coming before this meeting as set out in the Local
Code of Conduct).

2. Minutes of the Meeting held on 13th December 2010 1-6

3. Annual Audit Letter 2009/10 7-28 All
4. Performance and Financial Reporting for 2010/11 29-70 All
5. Medium Term Financial Plan 2011/12 to 2014/15 71 -80 All
6. Housing Capital Programme - Future Strategy and 81 - 92 All

Direction
7. Accommodation Strategy Update To All
Follow
8. Heart of Slough - Compulsory Purchase of Land 93 -132 Central

and Interests in Land - Proposed New Learning
and Cultural Centre at Day Centre and Prudential
Yard, William Street, Slough

9. Longcroft, 305 Langley Road, Langley (Former To All;
Elderly Persons Home) Follow Kedermister

10. Proposed Appropriation of Land at Moray Drive, 133-140 Wexham
Slough, Berkshire Lea

11. Play Area Development 141 - 150 All

12. Air Quality Update 151 - 156 All

13. Primary Authority Business Support Scheme 157 - 160 All

14. References from Overview and Scrutiny To All

Follow
15. Executive Forward Plan 161 - 168 All
16. Members' Attendance 169 - 170
17. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

It is recommended that the Press and Public be
excluded from the meeting during consideration of the
item in Part 2 of the Agenda, as it involves the likely

sustainable
forest



AGENDA REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD
ITEM

disclosure of exempt information relating to the
financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information) as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972 (amended).

PART I
18. Longcroft, 305 Langley Road, Langley (Former To All;
Elderly Persons Home) - Part Il report Follow Kedermister

\ Press and Public \

You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an
observer. You will however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in
the Part Il agenda. Special facilities may be made available for disabled or non-English
speaking persons. Please contact the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further
details.

Note:-
Bold = Key decision
Non-Bold = Non-key decision

sustainable
forest



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 2

Cabinet — Meeting held on Monday, 13th December, 2010.

Present:- Councillors Anderson (Chair), S Chaudhry, A S Dhaliwal, Matloob,

Pantelic, Parmar, Small and Swindlehurst

Also present under Rule 30:- Councillors Plimmer and Maclsaac

68.

69.

70.

PART |
Declarations of Interest
None.
Minutes of the Meetings held on 9th and 22nd November 2010

The Minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 9" and 22" November,
2010 were taken as read and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

Performance and Financial Reporting 2010/11

The Cabinet received a report detailing the Council’s overall performance
from delivery of service to financial management covering the period up to
and including October 2010 against the following key areas:-

« Performance monitoring against the Corporate Balanced Score Card
and the LAA Balanced Score Card
« Revenue and Capital Monitoring position.

The report also highlighted the outcome of the Annual Performance
Assessment for Adult Social Care 2009/10.

In addition to the main agenda a Supplementary Paper had been circulated
detailing the findings of the Ofsted inspection of Adult Learning Services
provided by the Council and the Annual Children’s Services Assessment for
2010.

Members noted that for the Annual Performance Assessment Adult Social
Care 2009/10 for the second year running Slough had achieved an overall
rating Grade 3 — performing well (people who use services find that services
consistently deliver above minimum requirements).

With regard to the Ofsted inspection Assessment of Adult Learning the
Council had been assessed as achieving an overall effectiveness of service of
“good” and with regard to the Children’s services assessment the Council ‘s
assessment for 2010 was that Children’s Services in Slough perform well.

The Commissioners welcomed the inspection outcomes and stated that they
were a credit to Slough in the current environment of increasing demand and
falling budgets.

Page 1



Cabinet - 13.12.10

71.

The Leader confirmed that the financial settlement had been received by the
Council that day, the outcome needed to be considered in detail and it was
notably different to the settlement of other authorities in the Region. However
the settlement appeared to be in line with what the Council had feared and
what the Council had planned for. A full report on the details of settlement
would be submitted to the next meeting of the Cabinet.

Resolved — That the following aspects of the report be noted:

i. Performance and Project management
ii.  Financial performance — revenue and capital
iii.  Annual Performance Assessment for Adult Social Care
2009/10 and Adult Learning
iv.  Annual Performance Assessment for Children’s Services.

Medium Term Financial Plan 2011/12 to 2014/15

The Cabinet considered a report setting out the latest projection of the
Council’s revenue budget for the period 2011/12 to 2014/15 following the
previous Cabinet report on the 9" November 2010 and the Policy
Performance and Review Group on 23™ November 2010.

The Chief Executive reported that a significant amount of the identified £6.9m
savings target had been achieved and the Council was on target for achieving
the remainder of the savings required by 1% April 2011. Commissioners
asked for confirmation that employees’ whose post might be at risk were
aware of this. The Chief Executive advised that no formal consultation had
been carried out at this stage pending a decision by the Cabinet. All teams
affected had had a general briefing on the way forward and the Council was
committed to redeploying people wherever possible.

In answer to a question the Chief Executive outlined two options with regard
to the Print Service and indicated that both options would be part of the
consultation that was undertaken with staff which would also invite any further
suggestions.

In addition to the update on the support service savings Members were also
provided with proposed areas for identifying the allocated savings from GBE
and this was set out in full in Appendix B to the report.

Resolved -
(a) That the current council projected revenue budget for 2011/12 to

2014/15 be noted.

(b) That the savings plan for 2011/2012 as set out in Appendix A be
confirmed and progress to date be noted.

(c) That the areas of savings allocation for elements of support
services as summarised in para 5.7, be considered and approved

Page 2



Cabinet - 13.12.10

72,

73.

and that officers be requested to implement them with immediate
effect where possible.

(d) That the proposed areas for allocated savings from GBE as set out
in Appendix B approved.

Council Taxbases for 2011/12

The Cabinet considered a report presenting information on the properties in
Slough and their categories of occupation for the purposes determining the
Council Tax Base for the Borough for 2011/12 financial year.

The Council was required by law to set the Council Tax Base by 31% January
prior to start of the financial year. The level of Council Tax Base would be
used in the calculation of Slough Borough Council’s council tax for 2011/12.

Resolved -

(@) That the level of council tax discount in respect of second homes
remains at 10%.

(b) That the level of discount in respect of long-term empty properties
remains at 0%.

(c) That the collection rate for the council tax for 2011/12 be set at 98%
which is at the same rate as the current year 2010-11.

(d) That in accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and
the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations
1992 the amount calculated by Slough Borough Council as its council
taxbase for 2011/12 shall be:

(i) Parish of Britwell 1,805.6
(i) Parish of Colnbrook with Poyle 1,947.5
(i) Parish of Wexham 1,499.5
(iii) Slough Town 36,314.6
All areas 41,567.2

Voluntary and Community Sector Funding Policy

The Cabinet considered a report seeking approval for a new Voluntary and
Community Sector Funding Policy which set out principles for all future
commissioning and grant funding support. Implementation of the Policy would
ensure best use was made of limited resources to deliver agreed priorities
and improve the outcomes by the local Voluntary and Community Sector
(VCS) for Slough residents. Members were asked to approve the
commissioning and/or grant funding of identified Voluntary and Community
Sector related activities in line with procurement requirements and guidelines.

Page 3



Cabinet - 13.12.10

74.

Members were also asked to approve the extension of existing funding
arrangements to ensure continuity of service during the transition period. It
was proposed that these funding arrangements would be terminated at the
earliest possible date following implementation of the new funding policy.

Commissioners asked for clarification on the extension of the existing funding
arrangements. Members were advised that it was anticipated that the
commissioning work would be concluded within a four month period and the
existing funding arrangements would be terminated as early as practically
possible. Members were concerned at leaving the termination of the existing
funding arrangements without a time limit. The report set out the two possible
procurement routes that could be followed and the latest end date was the
29" June 2011. Members endorsed this as the end date for the latest
possible termination of the existing funding arrangements.

Members acknowledged the significant amount of work that had gone into
developing the Voluntary and Community Sector policy and welcomed it as a
strategic approach to the Council’s funding arrangements and relationship
with the Voluntary and Community Sector.

Resolved -

(a) That the draft Voluntary and Community Sector Funding Policy be
approved.

(b) That identified voluntary and community sector activities be
commissioned/grant funded in line with procurement requirements
and guidelines.

(c) That existing funding arrangements be extended as required and
terminated at the earliest possible date following implementation of
the new funding policy (and by the 29" June 2011 latest). No new
arrangements are to be entered into during the extension period.

New Fairer Contributions Policy

The Cabinet considered a report seeking approval in principle for a new Fairer
Contributions Policy for Adult Social Care services in accordance with the
Department of Health’s Fairer Contributions guidance. The new policy did not
propose any changes in the way the Council undertook financial assessments
or how income or savings were treated. The driver for the policy was equity
rather than income generation. The new policy would support the delivery of
the “Putting Me First” programme and reflected the changing way in which
social care support would be provided in the future.

Resolved -

(@) That the draft fairer contributions policy be approved in principle
subject to consultation.

Page 4



Cabinet - 13.12.10

75.

(b) That Officers be authorised to implement the statutory consultation
process on the new policy with users of existing services and
stakeholder groups and prepare for implementation.

(c) That the Health Scrutiny Panel be requested to review the outcome
of the consultation and endorse the new policy at the meeting on 21
March 2011.

(d) That the Strategic Director of Community and Wellbeing in
consultation with the lead Commissioner be delegated to agree the
most appropriate date for implementing the new policy following
review of the outcome of consultation and presentation to Health
Scrutiny Panel.

Review of Adult Social Care Day Services

The Cabinet considered a report seeking approval for the recommendations
of the Day Services review carried out during 2009/2010. Members noted
that the review of Day Services had worked closely with service users, family
members, staff and other stakeholders to identify new service models to meet
the needs of adults of learning disabilities and physical disabilities. The
recommendations arising from the review delivered improved outcomes for
service users through increased use of community based facilities and also
made best use of the resources and assets available to the Council. The
consultation feedback had showed a general support for the
recommendations.

Commissioners welcomed the outcome of the review. It had been appropriate
to consolidate a high quality services acknowledging that buildings could not
run under capacity. In answer to a question the Director of Community and
Wellbeing advised that Mencap was currently looking at options for the future
and the Council would be encouraging co-use of council buildings. Mencap
would be housed in the West Wing until a longer term solution was identified.

Resolved -

(@) That the implementation of a hub and opportunities service model
for day opportunities services for adults with physical disabilities
and learning disabilities be approved.

(b) That the integration of the Elliman and Langley Services for people
with Learning Disabilities at the Elliman Resource Centre, to
provide a service hub be approved.

(c) That the re-location of the Phoenix Service for adults with physical
disabilities to the current Learning Disability Langley Resource
Centre at Spitfire Close, to provide a service hub be approved.

(d) That the future options for the location of Slough Mencap be
agreed.

(e) That the staff and financial implications of the proposals and the full
implementation date of January 2011 be approved.

Page 5



Cabinet - 13.12.10

76.

77.

78.

References from Overview and Scrutiny

The Cabinet considered a reference from the Neighbourhoods and Renewal
Scrutiny Panel on the Council’s strategy for improving the thermal efficiency of
its housing stock.

The recommendation had come as a result of the Panel considering a
member call-in submitted by Councillor Plimmer with regard to the insulation
of the council’s supporting housing units and homes occupied by vulnerable
tenants. Members noted that in order to maximise the benefit of the available
grant funding the Council’s strategy for improving the thermal efficiency of its
housing stock currently focused on the needs of the property rather than the
individual occupancy. Having considered the report and the strong concerns
raised by several members the Panel had agreed that the future sequencing
of the insulation programme should reflect a broader approach encompassing
both the condition of the property and the impact of the work on the occupants
with regard to elderly and vulnerable tenants. The Cabinet endorsed the
views of the Scrutiny Committee, and

Resolved - That the Council’s strategy for improving the thermal efficiency
of its housing stock, which currently prioritised works based on
the condition of the property, be reviewed and amended to
include prioritisation for:

(@) Those homes designated for the elderly and vulnerable.

(b) Those homes that have fuel costs greater than 10% of their
disposable income.

Executive Forward Plan
Resolved - That the Executive Forward Plan be approved.
Members' Attendance Record

Noted.

Chair

(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 7.50 pm)

Page 6



AGENDA ITEM 3

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24™ January 2011
CONTACT OFFICER: Julie Evans, Strategic Director of Resources

(for all enquiries) 01753 875300

WARD(S): All

PORTFOLIO: Leader, Finance and Strategy — Councillor Anderson

Performance and Accountability — Councillor A S Dhaliwal

PART |
NON-KEY DECISION

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2009/10

1

Purpose of Report

This report submits the Audit Commission’s Annual Audit Letter 2009/10.

Recommendation(s) / Proposed Action

Cabinet is requested to recommend subject to any comments of the Audit
Committee that the report and the recommendations contained therein be accepted
and that the Council’s Corporate Plan and the appropriate service plans be
amended to address the recommendations.

Community Strategy priorities

The Annual Audit Letter is an important element of external review which
contributes to enabling the Council to achieve all the Community Strategy Periorities.

This report and the Annual Audit Letter have a direct impact on all the Council
priorities given the fact that the documentation principally reports on the Authority’s
performance and financial standing.

Other Implications

The report and the Annual Audit Letter do not have any human rights or other legal
implications. The financial and workforce implications are set out in the report and
Annual Audit Letter.

Background/Supporting Information

The Authority’s External Auditors have a duty to meet the audit objectives set by the
Audit Commission and to summarise the conclusions and significant issues arising
from their recent audit and inspection of the Council. The Appointed Auditor will be
present at the Cabinet meeting.

Page 7



Comments of Other Committees

The Audit Committee will be considering the Annual Audit Letter at its meeting on
25" January 2011.

Conclusion
The Annual Audit Letter is welcomed, particularly as it identifies key areas of

continued improvement made by the Authority and assists Members and Officers
alike in identifying other areas for development and further improvement.

Appendices
‘Appendix A’ - Annual Audit Letter 2009/10.

Page 8



Annual Audit
Letter

Slough Borough Council
Audit 2009/10

‘B gcl)'nq%ission




The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog,
driving economy, efficiency and effectiveness in local

public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone.

Our work across local government, health, housing,
community safety and fire and rescue services means
that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for
money for taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by
11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership
to assess local public services and make practical
recommendations for promoting a better quality of life

for local people.

Page 10



Contents

LGV 1 =TS T=T= T =S 2
Audit opinion and financial statements ............cccccceii i 2
Value fOr MONEY ... ..ot eeeeeeees 2
Current and future challenges ............ooiii i 2

Financial statements and annual governance statement ..............c............... 3
Overall conclusion from the audit ... 3
Matters of internal CoNtrol ........ ..o 4
The Pension Fund defiCit..........cooooiiiiii e 4
The Council's Icelandic banks investments ...........cccoooiiiiiii. 5
Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards ...........c................. )

Value fOr MONEY ... rr s s s s e s s s s e e s nnn s e s e e e nnnnsssernnn 7
2009/10 use of resources assSeSSMENTS ........ccveevveeiiiiiieeeeeiiiee e e e e e eeeees 7
VM CONCIUSION ..ot et 7
Assessment of arrangements ..........cccoooiiiii i 8
Opportunities for further improvement..............cooooiii s 9
Approach to local value for money work from 2010/11.........cooiiiiiiiiinnnnn. 10

Public rights of challenge ... 11

Current and future challenges..........ccociiiccc s 12
The Council's FINANCES ........uuiiiiieiie e 12

L0 Lo X T g Vo TN (= 4 = G 14

AppendiX 1 Audit fEES ....cuuuiiiiiiicc it 15

ApPpPendiX 2 GIOSSANY .....ccceuciiiiimrieniiiirrrrnsssss s s s rrnssssssersrnnssssssrsnnnssssssenn 16

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 11 1



Key messages

This report summarises my findings from the 2009/10

audit. My audit comprises two elements:

» the audit of your financial statements (pages 3 to 6);
and

* my assessment of your arrangements to achieve
value for money in your use of resources (pages 7
to 10).

Audit opinion and financial statements

1 |issued my audit report on the 30 September 2010. The report included
an unqualified opinion on the financial statements for the year ending

31 March 2010. The arrangements to produce your financial statements
were good and the statements contained no material errors.

Value for money

2 | also issued an unqualified value for money conclusion stating that in
all significant respects, Slough Borough Council had made proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ending 31 March 2010.

Current and future challenges

3 The economic climate and the public spending pressures are having a
significant effect on councils and the services they provide. The
Government's spending reviews will have an impact on the Council's
financial plans over the medium term.

4 It remains vital to ensure the Council is making best use of its
resources, and is working closely with its partners and with other councils to
deliver efficient and effective services for local people. The Council has
started to develop detailed plans to make more effective use of its resources
and to reduce overheads and back office costs. Under the Council's change
programme, this will involve redesigning services so that they can deliver
the required outcomes with fewer resources - both in staff numbers and
from other savings, for example reducing office space.

5 In this respect the Council is taking the necessary steps to meet the
challenges to its financial stability over the coming years and to ensure it
can continue to deliver key services for its residents. | intend to review the
Council's financial resilience within my audit of the 2010/11 accounts.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 12



Financial statements and annual governance
statement

The Council's financial statements and annual
governance statement are an important means by
which the Council accounts for its stewardship of
public funds.

| gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2009/10
financial statements on 30 September, meeting the
statutory target date.

Overall conclusion from the audit

6 The arrangements to produce your financial statements remain sound
and | did not identify any material misstatements in the Council's accounts
this year. | identified several non-material misstatements and officers
adjusted most of them in the revised financial statements.

7  Officers decided not to adjust one item, and the Council agreed that
officers should account for this issue in 2010/11.

8 During my audit planning process | raised a number of risks that | would

need to review during my audit, including:

m  whether there was sufficient capacity within the accountancy section to
manage the closedown of accounts effectively;

m  accounting for PFI assets and liabilities and changes in accounting for
business rates and council tax;

m  weaknesses in the internal control environment.

The Council has responded to these risks appropriately.

9 The finance function was strengthened during the year and structural
improvements introduced. As a consequence the Council achieved a better
closedown of year end accounts in 2009/10 and this enabled a smoother
year end audit.

10 | identified opportunities to improve accounting practice and financial
management and | am pleased to report that officers have acted on my
recommendations.

11 You re-approved your financial statements on 30 September 2010 and |
then issued my audit report containing an unqualified opinion.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 13



Matters of internal control

12 | identified some weaknesses in the design or operation of an internal
control that could result in a material error in your financial statements.
These related to your ability to be confident that; all income recorded in your
accounts is actually due to the Council; information in your general ledger is
complete on a month by month basis; and that the rents due for the year
recorded on the new rent system and associated rent arrears are correctly
stated.

13 Since my work was completed the Council has carried out a review of
its financial management arrangements and has introduced improvements
that will re-align responsibilities and increase accountability for the operation
of system controls.

14 | am assured that the newly acquired rent system is now stabilised and
that reconciliations have addressed, and rectified, all inaccuracies in the
rent information transferred from the previous rent system.

15 The Council needs to be satisfied that future significant system transfers
and upgrades are planned and managed to secure internal control through
the implementation lifecycle.

Recommendation

R1 The Council should ensure action is taken in response to the
recommendations made in my Annual Governance Report.

The Pension Fund deficit

16 The Statement of Accounts, prepared in accordance with FRS 17 —
Retirement Benefits, show a net pension liability of £165 million. This has
significantly increased from the 2008/09 liability of £84 million due to the
significant reductions in bond yields which have increased the liabilities of
the fund, offset by smaller increases in market values of assets.

17 The 2010 triennial valuation will assess the scheme liabilities and
funding position over the longer term, including the favourable impact of the
change from using the Retail Price Index to the Consumer Price Index in
calculating future pension liabilities. The actuarial review is also likely to
take account of government pension policy changes in response to the
Hutton report. Increased contributions may be required to ensure the
pension scheme maintains an appropriate long-run funding level.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 14



The Council's Icelandic banks investments

18 Early in October 2008, the Icelandic banks Landsbanki, Kaupthing and
Glitnir collapsed and the UK subsidiaries of these banks, Heritable and
Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander went into administration. The Council had
£2.5 million deposited with Heritable Bank at that point. Based on the latest
information available and, in accordance with accounting practice, the
Council considered that it was appropriate to make an impairment
adjustment for the deposits in its 2008/09 accounts.

19 The impairment was reviewed during 2009/10 and the impairment
charge reduced by £152,000 leaving an impairment provision in the
accounts totalling £404,000. Information received from the Administrators
indicates that the Council is likely to recover a total of 85 per cent by the end
of 2012/13 and during 2009/10 the Council received three dividends totalling
£902k from the Administrators representing 36% of the Council's
investments.

20 The Council has not taken advantage of government regulations which
allow the impact of the impairment charge relating to this investment to be
deferred until 2010/11. Therefore, impairment losses have already been
charged to the general fund and any impact on future years' accounts
should not be significant.

Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards

21 From 2010/11, local government bodies have to prepare their financial
statements to meet International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). This
marks a significant change in the basis of reporting the figures in the annual
accounts and the format of some of the core statements.

22 The Audit Commission has undertaken a national study on the transition
to IFRS in local government. This study aims to assess councils' progress
towards preparing IFRS-based accounts in two phases.

23 In October 2009 | completed the phase-one survey at the Council, and
assessed the Council as 'green’. | concluded that the finance team were
well aware of reporting requirements and were preparing for future
developments including readiness for the implementation of International
Financial Reporting Standards

24 In July this year | carried out the phase-two survey to assess the
Council's progress, and | decided the Council was an 'amber’ risk. This was
because, although the Council had made good progress in tackling
challenging issues, member involvement was limited and at the date of my
assessment substantial work remained to be done in relation to the
treatment of non-current assets.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 15



25 The Audit Commission briefing paper ;Progress on the transition to
IFRS; published in October 2010, which draws on the July survey shows
that more than 50 per cent of other local authorities are in a similar position
to the Council, assessed as having minor issues but being on track to
complete key steps in IFRS transition by 31 December 2010.

26 Whilst the task facing the Council remains challenging and there is
more that needs to be done, | am confident that the Council will meet its
statutory responsibilities for first time reporting under IFRS.

Recommendation

R2 Members should receive an update on progress in implementing
changes associated with first time reporting under IFRS.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 16



Value for money

| considered whether the Council is managing and
using its money, time and people to deliver value for
money.

| assessed your performance against the criteria
specified by the Audit Commission and have reported
the outcome as the value for money (VFM) conclusion.

2009/10 use of resources assessments

27 Atthe end of May 2010, the Commission wrote to all chief executives to
inform them that following the government's announcement, work on CAA
would cease with immediate effect and the Commission would no longer
issue scores for its use of resources assessments.

28 However, | am still required by the Code of Audit Practice to issue a
value for money conclusion. | have therefore used the results of the work
completed on the use of resources assessment up to the end of May to
inform my 2009/10 conclusion.

29 | report the significant findings from the work | have carried out to
support the VFM conclusion.

VFM conclusion

30 | assessed your arrangements to achieve economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in your use of money, time and people against criteria
specified by the Audit Commission. The Audit Commission specifies each
year, which Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) are the relevant criteria for the
VFM conclusion at each type of audited body.

31 Table 1 provides a summary of my findings at the Council in respect of
these specified criteria.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 17



Table 1: Assessment for VFM conclusion
The specified use of resources criteria were achieved

Criteria Adequate

arrangements?

Managing finances

Planning for financial health Yes

Understanding costs and achieving efficiencies Yes

Financial Reporting

Governing the business Yes
Commissioning and procurement Yes
Use of information Yes
Risk management and internal control Yes

Managing resources

Strategic asset management Yes

Workforce Yes

32 Based on the above, | therefore issued an unqualified conclusion stating
that the Council had adequate arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the 2009/10 year.

Assessment of arrangements

33 For the lines of enquiry that | considered, the Council delivered

achievements and improvements in the 2009/10 year in that:

m  The Council has extended its financial planning timescale to include a
three year time horizon extending to five years from 2011/12.

m  Links between financial and service planning have been strengthened
and the Council is engaging with partners to improve financial planning.

m  The use of benchmarking information has contributed to improved
outcomes in key services.

m  There has been good progress towards identifying specific efficiency
savings to be delivered in each of the next three years.

m  The Council has examined different options for securing and delivering
services and can demonstrate improvements in the way it purchases
and delivers services that have led to reduced costs and greater
efficiency.

m  There are productive working relationships between Members and
officers and these are underpinned by an officer/member code of
conduct and an updated employee code.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 18



The Council has an organisation-wide approach to managing assets as
a corporate resource and is actively using its assets to invest in its
priority area of regeneration.

The Council has implemented its Job Evaluation and Harmonisation
programme with new contracts in place for the majority of staff by

April 2010.

Senior management is supportive of organisational change and training
programmes are in place to help line managers to deal with the change
management agenda.

Opportunities for further improvement

34 | suggest the Council should focus further improvements in its
arrangements to secure value for money in the use of resources in the
following areas:

Managing finances

Develop a more systematic approach to benchmarking and the use of
unit cost information in identifying cost savings that can be applied
Council-wide.

Draw upon the lessons learned from the shared services venture which
the council withdrew from earlier this year and develop a strategic
document which informs the direction for the management and delivery
of future support service development projects as part of the Council's
change agenda.

Governance arrangements

Achieve further economies in procurement through the greater use of
procurement performance indicators to monitor progress and assess
outcomes.

Exploit opportunities to aggregate demand and reduce costs by setting
up central contracts for commonly used items are fully exploited.
Improve data quality arrangements by undertaking an assessment of
systems and processes for data and performance information provided
by external bodies to ensure compliance with the Council's standards for
data quality.

Ensure the Council's scrutiny processes operate efficiently and
effectively in contributing to internal challenge and in holding the Cabinet
to account.

Develop the role of the Audit Committee and undertake a formal
assessment of its effectiveness against the CIPFA statement on the role
of Audit Committees in Local Government.

Review existing risk management arrangements and the effectiveness
of the current corporate structure.

Address weaknesses in the Council's overall control environment
identified by the work of Internal Audit and my review of financial
systems and introduce standards of performance can be applied
consistently across all departments and can be monitored at a corporate
level.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 19



m Review the Council's severance policy and delegated arrangements to
ensure that these are clear and unambiguous and are reflective of best
practice.

Managing resources

m More effectively utilise the Council's workforce; focusing on the
development of council wide workforce plan with partners so that
resources can be optimised cross sectors and increasing the number of
appraisals taking place so that staff are clear how their roles contribute
to strategic objectives.

Recommendation

R3 The Council should consider the opportunities for improvement
identified in my use of resources review and develop plans to address
areas of corporate priority.

Approach to local value for money work from 2010/11

35 Given the scale of pressures facing public bodies in the current
economic climate, the Audit Commission has been reviewing its work
programme for 2010/11 onwards. This review has included discussions with
key stakeholders of possible options for a new approach to local value for
money (VFM) audit work. The Commission aims to introduce a new, more
targeted and better value approach to our local VFM audit work.

36 My work will be based on a reduced number reporting criteria, specified
by the Commission, concentrating on:

m  securing financial resilience; and

m  prioritising resources within tighter budgets.

37 | will determine a local programme of VFM audit work based on my
audit risk assessment, informed by these criteria and my statutory
responsibilities. | will no longer be required to provide an annual scored
judgement relating to my local VFM audit work. Instead | will report the
results of all my local VFM audit work and the key messages for the Council
in my annual report to those charged with governance and in my annual
audit letter.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 20

10



Public rights of challenge

38 During my audit | received questions and requests for audit action from
two local electors these are outlined in the following paragraphs.

39 One elector raised a query about the realisation of best value arising
from the Council's decision to disposal of land at Upton Court Park. | was
able to reassure the elector that | was satisfied from my enquiries that the
Council had acted appropriately pursuant to its duties and responsibilities in
relation to the disposal of this land.

40 Another local elector raised queries about the award of early retirement
payments to two senior Council officers. | obtained assurance that the
severance payments made to both officers reflected their statutory
entitlement under the Local Governance Pension Scheme and was a
decision properly taken by officers and in accordance with the Council’s
internal procedures. However, | was of the view that existing policies and
procedures could be improved to remove ambiguity and to clarify the
respective roles of members and officers.

41 There were no matters arising from my audit that required use of the
special reporting powers set out in the Audit Commission Act. Accordingly |
was able to certify completion of my audit on 30 September 2010.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 21

11



Current and future challenges

The Council's Finances

42 The Council faced sizeable cost pressures at the start of the 2009/10
financial year. In order to deliver a balanced budget the Council had to
identify, implement and deliver cost reduction measures and efficiencies
totalling £10.3 million.

43 As the 2009/10 year progressed the Council faced further pressure from
reductions in income as a result of the national economic climate. This was
offset by a reduction in borrowing costs so the overall impact was
minimised. Nevertheless, delivery of a balanced position still required sound
financial management and the net outcome was that the Council achieved
its efficiency targets for the year; reporting a small under-spend of £253,000
against its revised budget.

44 As at 31 March 2010, General Fund reserves stood at £5.4 million. The
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) overspent by £1.9 million against its
approved net budget, leaving balances of £9.0 million as at

31 March 2010. The balances on both funds, notwithstanding the loss on
the HRA remained at a prudent level at the year end.

45 Capital resources remained under pressure in the year due to the
reduction in capital receipts linked to the downturn in the property market
and the high level of capital investment required to improve assets. The
Council's strategy was a combination of re-profiling and reducing the size of
the capital programme during the year to reflect these downward pressures.

46 Looking ahead to 2010/11, | am assured that the Council took into
account major potential financial risks, known growth pressures and
quantified the efficiency savings required to deliver a balanced position
including plans as to how these were to be delivered, at the inception of its
original budget for the year. The Council was in a sound position at the start
of 2010/11 but the government announcement in June 2010 that substantial
grant funding reductions were to be imposed across the public sector,
signalled an immediate financial impact for the Council of £3.3 million which
meant that it had to find further savings in addition to those already built into
the original budget.

47 Since then, the Council has carried out an in depth review of the
medium and longer term implications of the grant funding reductions and
comprehensive spending review published in October 2010 and has
considered what this means for its finances over the next four financial
years; 2011/12 to 2014/15. The Council estimates that it will need to reduce
its overall costs during this period by £23.9 million. Savings of £4.4 million
have already been built into the 2011/12 budget thereby leaving the Council
with a cumulative funding gap of £19.5 million.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 22

12



48 The Council recognises that the unprecedented level of change
required to meet this scale of challenge will require significant planning and
lead in times. This has driven a front loaded savings profile, targeting back
office and corporate service areas. The Council has identified a range of
initiatives covering six key areas of activity which it anticipates will generate
£6.9 million per annum of savings opportunities by the 31 March 2011.
Parallel to this short term savings realisation programme, the service
transformation agenda in operational areas to deliver future years savings is
underway with detail yet to be determined, to close the forecast funding gap
of £12.6 million.

49 The Council has already faced some difficult choices and taken difficult
decisions in balancing the 2011/12 budget and in positioning itself for the
future. Part of the Council's efficiency agenda involves major
re-organisational reform which will see major changes in the way the
Council operates.

50 The full scale of the financial challenge facing the Council will not
become clear until after the government publishes the grant determination in
December. In this respect the Council continues to be concerned about the
proper measurement of the Borough's population for the calculation of
revenue support grant. Nevertheless it is unlikely that the announcement,
when made, will make the scale of the task facing the Council any less
demanding than the Council's current predictions.

51 My preliminary assessment indicates the Council is taking the
necessary steps to meet the challenges to its financial stability over the
coming years and to ensure it can continue to deliver key services for its
residents. | will further examine the Council's financial resilience within the
scope of my 2010/11 audit.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 23

13



Closing remarks

52 | have discussed and agreed this letter with the Chief Executive and the
Strategic Director of Resources. | will present this letter at the Cabinet
meeting on the 24 January 2011 and will provide copies to all Councillors.

53 Full detailed findings, conclusions and recommendations in the areas
covered by our audit were included in the reports | issued to the Council
during the year.

Audit Fee Letter April 2009

Audit Plan Refresh March 2010
Internal Audit Review April 2010
Pre-statement Audit Memorandum June 2010
Annual Governance Report September 2010
Summary of VFM recommendations September 2010
Shared Services Review October 2010
Annual Audit Letter November 2010

54 | can confirm the audit has been carried out in accordance with the
Audit Commission’s policies on integrity, objectivity and independence. The
fees for my audit are levied in accordance with guidance issued by the Audit
Commission. The audit fees for 2009/10 are detailed in Appendix 1.

55 The Council has taken a positive and helpful approach to my audit. |
wish to thank the Council's staff for their support and cooperation during the
audit.

Phil Sharman
District Auditor

November 2010

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 24

14



Appendix 1 Audit fees

Proposed § Variance
£
Financial statements and annual 200,800 200,800 0
governance statement
Value for money 123,300 123,300 0
Total audit fees 324,100 324,100 0
Non-audit work 0 0 0
Total 324,100 324,100 0

Audit Commission

Annual Audit LettePage 25

15



Appendix 2 Glossary

Annual governance statement

Governance is about how local government bodies ensure that they are
doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely,
inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner.

It comprises the systems and processes, cultures and values, by which local
government bodies are directed and controlled and through which they
account to, engage with and where appropriate, lead their communities.

The annual governance statement is a public report by the Council on the
extent to which it complies with its own local governance code, including
how it has monitored the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in
the year, and on any planned changes in the coming period.

Audit opinion

On completion of the audit of the accounts, auditors must give their opinion

on the financial statements, including:

m  whether they give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
audited body and its spending and income for the year in question;

m  whether they have been prepared properly, following the relevant
accounting rules; and

m for local probation boards and trusts, on the regularity of their spending
and income.

Financial statements

The annual accounts and accompanying notes.

Unqualified

The auditor does not have any reservations.

Value for money conclusion

The auditor’s conclusion on whether the audited body has put in place
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of money, people and time.

Audit Commission Annual Audit LettePage 26 16



If you require a copy of this document in an alternative
format or in a language other than English, please call:
0844 798 7070

© Audit Commission 2010.
Design and production by the Audit Commission Publishing Team.
Image copyright © Audit Commission.

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by
the Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors
and of the audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are
addressed to non-executive directors, members or officers. They are
prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors accept no
responsibility to:

m any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or

m any third party.

FM g&'r%ission

Audit Commission

1st Floor
Millbank Tower
Millbank
London

SW1P 4HQ

Telephone: 0844 798 3131
Fax: 0844 798 2945
Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 27

November 2010



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



AGENDA ITEM 4

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24th January 2011
CONTACT OFFICER: Julie Evans, Strategic Director of Resources (01753 875300)
(For all enquiries) Roger Parkin, Strategic Director of Improvement & Development
(017553 875207)
WARD(S): All
PORTFOLIO: All
PART |

NON-KEY DECISION

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR 2010/11

1. Purpose of Report

This report highlights the Council’s overall performance from delivery of service to financial
management covering the period up to and including November 2010 against the following
key areas:

Performance monitoring against the Corporate Balanced Scored Card and the LAA
Balanced Score Card to November 2010 (Appendix A)

Revenue and capital monitoring position to November 2010 (Appendices B, C, D)

Recommendation(s) / Proposed Action

The Cabinet is requested to resolve that the following aspects of the report be noted:

i. Performance and Project management
ii. Financial performance — revenue and capital

Key Priorities — Taking Pride in Slough and Making a Difference to Communities

The budget is the financial plan of the authority and as such underpins the delivery of the
Council’s key priorities through the financial year.

Budget monitoring throughout the financial year reflects on whether those priorities are
being met and, if not, the reasons why, so Members can make informed decisions to
ensure the Council remains within its available resources.

Community Strategy Priorities

This report indirectly supports the community strategy priorities. The maintenance of
excellent governance within the council to ensure it is efficient, effective and economic in
everything it does is achieved through the improvement of corporate governance and
democracy and by ensuring good people and management practices are in place.

Page 29



6.1

6.2

6.3

Other Implications

(a) Financial
These are contained within the body of the report.

(b) Risk Management

Supporting Information

Performance Monitoring Update

The attached SBC Corporate Scorecard (Appendix A) provides Members with an
update on performance during the period from 1st April to 30th November 2010, drawing
attention to:

6.1.1. Areas of exception;

6.1.2. Areas of improved performance; and

6.1.3. An assessment of where improvement actions are needed for performance to
achieve end of year targets.

The report comprises of exceptions from both:

6.2.1. The Balanced Score Card— which relates to performance indicators selected by
CMT members to determine the organisation health of the Councils, and

6.2.2. The LAA Score card - which relates to indicators in the LAA.

6.2.3. Due to reporting cycles there have not been many performance indicator updates
in November. Many of the performance indicators are scheduled to be updated at
the end of December reporting quarter 3 outturns for 2010/11. These will be
reported in future reports.

6.2.4. For a full list of indicators please visit the link mentioned below:

http:/Isbcinsite.ad.slough.qgov.uk/3709.aspx

Gold Project Update

The summary below provides Members with an update on Councils Gold Project as at
December 2010.

Monthly Period Summary
e Ten highlight reports have been received this period.

e Of these, four projects have an overall Green status, five are Amber, one is Red.

Page 30



Culture, Learning & Library Service
Transformation Programme

(including Library Services PROJECT
Transformation, Cultural Offer and MANAGER
Olympic, Sports & Leisure Offer)

Jackie Menniss,
(C&W)

ALL WARDS

Issues & OVERALL

Timeline Budget Risks STATUS Date Updated

GREEN GREEN GREEN GREEN 10/12/10
Key Points:

= Projects are delivered, on track or have been revised to more
realistic timescales and the overall status stays green.

= Roles and responsibilities have been reassigned to release
capacity within the management team to prioritise the projects.

= All budgets agreed and in place.

Q:I:It:;ﬁizl Transformation PROJECT
9 NS S Tracy Cartmell, (C&W)

ALL WARDS
Timeline Budget

Issues & OVERALL

Risks sTATUs  Date Updated

GREEN GREEN AMBER AMBER 03/12/10
Key Points:

Overall the project is moving well, however, these areas are amber:

= Mental Health pilot

= Learning Disability personal budget trial

= |AS upgrade: specification costings and timeline will be presented
to the IT project board in December.

= The Information & Advice Strategy for the interim service directory
and public information campaign: service specifications will go to
the IAG project steering group in January

= PM working with Skills for Care regarding InLaws to produce
workforce strategy which will be discussed at the next regional
InLaws meeting (January 2011)

The establishment of at least one ULO by December 2010 is now red. However,
the sign off of specification and budget will be at the Programme board in
December with tenders to go out w/c 10™ January.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

CMT agree to delegate corrective action to Project Board who are already taking
steps to mitigate amber & red issues.

Page 31



School Places in Slough PROJECT
\| el =8 Robin Crofts (ECS)
ALL WARDS

Timeline Budget

Issues & OVERALL

Risks STATUs  Date Updated

GREEN AMBER AMBER GREEN 02/12/10
Key Points:

The single revised PID is currently under review by Clair Pyper.

= The conversion of Town Hall to a school for 2012 was approved by
Cabinet on 9th Nov 2010 and a PID prepared.

= A centrally located school has agreed in principle to expanding for
2011 - LA and GB still to finalise agreement.

= Funding arrangements to be finalised.

The current identified risks are:

Funding at risk of claw back if not spent by Aug 11

Demand rises further than anticipated before Sep 11

Likely more than 3 new infant annexes required by Sep 11.

Rok insolvency — Major delay with Parlaunt Primary Capital project
(£4m project)

Neighbourhood Working

OF PARTICUALR INTEREST TO
CHALVEY, MANOR PARK AND
COLNBROOK & POYLE

Timeline Budget

PROJECT
| el S8 Keren Bailey, (GBE)

Issues & OVERALL

Risks STATUs  Date Updated

GREEN GREEN GREEN GREEN 02/12/2010
Key Points:

= Project plan for Nov — March finalised and signed off by project
board 30/11/10. Priorities include:

= Communications to broaden understanding and involvement;

= Development of opportunities for services to work with
neighbourhood boards;

= Strengthening of Virtual Area Teams;

= Review of project governance arrangements — Ramesh Kukar from
SCVS has now joined the board;

=  Work with boards to understand accountability from their
perspective;

= Actions to support and further develop existing pilots; and

= Development of a Community Engagement Strategy.

= Project has now been considered by Neighbourhood and Renewal,
Community, Leisure and Environment panels, CMT, LSP board
and the SSP PDG.

= Project board is keen to explore how the project can contribute to
the Big Society and localism in Slough and to develop the relevant
strategic links.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

CMT to consider options for Project Lead and membership of the Project Board
post April 2011

Page 32



Housing Futures (ALMO move) PROJECT
| el S8 Vijay McGuire (GBE)
ALL WARDS

Timeline Budget

Issues & OVERALL

Risks STATUs  Date Updated

GREEN 10/12/10

Key Points:

= 2nd Phase of Housing Services Consultation was launched; work
completed includes:

Revised Job descriptions completed (Staff consultation P2)
Job evaluations completed (Staff consultation P2)
Matching completed (Staff consultation P2)

Staff 1-2-1s (Staff consultation P2)

Three Staff briefings held

Updated Financial Model to include Phase 2 of consultation

= The project remains within agreed budget — as key deliverables
remain undetermined until recruitment is completed.

= Wider issues that are impacting the project include:

= Clarity on corporate restructuring timetable/Service reviews
will allow board and core project team to have clear
understanding on what happens in relation to support staff
from the former People 1st.

= The Accommodation review will confirm the location of the
housing service and how many staff from the housing
services will be re-located.

= Recruitment will enable appropriate project groups to be set
up to deliver work stream relating to CAPITA

Page 33



2011 Census PROJECT
| el= i 8 Rob Wood (CE)
ALL WARDS

Timeline Budget

Issues & OVERALL

Risks STATUs Date Updated

08/11/10

Key Points:

= Comms and Marketing Strategy and Countdown Plan completed
including PR and Media, Mobilisation and Social Marketing

= Continued awareness raising for members, parish councils and staff
in the need to identify sheds and HMOs

= Continuation of GIS/mapping information to contribute to enumerator
intelligence

= SBC has taken lead role in Community Plans for Black African, Black
Caribbean Somali population groups after ONS changed their
position on engagement roles and responsibilities at OMAG on 12th
November (see Timeline Issue)

= Forster Session held on 17th November series of recommendations
including testing key messages and building a set of case studies

= Recruitment of 2011 Census Ambassadors

= Completion of Census e-learning package — live on 2nd December

= Agreement of completion centres including: Thomas Grey; My
Council, Wexham Court School, Colnbrook Primary, YMCA, Destiny
Support, Sikh Temple, Slough and Langley Fire Stations on 27th
March,

= Meetings with schools as a result of recent briefings to agree
involvement

= Curriculum resources shared with schools through gatekeeper

= Shabnam Ali is leading on the development of comprehensive plan
to get into the business community, Mars already have got involved,
Slough Community Business Partnership Breakfast Meetings,

= CLPP Community Plans for Black African, Black Caribbean and
Somali shared by Noreen Mian and Anita Jan

= Sam Hussain leading on ESOL and Thomas Gray as Completion
and Assistance Centre

= Judeline Nicholas has led on embedding Census into all training and
induction programmes

CMT Actions:

Support with mobilising front line staff to attend training and then cascade census
messages to staff

Support for staff to complete Census Awareness training using E-Learning
package , launched in Newsround this week

Page 34



REGENERATION: Britwell &
Haymill OF PARTICULAR
INTEREST TO BRITWELL &

HAYMILL

Timeline

RED
Key Points:

PROJECT
(el =58 Neil Aves (GBE)

Issues & OVERALL
Budget Risks STATUS Date Updated

RED RED RED 17/11/10

Following the Government’s CSR announcement we are entering a
critical phase regarding the future viability of the scheme. A recent
meeting with the HCA has confirmed that they remain keen to
pursue the project and indeed have offered the prospect of SBC
receiving some funding this financial year out of other project
slippages across the region. The figure they are considering is
between £500,000 and £700,000 and of course comes from
existing pre-CSR budgets. Funding may be obtained simply to
reimburse the Council for fee expenditure to date which has been
spent in consulting the residents and securing outline Planning
Approval. This will not however deliver the scheme or significantly
enhance the viability of the scheme as a whole.

By receiving funding this year the project will then attain the
highest level of priority with the HCA to secure future funding
however even with the agencies best endeavours there may just
not be the funding available to allow them to commit to the
scheme.

Best advice is that the retail element will deliver itself and possibly
offer the council a capital receipt of around £300,000 which had
always been earmarked for the Kennedy Park improvements
agreed with the community in return for using part of the land for
construction. The housing element might cost anywhere in the
region of £7-£9 million to deliver and its delivery as council housing
is fundamental to the scheme firstly because the Housing Revenue
Account requires the future rental income to remain viable, having
lost the rent for 71 homes and 30+ shop units and secondly that
the tenants being decanted from Wentworth Avenue cannot be
‘forced’ into housing association properties and requirements to
decant them into solely existing council homes across the borough
would inevitably lead to further scheme delays and adverse
publicity.

Although the above sounds depressing, it does not sound the
death knell of the project, rather it is a cash flow issue which needs
to be resolved through either SBC borrowing or short term funding
from the HCA. Just as soon as we can receive some certainty on
the availability of grant funding from the HCA the council can start
to explore options (if any) for borrowing the funds over a
comparatively short period until phase 2 of the project which will
see the development of significant amounts of market housing, the
profits from the sale of which can pay off the borrowing.

Clearly the new financial climate will mean that the design of the
Page 35



scheme will have to change accordingly and current discussions
with the council’s advisors suggest that we need to re-engage with
the local community early in the new year to start considering what
might be built in Wentworth Avenue as part of phase 2. if HCA
funding is not available then potentially the density of such market
sale developments as part of phase 2 will need to be increased
significantly. The public can be involved in these deliberations and
asked to vote on the trade-off between the scale of development
and the amount of money available for community benefits.

= On a more minor level the lease for the former petrol station and
car show room in Wentworth Avenue expires on the 25" December
2010 and officers are initiating the legal process through which the
site can be secured for future development. Being a petrol station
there will be ground contamination remediation issues which may
fall as a liability to the current leasee however one other option is
to secure HCA funding to remediate the site if the leasee is
prepared to vacate with almost immediate effect and waive his
right to six months notice.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

= Officers continue to engage with the HCA and secure whatever
funding is available within this financial year.

= Officers undertake soft marketing exercises to firm up the
construction costs of the phase 1 housing on Kennedy Park

= Officers undertake soft marketing exercises to firm up the
construction costs of the phase 1 retail development to determine
the likelihood of a capital receipt

= Officers begin to plan for a possible consultation exercise with local
residents early in 2011 to “begin to think about what phase 2 might
look like”

= Officer secure possession of the garage site adjacent to the
Britwell Library and land bank the site for future options appraisal

Page 36



REGENERATION: Chalvey Andrew Stevens (GBE)
Mike Coles (Phase 1

development).

PROJECT

OF PARTICULAR INTEREST TO eSS

CHALVEY
Timeline Budget

Issues & OVERALL

Risks STATUs  Date Updated

GREEN GREEN GREEN GREEN 07/12/10
Key Points:

= Phase 1 — On schedule for January opening .

= Stage 1b - Outline plans being discussed with Paragon.
Intending, subject to agreement on proposal, to extend phase 1
contract to bring forward refurbishment of community space for
existing users and implement satellite library by summer 2011.

= Positive discussion by Clair Pyper and Jane Wood with school
head with a view to some shared use of early years facilities.
Discussions will be followed up in December-January.

= Specification for Phase 2 — public consultation led by Chalvey
Partnership is underway and further consultation with community
and council partners is on track for January-March. Progress
needs to be reviewed in early Jan to ensure public consultation is
progressing - there are some concerns that cold weather is
affecting delivery of leaflets.

= Project Support now in place and project documentation is being
developed. Phase1b is being planned in detail and phase 2 plans
are being prepared. All project documentation will be updated.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

= Comprehensive project plan and risk log require development
= Need to continue to encourage shared use of premises, including
early years

Planning for the Future PROJECT
MANAGER

CMT

ALL WARDS

Issues & OVERALL

Timeline Budget Risks STATUS Date Updated

GREEN AMBER AMBER AMBER 14/12/10
Key Points:

Accommodation Project

Phase 1 completed.

Meeting scheduled for phase 2 of SMP.

A revised Accommodation report went to CMT earlier this month.
More detailed plans with a timetable for the moves are now being
produced.

= The move of servers has been slightly delayed until the end of
January due to the inclement weather impacting cable work to
external sites.

Page 37



= Budget is on target.
=  Project is rated AMBER overall.

a) Workforce Planning

= Consultation launched for Chief Executive and Improvement &
Development Directorates.
= CMT to provide update on their service areas.

b) Income and Debt Management (incorporating RIO)

= External collection agencies have performed preliminary work on
our aged debtors with a view of collecting debt on our behalf using
enhanced collection methods and increased resources at no
increased cost to the council.

= Draft debtors policy has been produced.

= Business cases to raise additional income of approximately £3m
are in the process of being generated for sign off by CMT in the
New Year.

= Reconsidering the way we provide for bad debt to ensure that
provisions are risk based. This may release income to the council.

= Continue to review and write off aged debt that is not collectable.

c) Staff engagement and communications

Staff are being kept updated on key issues via normal
communications channels including all user emails and posting
consultations on the intranet.

Staff briefings and 1-2-1’s offered to staff affected.

Unions have been engaged and consulted with.

Equality Impact Assessments have been completed.

d) Outplacement support

A process has been put in place to support staff displaced under the

restructures and expressions of interest. This includes offering support

via the Information Advice and Guidance team, e-learning and
potentially funding external suppliers.

Letters are being sent to all staff in receipt of a redundancy letter or

taking early retirement without a redundancy package providing
information and outlining the support available.

Page 38



el e Kevin Gordon
\ANAel 558 Lisa Nuttall

Customer Focus
(formerly Duty Desks)
ALL WARDS

Issues & OVERALL

Timeline Budget Risks STATUS Date Updated

GREEN 13/12/10

Key Points:

Timetable for service areas to move to Landmark place and adopt the
new model currently being developed with service areas

= Suggested ‘Lend Out’ approach will negate the need for formal HR
deployment of my council staff.

= |T and Telephony issues being addressed
= Risks emerging around staff engagement as My Council staff are still to
be briefed.
7. Financial Reporting
7.1 The Council’s net revenue budget for 2010/11 is £103.9m.
7.2  The Housing Services agreed net operating budget for 2010/11 is a surplus of £213k.
8. Projected Outturn Position as at 30" November 2010
8.1 There is currently a projected under spend position for the 2010/11 General Fund of

£744k, although O&S should note that this reported position will change as work is
underway to create a provision to mitigate an expected future liability in respect of

Looked After Children. This compares to a reported overspend at this stage last year of
£854k reported as at end November 2009. O&S members should also note the possible

emerging issues and opportunities in sections 6 and 7 respectively.

8.2  For the Housing revenue account there is currently a projected under spend position of
£1,142k from the budgeted surplus position of £213k agreed at the start of the year. This

shows an adverse movement of £106k from that reported last month.

8.3  The position is summarised in Table 1, overleaf, and detailed in Appendix B.

Page 39



Table 1 - Projected as at 30th November 2010

Gross Gross Variance
Current Net] Projected Over Previously
Budget pre Govt. Budget Budget Outturn /(Under) Change Reported
. Govt Reduction | post-Govt
Directorate . . Spend
reduction reduction
A B C=B-A
£'M £'M £'M £'M £'M £'M £'M £'M

Community and Wellbeing 51.504 (0.605) 50.899 36.990 36.994 0.004 0.018 (0.014)
Education and Childrens 180.555|  (0.891)| 179.664 24533 24461 (0072  0o010]  (0.082)
Services
Green and Built Environment 39.370 (0.646) 38.724 26.243 26.210 (0.033) (0.033) 0.000
Central Directorates 87.857 (0.633) 87.224 22.679 22.375 (0.304) 0.007 (0.311)
Corporate 0.279 (0.140) 0.139 (0.083) (0.083) 0.000 0.000 0.000
Total Cost of Services 359.565 (2.915)] 356.650 110.362] 109.957 (0.405) 0.002 (0.407)
% of revenue budget
over/(under) spent by -0.37%| 0.00% 0.37%
Services
Treasury Management 3.334 0.000 3.334 3.334 2.995|  (0.339) 0.000 (0.339)
Contingencies & earmarked 2274 o000 2274 1383]  1.383]  0.000]  0.000 0.000
reserves
Area Based grant * (12.663) 1.609| (11.054) (11.100)]  (11.100) 0.000 0.000 0.000
Total General Fund 352.510 (1.306)] 351.204 103.979] 103.235 (0.744) 0.002 (0.746)
% of revenue budget o 0 0 790
over/(under) spent in total 0.72% 0.00% 0.72%
Capital Reductions (0.407)
Add back ABG income adj (1.609)
Total Govt Reductions (3.322)
Housing Services (0.213)] (1.355)] (1.142) 0.106 (1.248)
9. Month on Month Movement in Variances
9.1 Community and Wellbeing are reporting an over spend position of £4k which is a

adverse movement of £18k on the position reported last month. This small change is

fundamentally due to an increase in costs across Community Services and Adult Social

care due to an increase in staffing costs offset by savings in external care packages with

a net reduction of 5 clients, 3 of which qualify for continuing health care. Further details

can be seen in Appendix B.
9.2 Education and Children’s Services are reporting an overall under spend position of

£72k which is an adverse movement of £10k on last months reported position. As O&S
will recall the background of the current ECS budget position and the mitigating action
being adopted to alleviate the budget pressures being experienced is as follows;

There is continuing pressure on the budget in Children and Families due to the number
of looked after children which has begun to stabilise, but is still subject to volatility. The
budget pressure is due to a combination of placement costs rising because more
younger children have been admitted to care, court fees, and contact visits. Work has
already been undertaken to rigorously check all admissions to care and consider
alternative arrangements where possible; to make savings to bring down the overspend
in Children and Families; and use one-off savings in other areas of the Education and
Children’s Services budget to offset the projected overspend as a result of the rise in the
number of looked after children. However, the department is anticipating to be able to
mitigate the full year effect of the current position by using approximately £400K of grant
funding from Surestart to fund front line child protection social worker posts. However this
is dependent on the grant funding being available beyond March 2011.

Page 40



9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

This position is inevitably not sustainable and the department is looking at the creation of
capacity on an annual basis by the implementation of weekly and monthly review
meetings to ensure that every historic and potential placement is appropriately made.
This strategy is obviously linked to meet the needs of individual clients and opportunities
have been realised and clients have been re-directed to alternative services where
specific needs can still be met and which provide increased value for money. Whilst this
is producing some release of pressure the continued net increase in the overall client
base and its associated cost is subsuming any savings that this strategy is currently
providing. A specific area in which the strategy to create capacity is being pursued is the
aim to increase the number of foster carers available to meet current client levels. This
will be achieved from the remodelling of services to release resources to implement this
increase.

The increase in spend since last month is primarily made up of an increase in Children
Looked After activity resulting in additional costs of £82k. These are offset by one-off
savings from agreed staff expressions of interest of £32k and a one-off increase in
income from schools of £25k and Home to School Transport reductions of £17k following
a recent change in provider. Details can be seen in Appendix B.

Green and Built Environment are reporting a small under spend of £33k which has
arisen mainly from reductions in staffing costs and increased income. Staff cost
reductions have arisen from delayed appointments and those arising in year from the
expressions of interest made in the ‘Planning for the Future’ exercise. Additional income
generation has come from an increase in Registrar’s activities. Full detail scan be seen in
Appendix B. The department report a pressure arising due to a shortfall in the indexation
costs associated with a number of major contracts, negotiations are on-going with
contractors in attempts to contain this pressure within existing resources but there is still
a risk of a significant shortfall.

The Central Directorates have reported an under spend position of £304k (£311k in
October 2010). Further details can be seen in Appendix B.

Treasury Management continue to report an overall under spend position of £339k
which is unchanged since last month. This comprises the following;

Treasury Management - Refinancing are reporting an under spend of £104k arising
from the refinancing of debts in connection with two existing loans due to mature in
September and November next year and £34k secured in interest savings following
further debt refinancing via the PWLB.

Treasury Management - Impact of Capital re-programming. The re-profiling of the
capital programme has identified revenue savings of £235k in the current year. However
it is very important to bring to the attention of O&S and members that the overall size of
the capital programme has not changed and this saving has only occurred because of
the re-profiling of when schemes will be undertaken. This means that pressures will occur
in latter years, e.g. 2013/14 and beyond when re-profiled schemes come on line and
these pressures will need to be addressed as part of the 2011/12 budget build process
covering these years. In addition further work is currently taking place at the moment on
the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) position. CMT and members will be updated on
the outcome of this in future budget monitoring reports.

Page 41



Treasury Management — Changes to Credit Ratings of Approved Counter Parties

9.8 Although Fitch Ratings agency has downgraded support ratings of 8 UK building
societies from 3 to 5 (lowest), it has left the long term and short term deposit ratings
unchanged. Support rating indicates the rating agency’s view that the support from UK
authorities cannot be relied upon in the event that these building societies need
assistance in the form of additional credit and/or liquidity support. Moody’s, the other
rating agency used by the Council has not made any such announcement. Of the 8
building societies, the Council has outstanding deposits with 3 as follows:

Building Society Amount | Maturity Date
Coventry Building Soc £4.00M | 17/3/2011
Coventry Building Soc £2.70M | 25/7/2011
Leeds Building Society £2.20M | 21/1/2011
Yorkshire Building Society £4.00M | 22/3/2011
Total £12.90M

9.9 Although the long and short term credit ratings of the above building societies has
remained unchanged and still within the Council’s current approved limits, Coventry and
Leeds building societies have been suspended from the lending list as a matter of
prudence. Yorkshire building society was suspended from the lending list in June 2009.
There are no forward deal commitments to any of the building societies.

9.10 The latest report from the Heritable bank Administrators indicate that the next dividend
distribution is likely to take place in January 2011. To date £1.171M of original deposit of
£2.579 has been repaid. The Council does not have any exposure to the Irish banks.

9.11  Figure 1 overleaf illustrates the monthly projected outturn positions over the last 5 years.
Figure 1

Projected Outturn Variance Trends
25
2 i

= S~ —&— 2008/09
0.5

15 —=—2010/11
.| % N —e—2009/10

' M —e—2007/08
0 B T ® T T T T @

—o— 2006/07
Jul Sep Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cabinet Reports

9.12

The Housing Revenue Account is showing an under spend of £1,142k. An in-year
surplus of £213k on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) was approved by Cabinet for
2010/11. The latest projection indicates an outturn surplus of £1,355k which is an under
spend of £1,142k against budget compared to last months under spend position of
£1,248k. This is the result of an increase in the revenue contribution to capital outlay
(RCCO) to reflect the funding required to meet the current year’s approved capital
expenditure. Further details can be found in Appendix B. In overall terms, the new

Page 42



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

working balance carried forward at 31% March 2011 on the HRA is projected to be
£10.362M.

Emerging Issues / Risks
Introduction

Although the headline position is showing a projected under spend position of £744k at
this stage of the financial year it is important to note that a significant level of gross
savings have had to be achieved incorporating the £3.3m of ‘in-year reductions’ as a
result of the governments £6.2bn of reductions across the public sector.

Therefore the Council needs to be vigilant to ensure that the savings are delivered in full
and in a timely fashion, i.e. during 2010/11. Appendix D details the areas of savings by
directorate and their current status.

Consequently it is prudent to consider the option of delivering known 2011/12 savings
early to begin to mitigate the risk of achieving the required savings target over the next 4
years. Indeed Cabinet on 20" September 2010 have agreed the pre CSR 2011/12
savings and so departments should be implementing those identified areas now.

A review of the allocation of support costs between the Housing Revenue Account and
the General Fund is being undertaken. The outcome of any changes arising from this
may have an impact on the overall budget monitoring position for each service.

Directorate Specific
Community and Wellbeing:

¢ A new establishment providing supported living accommodation for clients with
Learning Disabilities opened earlier in this financial year. Potential pressures could
arise from clients placed in this facility by Other Local Authorities (OLAs), and thereby
qualifying for ordinary residence. To counter this, Adult Social Care negotiated with
the service provider to ensure that Slough Borough Council has exclusive rights to
placements at this service. This will require careful management of placements.
Placements by the Council to this service are projected to commence from January
2011 onwards.

e There is one outstanding Employment Tribunal claim within the Adult Social Care
division currently going through court proceedings. Current costs associated with this
claim have now exceeded budget. The Legal team will be providing guidance on
potential costs which the department expect to be included in next months budget
report.

e |n addition, a result of closures and other budget pressures in local health economy.
It is expected that the local authority will come under increasing pressures in relation
to increased demand for social care. This is being closely monitored and further
updates will be provided as appropriate.

e The library service will be externalised in 2011/12 and will fall under the management
of Essex County Council. The savings that will be achieved through the Expressions
of Interest for the Library Service come to £22k, however the transfer of the service to
Essex County Council will incur costs which have not yet been finalised and these
may off-set any savings. This will be reported on in due course. This does not affect
the agreed saving in the PPRG for 2011/12.

Page 43



10.6 Education and Children’s Services:

10.7

The level of client activity within the looked after settings of the Children & Families
division continues to be volatile as demand levels remain buoyant.

A relatively large cohort, of 12 children and young people, who are subject to Child
Protection Plans in different Local Authorities, have transferred into Slough. These
families have moved for their own personal reasons. However, there is a duty to
convene ‘Receiving In’ child protection conferences in order to ensure that the
children are appropriately safeguarded in Slough and this will result in the children
becoming subject to CP plans with our C&F service. There is no way of knowing at
this point, what stage of the Child Protection plan the children are at. It will take some
weeks for staff here to assess whether these children can safely remain on CP plans
or if their circumstances are such that they need to become ‘looked after’. If this does
prove to be the case, then this may impact on the foster placement budgets.

Within the Youth Offending Team, an unexpected invoice was received at the end of
last year for £18k in respect of an outstanding service charges for Connaught House
relating to 2006. Provision for this was made but officers are in dispute with the
landlord. YOT officers expect a possibility of further charges that could be made in
respect of subsequent years. The departments long term plan is to vacate these
premises when the break clause in the existing contract is reached.

Further increases in levels of looked after children and referral and assessment
activity will result in additional budget pressures although management are exploring
mitigating strategies to combat this.

Green and Built Environment:

The economy remains a key risk for the directorate’s income as outlined within
‘Volatile Areas/Demand Led’.

Climate change continues to impact on winter maintenance and subsequent repairs,
flooding and grounds maintenance costs. Innovative measures to negate the impact
are being sought.

Proposed changes to the Housing Revenue Account ring fencing may result in further
costs and expenditure being charged to the General Fund rather than HRA. While this
may not happen within 2010/11 it is likely that any legislative change will be
enforceable from April 2011 and, therefore, needs to be included in the Directorates
PPRG submissions.

Potential settlement from Employment Tribunal in Private Sector Housing

A new/interim contract is still awaited from the Valuation team in respect of the bus
station in order that a charge can be made. As a consequence no billing has taken
place since November 2009. Currently it is estimated that income amounting to £60k
is at risk.

A number of highways properties that had been leased to Co-op Homes were handed
back in December 2009. Details of the new management arrangements are still
awaited from the Valuation team but there is concern that the income this generates
is at risk unless this issue is quickly resolved. Currently it is estimated that income
amounting to £30k is at risk.

The cost of the new pest control contract is likely to result in an end of year budgetary
pressure of approx £30k. Negotiations are being held with the contractor with a view
to reducing the costs of the service. The disparity between the cost to the Council of
rat treatments against the charges made to customers is causing this pressure.

All of these risks will be closely monitored and the impact clearly identified and reported
as and when it is clear they are likely to become a reality.

Page 44



10.8 Central Directorates:

The current economic situation with regards to increasing pressure on Housing
Benefits.

The data centre (server room) move out of the Town Hall to the Slough Trading
Estate is due to take place in January. A full assessment of costs connected with the
move are being undertaken

10.9 Housing Services:

11.

11.4

The proposed new structure for the Housing Services team has been finalised
following a second consultation. The impact of this restructure in terms of efficiency
savings and associated costs has been quantified and is factored into the projected
outturn for the service. Estimated additional costs relating to recruitment and
assessment centres have been collated and will be met from existing budget
resources and these are already factored into the current outturn. It has been
calculated that the new structure will create over £400k of efficiency savings from
2011/12.

Emerging Opportunities

Introduction

Note the requirement in paragraph 6.2 to take 2011/12 agreed savings early in 2010/11.

Whilst departments face emerging issues as identified above there are also opportunities
that may emerge to mitigate any adverse financial occurrences. Whilst reliance should
not be placed upon them and thus caution should be taken it should be noted that if they
come to fruition they could have a favourable impact on the overall council position.

Directorate Specific

Community & Wellbeing

None identified at this stage.

Education & Children’s Services

As reported last month, an investigation is being carried out into the terms and conditions
of Sure Start funding with a view to offsetting social care costs for children aged under 5
where appropriate. Work on this is almost complete and indicates potential savings in the
region of £500k. It is expected that this work will be finalised and a savings figure
included in the December budget report.

Green & Built Environment

Maximise external grant funding opportunities by using ‘Grant Finder' software to
locate new grants but should be noted against a backdrop of reducing government
grant.

Option appraisals on shared service arrangements relating to regulatory services and
building control

Discussions with neighbouring councils are taking place to develop initiatives to help

bring down waste management costs
Page 45



¢ Developing the Highways Asset Management Plan will support whole life costing
methodology on road and pavement resurfacing methodology and provide better
value for money

e Recovery of assets and money through proceeds of crime by using a financial
investigator to assist in criminal investigations

11.6 Central Directorates

e The re-alignment of Support Services will allow opportunities for savings across the
current year to be implemented and so secure the full year effect in the next financial
year.

11.7 Housing Services

e The recent announcement regarding potential reforms to the Housing Revenue
Account Subsidy system indicate potential flexibilities in how the Council may spend
housing income and set rents. The Department will continue to monitor
announcements in this area in order to quantify the effect on the HRA budget going
forward.

12. Agreed Base Savings 2010/11

12.1  As CMT and members will be aware from the previous monitor to provide assurance that
the recommendations around savings and growth agreed during the 2010/11 budget
build process have been achieved a full list of growth and savings is attached as
Appendix C to this report but an overall summary by department. Table 2 below indicates
that overall the savings items are exceeding target for delivery. This is fundamentally as
a result of increased income of £339k from Treasury Management as reported in
paragraphs 5.5 to 5.7 and a saving of £25k within Community & Wellbeing as a result of
a management action to mitigate a corresponding pressure against an in year savings
target (this is identified in table 3, paragraph 9.1). These savings are partially offset by a
£60k shortfall in income within Improvement & Development in respect of the recovery of
court costs for council tax and rates.

Table 2 — PPRG Growth & Savings
Departmental Growth & Savings Analysis 2010-11

Department Growth Proposals Savings Proposals

Target Estimated | Variance Status Target Estimated | Variance Status

Outturn Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Community & Wellbeing 940 940 0 GREEN -1,232 -1,257 -25 GREEN
Education & Children's Services 959 959 0 GREEN -1,333 -1,333 0 GREEN
Green & Built Envronment 103 103 0 GREEN -281 -281 0 GREEN
Resources 130 130 0 GREEN -461 -461 0 GREEN
Improvement & Development 70 70 0 GREEN -655 -595 60
Chief Executive 0 0 0 GREEN -89 -89 0 GREEN
Corporate 1,723 1,723 0 GREEN -1,440 -1,779 -339| GREEN
Total 3,925 3,925 0 GREEN -5,491 -5,795 -304| GREEN

13. Inyear savings 2010/11

13.1  Following the announcement made by the Department for Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) on 10 June 2010 regarding permanent reductions to grant funding
of £3.3m in the current financial year departments have identified a series of
compensating savings to deliver this which was endorsed by Cabinet on 12 July 2010.
Most of the reductions were made to grant funded streams but with the balance coming
from core budgets. However sources of permanent funding to meet the overall

Page 46



13.2

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

reductions were short by £36k. The total number of staffing affected amounted to 4.6fte
which will be a cost against the Council’s central £750k contingency set aside for
redundancies (after partnership commitments). To provide members with assurance that
these are being achieved a full list of these savings is attached as Appendix D to this
report but an overall summary by department is shown in table 3 below. Whilst there is a
shortfall identified against Community & Wellbeing, this is mitigated by a management
action to exceed a PPRG savings target (which is identified in table 2, paragraph 8.1
above).

Table 3 — In year savings

Departmental In Year Savings Analysis 2010-11

Department In Year Savings Targets

Target Estimated | Variance Status

Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000
Community & Wellbeing -605 -580 25
Education & Children's Services -891 -891 -0. GREEN
Green & Built Envronment -646 -646 0 GREEN
Resources -200 -200 0 GREEN
Improvement & Development -308 -308 0 GREEN
Chief Executive -125 -125 0 GREEN
Corporate -140 -140 0 GREEN
Total - Revenue 2,915 -2,890 25 [ IRED
Green & Built Envronment -407 -407 0 GREEN
Total - Capital -407 -407 0 GREEN
Total Savings -3,322 3,207 25 [ IRED
Capital

The overall council capital programme is £126m for the period 2010/11 to 2016/17. The
programmed spend for 2010/11 is £55.5m which is a reduction of £1.5m on that
previously reported.

CMT will recall that the total capital spend for 2009/10 was £30m and in view of this it is
highly unlikely that the programmed spend of £55.5m in the current year will be
delivered. In preparing the proposed revised capital programme, departments and AMG
have considered the overall capital strategy and service priorities to enable delivery of
the Council’s business plans and within projected resources available, at a prudent and
sustainable level. The overall asset management strategy is currently being reviewed
and is expected to be reported to the December 2010 Cabinet, following which, the
capital programme will be further reviewed and revised and reported back as part of the
2011-12 budget process. The Council’s future revenue business plans will also impact
on the capital programme as any change/s to the service provision could result in either
a capital asset being identified as surplus to requirement and therefore potential
additional capital receipt or additional capital required to upgrade an asset to enhance
the service provision. These will also be considered and reviewed as part of the budget
build process.

The overall programmed spend for the HRA capital programme is £10.8m for 2010/11
which is unchanged from the position reported last month. Options of how to fund the

Page 47



HRA capital programme have recently been presented to CMT. This outcome of this
review will be presented to January Cabinet.

15.Planning for the future — Expressions of Interest

15.1  CMT will be aware that as part of the ‘planning for the future’ exercise a number of
agreed business cases for voluntary redundancy, early retirements, reduced hours and
other short term leave arrangements were agreed for implementation during 2010/11.
The consequence of this after allowing for any back-fill costs where appropriate is that
there are currently estimated net General Fund savings of £118k that will be delivered in
the current financial year. However there are still some areas where cover or alternative
arrangements with offsetting costs, where appropriate, are yet to be finalised and any
savings in these areas have been excluded at this stage until a final position is
determined. These areas will be under review and an update provided in future
monitoring reports.

15.2 The Housing Revenue Account has also generated 2010/11 savings from this exercise
of £30k which were included in previously reported variances. These figures are
included within the latest estimate for each department but are also set out below for
information;

15.3

Table 5 — Planning for the future savings
Planning for the future - 2010/11 savings

Department Total
Saving
£'000
Community & Wellbeing -3
Education & Children's Services -36
Green & Built Environment -9
Resources -33
Improvement & Development -31
Chief Executive -6
Total General Fund -118
Housing Revenue Account -30
Total -148

16. Debt Monitoring

16.1 Between the period from 1 April 2010 and 30 November 2010 the Council has written off
the following amounts of uncollectable debt:

Sundry Debtors £79,242
Council Tax £214,308
Housing Rents £50,084
Housing Benefit overpayments £15,336

17. Conclusion

17.1 The position as at the end of November 2010 leaves an overall headline under spend
position of £744k against the General Fund revenue account. Against the Housing
revenue Account the position as at the end of November 2010 leaves an overall headline
under spend position of £1,355k. Close scrutiny is required from the Directorate
management teams to ensure 100% delivery and thus not weaken the base budget
position for 2011/12 and beyond.

Page 48



17.2 The General Fund capital programme is indicating a total programmed spend of £55.5m
in the current year against £126m for the period 2010/11 to 2016/17. The Housing
Capital Programme is showing a total programmed spend of £10.8m for 2010/11. The
capital programme will be reviewed again as part of the budget build process for
2011/12.

18. Appendices Attached

Appendix A - Organisation Indicators and LAA Targets
Appendix B - Summary Variance Analysis

Appendix C - Growth and Savings Analysis

Appendix D - Departmental In-Year Reductions Analysis

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



| abed

"JUBWUIBAO0S) snoinaid Aq 18s sjoble) Joj sojeosawi} 0} aJaype 0} S,y JO} SOAIJUSIUI [elIoURUL OU Je 8lay)
JInsal e Sy "paysijoge mou juels) Alaaljaq Buluueld “Jeuuew Ajgwi e ul passaodold aq 0] anuiuod suoneoldde ,JayiQ, pue ,Joull,, 1o} sainbi4
suonesddy Buluue|d jo Buissasold :/GL IN

suoneoldde Buiuueld jo Buissadolid :(V¥)ZSL IN
SNLVLS 9V d3yd HLIM SHOLVIIANI

AJVINIANNS NOILdIOX3

"0, 0% 01 se1enba Yolym 01/6002 10} 18S 1ou aiam s)abie) aiaym Jo pases|al aq 0] sjinsal/elep Bunieme o) anp
pa]eo0||e 8q JOU P|N0d SN)eIs Y 8yl 818yMm SI0JedIpul 6] AJUS.LIND aie 8lay] "%6| SI pay Se PalISSe[O 8SOy] pue %¢ | SI Jaquiy Se paljisse[o
asoUy] 1S|Iym 9,62 SI Usals) se pasiiobaled siojesipul jo uoiodoid ey "sio1edIpul g1 8y} 1o 6Z 01 paubisse aq AJuo ued snjels oy e Ajusiing

61l 6 9 vl «ejol
18S
10U 1061€ | /S)INSaY Jaquy
leul4 Buniemy

Page 51

usalo)

snje)s bey

"01L0Z J9qWBAON ,0€ Je SE SI0JedIpu| [BUOHEN 8¢ 8U} JOj SNjels DY 8y} Jo Alewwns e s| mojag “sanuond [eoo] Aey s,ybnojs o)
payul| ale 8say] (/8| Pue Z€ ‘6S ‘vZL S,IN uo paseq) seale Ajuond uo sjabie) 20| ¢ Buipnjoul siojedipul g Jo sasldwod jas 18bie) vy 8yl

xdse g0Z¢Hn'Aob ybno|s'pe ajisuidqs//:d)y :JsIA aseald siojedlpul Jo IS N} B 104

"WYY 94} Ul SI0jedipul 0} paje|al 8SOY} PUB |Iounod ay} JO Yyyeay jeuonesiueblo ay) aulwiaap 0} | ND

JO slequiaw Aq pa1o9|as si0}edlpul aduewlouad 0} sejejal Jodal siy ] pJesalodg padsuejeqg YY1 9l pue piedalodg paoueleg ajelodio) ay)
yjog woul} suondaoxs Jo sasudwod )| 010z J8quaAoN Yiog 03 dn pouad ay} Buaaoo asuewlouad uo ajepdn ue sapinold podas uondaoxs siy |

L¥0d3¥ LINFWIAOUINI ANV SNLVLS FJONVINHOLYId :S1IDAVL VV1 ANV SHOLVIIANI NOILVSINVYOYHO :V xipuaddy



Z 9bed

‘sliedal Juabun ||e Jo 9%,28°66 18 ybiy paulewsals sey siy |
sAep ¢ uiyim auop saiedau Juabin jo Juasiad :6ZH |20

‘0102 aunp o} judy pouad ay) oy sAep gz Jeno 1snl 0} 01/600Z o) shep z{ wou) parosdwi sey siy|
saijadoud pIoA 10} sawiy }9]-9y abeldaAy :gZH [e207]

*10JeoIpul siealie 8y} a4 [|IM wes) ay) Jo eale aouewiouad Aay ay) Jonemoy ‘A|jeoo] uo Lodal [jIm am Yoiym ainbi) o, e 108]|00 O} SNUNUOD [|IM
wiea) Uoioa||oo Jual 8yl "000°'G.83 10 1861e1 B yum 000 0S63F 1B PUB]S AjJUslind YydIym SJeslie JuUeuUa)] JUa.Ind ||e Jo uononpal aq ||IM Jojesipul Aay
oy} Jaquie}dag JO | 8U} WoI "papN|oul usaq 8ABY Jeak snoiaald 8y} WOy 8Np Judl JO Sieally "%G L0 | Se pauodal si siy} Jspenb isiy sy} 104
pa}29]]09 jual Jo uoiuodoid :JZH |e207]

‘(e1qejieAe si lep yoiym Joj Jauenb jJusdal 1sow ay)) - Jauenb 1sii) 8yl Jo) synsal poob moys asay |
jJuswabeuely 9)SeM €61 PUe 261 ‘L6 INy,
o

‘(Jopenb isuy wcmu
WOJ) OM} AQ UMOP) 90NpaJ 0} SSNUIIUOD SIU} ‘UOEPOWODoE Alesodwsa) Ul Sployasnoy /@ papoddns aaey om ajep o1 "001 =1 1/010Z Jo} }1obie n
uonepowwoosy Aresodwa] ul SP|OYasnoH 95} IN

‘dnoug sinoqyblaN

|[eonsieIS Jno Ul || Jo 1no puz pue ajienb doy ayy ul ybnojg Buioeld jeuonjeu Yy payuel si 1 ybno|s Ajjeuoisinold "% /LS Jo abelane
1seJ Yinos ay} 9Aoge 9%,9°G pue %6° 1S JO abelane pue|bug ay) anoge 9%,g8°/ SI 8ouewsouad s,ybno|s -9,z9 Jo 10b4e} 01/600Z JNO SpoaIXd
Ajjeuibiew pue 9,¢°6G J0 ainbly s eak snoinaid ay) wody Juswasoldwi %€ e sI %/ 29 Jo aouewsopad 0L/600zZ leuolsinoid s,y s,ubno|s
[1ebie] vyl sulen pue ysijbugz Buipnjoul JusjeAinba 10 3599 je sapelb 9-,y 910w 10 G JO JUBWIAIIYIY S/ IN

sAep ¢ ulyym auop sJaiedal Juabin Jo Juadlad :6ZH |€207

saladold ploA Joj awi) 18]-21 abelany :@ZH |e207]

pa}09]|09 jual Jo uolodold :2Z H 18207

Juswabeuel a)sep (€61 Pue Z6l ‘L6l IN

uoljepowwoooe Alejodwa] ul SPIOYasnoH :9GL IN

syje| pue ysijbuz Buipnjoul JuajeAinba 10 3599 je sapelb H-.\y 210w J0 G JO JUBWAAAIYIY G/ IN
(SNLVLS 9VY NIFUO) INFWIAOUINI LNVIIHINDIS 40 SYIUV




Appendix B
Summary Variance Analysis

For the Period Ended: 30" November 2010

Community & Wellbeing

Total
Service Area Variance | Explanation
£000

New This month: There is a projected overspend of £139k for this service
area which is an overall adverse movement of £16k in November. This
comprises a favourable movement in External Care Packages of £45k
resulting from a net reduction of 5 clients, 3 of whom qualified for
Continuing Health Care (CHC). This is offset by an increase in staffing
costs of £51k with the appointment of a Reviewing Officer - agreed within
Community Services and 139 the PPRG process, and an agency member of staff to cover vacancies
Adult Social Care within the CTPLD. In addition there has been a £10k increase in Internal
Services primarily due to overtime costs.

Previously Reported: +£123k

The main budget pressure remains overspends on residential and nursing
homes placements. This is equivalent to 4 placements above those
projected at the beginning of the financial year.

New This month: No change.

Learning Skills and (52) | Previously Reported: (£52k)
Cultural Engagement Due mainly to increases in lettings income.

New This month: Minor revisions to staffing forecasts.

Personalisation, .
Partnership and (3) | Previously Reported: (£5k)

Commissioning

New This month: No change

Central Management (80) Previously Reported: (£80k)

Due to the anticipated underspends on non pay inflation provision.

+4 Total Variance

Performance & Financial Reporting/2010-11/0&S 20-01-2011

Page 53



Appendix B (Cont.)

Education & Children’s Services

Service Area Total Explanation
Variance
£000
Children and Families 651 | Background / strategy;

There is continuing pressure on the budget in Children and Families due
to the number of looked after children which has begun to stabilise, but is
still subject to volatility. The budget pressure is due to a combination of
placement costs rising because more younger children have been
admitted to care, court fees, and contact visits. Work has already been
undertaken to rigorously check all admissions to care and consider
alternative arrangements where possible; to make savings to bring down
the overspend in Children and Families; and use one-off savings in other
areas of the Education and Children’s Services budget to offset the
projected overspend as a result of the rise in the number of looked after
children.

This position is inevitably not sustainable and the department is looking at
the creation of capacity on an annual basis by the implementation of
weekly and monthly review meetings to ensure that every historic and
potential placement is appropriately made. This strategy is obviously
linked to meet the needs of individual clients and opportunities have been
realised and clients have been re-directed to alternative services where
specific needs can still be met and which provide increased value for
money. Whilst this is producing some release of pressure the continued
net increase in the overall client base and its associated cost is subsuming
any savings that this strategy is currently providing. A specific area in
which the strategy to create capacity is being pursued is the aim to
increase the number of foster carers available to meet current client levels.
This will be achieved from the remodelling of services to release resources
to implement this increase.

The department is anticipating to be able to mitigate the full year effect of
the current position by using approximately £400K of additional grant
funding from Surestart to fund front line child protection social worker
posts. However this saving is dependent on the grant funding being
available beyond March 2011.

New This month;

Across the Children Looked After placement budgets there has been an
additional net pressure of £82k. This comprises 8 new placements costing
£78k, a temporary client placement in secure accommodation costing £6k
and 8 placement extensions costing £28k (a combined FYE £142k
pressure), offset by 5 clients leaving fostering placements earlier than
planned saving £30k.

The impact of some of the extensions within Looked After Children has
resulted in £6k savings within adoption allowances.

The Planning for the Future exercise has provided a saving of £31k as the
role is covered until the end of the financial year by an existing member of
staff in an acting up arrangement.

The estimated total cost for the joint arrangement for the Out of Hours
service has increased by £8k based on the latest activity figures provided
by Bracknell Forest Borough Council the host authority.

Previously reported:

Pressures of £1,032k mainly due to rising client numbers, extensions to
placements and changes in the ‘type’ of placement across Looked After
settings and £231k in respect of the Contact Service have been offset by
an under spend of £416k across other services including Adoption
Allowances, Childcare Lawyers and the cost of Leaving Care.

At CMT, a reduction in foster care fees for Slough foster carers to a similar
level to those paid by neighbouring authorities was agreed and has now
been identified, saving £50k in 2010-11. The full year effect of this saving
in 2011-12 is expected to be £150k.

Performance & Financial Reporting/2010-11/0&S 20-01-2011

Page 54



In addition, a reduction in the number of social workers in Children and
Families by 9 posts (6 agency and 3 establishment), saving £200k in
2010-11 with a full year saving of £400k in 2011-12 was agreed. Current
work is under way to look at raising thresholds for children in need,
referring parents to services available in the community (e.g. Parenting,
Children’s Centres), enhancing use of Sure Start services for younger age
group. Between November and March, Sure Start funding will be used to
enhance the triage and social care duty systems focussing on vulnerable
families with children under 5, with longer term plans being put in place
following detailed information about Sure Start funding available in 2011-
12.

Youth

(95)

Previously reported:

Youth and Support to Young People is one of the areas being looked at for
2011.12 to implement savings. A saving of £95k has been identified
against Positive activities guns, gangs and knife crime within the PAYP
funding stream against a total Youth budget of £1.6m.

Inclusion

(192)

New This month:
The Planning for the Future exercise has provided a saving of £1k due to
the reduction of hours in 1 staff member.

Previously reported: Reduced client activity based upon need have been
identified for children with disabilities saving £66k. A staff vacancy from
July within Services for Children with Learning Difficulties/Disabilities will
save £20k, a full year saving of £40k following a review of the staff
structure for this service. A review of shift patterns at Breakaway
Children’s Home has saved £30k, equivalent to £45k in a full year. The
claw back of unspent direct payment allowances has saved £15k and the
PCT funding 1 client's home care cost for the year saving £25k, previously
expected from within SBC resources.

A change in the commissioning arrangements for Home Care Support will
generate a saving of £18k through the provision of service within existing
resources which replaces an arrangement to purchase provision from a
Voluntary Sector organisation.

Within Young People’s Substance misuse a targeted youth support worker
post who left in October and the post will be held vacant until the end of
the financial year saving £17k.

Raising Achievement

(313)

New This Month:

An updated forecast of income generated by the school advisory service
has identified additional one-off income of £25k to the end of the year.
Within Home to School Transport a saving of £17k has been identified
within the SEN element due to a small reduction in the daily rate. This is
as a result of the retendering of one of the contracts due to the existing
operator giving notice this term.

Previously reported: A one-off saving of £64k has been identified within
Home to School Transport due to the renegotiation of contracts for the
Autumn school term pupil requirements.

The deletion of the Assistant Director post for Raising achievement from
1% October will save £54k (£108k in a full year). A saving of £100k on
Youth Opportunity funding has been identified, mainly due to the removal
of the ring fencing restriction and ability to offset against core expenditure.
Innovative use of Sure start grant to offset officer time within the Early
Years service has saved £95k and there has also been a staff savings of
£24k within Services to Schools in respect of maternity leave. This has
been offset by a net pressure of £66k within the School Improvement
Service due to a shortfall in income generation.

Strategic Support

(80)

Previously reported: Reduced activity levels in accessing the
Assessment Centre for the provision of education need assessment for
children arriving from abroad will save £50k. A saving of £30k based on
the current level of liability for teacher’s premature retirement payments is
expected.

Schools (ABG Services)

(43)

Previously reported: The Excellence in Cluster Coordinator has been
seconded to the vacant Head of Standards post from 1% September until
the end of the financial year; the Coordinator post will not be back filled
saving a one-off £43k.

(72)

Total Variance

Performance & Financial Reporting/2010-11/0&S 20-01-2011

Page 55




Appendix B (Cont.)

Green & Built Environment

Service Area Total Explanation
Variance
£000
Resources & Bus Support 0 | No new variances reported
Env Services & Quality +24 | New this month:

The use of agency staff covering the Senior Nursery Operatives post at
Wexham Nursery has created a pressure of £18k, and a further pressure
of £6k relating to the maintenance contract in respect of the sites alarm
system has also been identified. These pressures are partially offset by
additional income of £20k generated from within the Registrar’s service
due to a general increase in all service activities e.g. marriage licences,
nationality checking and issuing certificates.

Previously Reported:

The crematoriums previous gas supplier had identified that an incorrect
multiplier was used when calculating gas usage. As a consequence E-On
are now claiming a backdated amount of £40k. This pressure is partially
offset by £20k additional income generated through the Citizenship service
as a result of an increase in the number of applicants.

Pressure at present still exists with the Environmental Services Contract
although Slough Enterprise has agreed to lower the inflationary uplift from
4.8% to 3% reducing the pressure to £206k, but this is still awaiting formal
agreement. Negotiations continue with the latest meeting attended by
directors from both SBC and Slough Enterprise held on the 9" September.
This identified some additional proposals but overall negotiations continue
and are not finalised as yet. This will be kept under constant review as part
of the ongoing monitoring process and until appropriate compensating
savings are found. Slough Enterprise invoices continue to be paid at last
year’s rate.

Public Protection (111) | New this month:

A further £30k staff savings has been identified due to a delay in
appointing temporary staff to the CCTV/Careline service and as an
adjustment to the starting date for a neighbourhood enforcement officer. A
number of small savings totalling £8k in respect of administration costs
has also been identified within the Consumer Protection Support Team.
These savings are partially offset by a further £10k pressure in respect of
RSPCA fees due to an increase in the number of stray dogs not being
claimed. It is possible that this pressure may decrease by the end of the
financial year as the contract manager has been advised to invoice all
owners, where they are known, regardless of whether the dog is claimed
or not.

Previously Reported:

A detailed review of staffing budgets including filling vacant posts with
either permanent or temporary staff or the use of agency staff has been
undertaken, and savings of £103k identified as a result. This is partially
offset by two separate pressures each of £10k relating to outstanding fee
invoices from the RSPCA for 2009/10, and expenditure incurred in dealing
with the clearance of abandoned trailers.

The Licensing Service has identified additional income of £21k across a
range of its functions and this together with a projected under spend on
CCTV/Careline employee costs mitigates the organic produce imports
income pressure of £36k previously identified.

A significant fall in the number of organic produce imports has resulted in
a pressure of £36k against the income target for their verification. Work is
ongoing to identify savings from within the Public Protection budgets to
mitigate this pressure.

Performance & Financial Reporting/2010-11/0&S 20-01-2011

Page 56



Transport & Planning

+78

New this month:

A small in year saving of £9k as a result of the recent ‘Planning for The
Future’ process has been identified in respect of one member of staff
going on a sabbatical and another accepting voluntary redundancy.

Previously Reported:

Increased competition from private and illegal car parks coupled with the
economic downturn has resulted in a predicted shortfall in income of
£150k, although this can be mitigated by a reduction in the provision set
aside for bad debts. In addition an invalid rent increase backdated to
September 2009 relating to a Hatfield MSCP leaseholder has created a
budget pressure of £30k. Planning fee income is also predicted to under
achieve by £100k due to a lack of major planning applications although
this position could improve. These pressures have been partially offset by
a detailed review of staffing budgets which has identified in year savings of
£43k.

The options appraisal in respect of the future of car parks has been
completed and transport officers are now reviewing the recommendations
contained within the report in order to ascertain the next steps and overall
financial impact.

Hsg Strategy & Renewal

(24)

New this month:
No new variances reported.

Previously Reported:

A detailed review of staffing budgets including filling vacant posts with
either permanent or temporary staff or the use of agency staff has been
undertaken, and savings of £24k identified as a result.

Thames Water have recently identified that no waste water charge in
respect of the Poyle Caravan Park has been made for a number of years.
This has resulted in a ‘one off’ pressure of £9k although it is possible that
an element of this cost can be passed on to the tenants. Any resultant
balance will be absorbed within the services overall budget.

Total Variance

(33)

Performance & Financial Reporting/2010-11/0&S 20-01-2011

Page 57




Appendix B (Cont.)

Central Directorates

Service Area Total Explanation
Variance
£000
Improvement & Development 57 | New This month:

Additional future agency cost will be incurred between January and March
2011 to develop Business Objects software. This combined with a review
of vacancies in the revenues service area will lead to an adverse
movement of £12K since the previous month.

Previously Reported: The latest review of staffing has reduced the
projection of savings previously given due to one member of staff
returning from maternity leave 4 months earlier than previously expected
costing approximately £12k and additional agency costs of approximately
£5k relating to a CMT initiated project to review the way in which we
approach Complaint and FOI's across the authority. The level of income
from the recovery of court costs for council tax arrears is estimated to fall
short of the budget requirement by £60k which indicates more people are
paying outstanding debts before cases get taken to court. This situation
is being monitored closely to asses the ongoing pressure for future years.
This has been partially offset by reducing spend on equipment, computing
costs, land registry fees and a reduction in costs for the production of
Council Tax bills (£19k), increased income (£6k) and a review of staffing
projections (£7Kk).

The latest estimate of the level of recoverable court costs in respect of
NNDR cases indicates that a reduction of income of £6k will occur against
a total expectation of £46k. A review of court costs recoverable in respect
of Council Tax cases is currently being undertaken. A total of 15
vacancies across the department some backfilled with agency cover and
the provision of overtime payments result in a net saving of £40k. These
savings are offset by pressures arising from an income shortfall of £14k
arising from the NNDR pool.

Chief Executive (47) | New This month: Savings achieved by holding the Head of Marketing &
Communications post vacant from December 2010 until the end of the
year and the Senior Marketing Officer post vacant whilst the occupant is
acting up looks to save £57k. Other savings have been identified from car
allowances and postage totalling £4k. This will be offset by the agency
cost of backfilling the Media Officer post at c£11k for the rest of this
financial year and agency cost incurred earlier in the year at c£6k.
Previously Reported: The recruitment to a post at a lower grade than
previous employee, a vacancy for 1 month and a member of staff on
maternity leave result in staff budget savings of £14k. An increase in the
level of advertising income saves £4k. An ongoing Corporate pressure
relating to subscriptions is now reflected here £32k. This will need to
addressed as part of the 2011/12 budget build. This has been partially
mitigated by vacancies in the Chief Executive’s Office currently being held
for the year equivalent to 0.6 FTE

Resources (314) | New This month: The latest estimate of Land Charge income due for
10/11 based on current activity levels indicates an improved position of
c£11k. As part of the September budget monitoring exercise a forecast
underspend of £318k was reported for Corporate Repairs. Information
received as part of this month’s budget monitoring exercise reduces
projected underspend to £238k. This gives an adverse movement of
£80k. This has been offset by: A review of the lease agreement by the
appropriate service manager has identified that we have been able to
offset the increased pressure against Age Concern reported last month by
re-charging the cost of utilities to the tenant (£20k); Reduced costs
relating to the industrial starter units (£7k); in-year saving on 2 posts due
to be vacated during the final quarter of the year (£12k).

Previously Reported: Renegotiation of the 2010/11 contract for the on-
line legal reference library is due to glean a reduction in spend of £17k
from that originally quoted. Negotiations are ongoing for future years and
therefore the financial impact is not yet known. A business rates
revaluation on Landmark Place instigated for 2009/10 onwards has

Performance & Financial Reporting/2010-11/0&S 20-01-2011

Page 58



resulted in a one-off backdated credit for the years 2005/06 to 2008/09 to
the value of £226k (net of fees). The increase in the annual cost for the
Age Concern accommodation originally highlighted as a risk last month
has now been confirmed as a £20k increase on the original estimate.
This totals an on-going pressure of £60k that will need to be addressed as
part of the budget build process. Other minor variances saving £2k make
up the overall change. Extended unpaid leave agreed for a member of
staff until the end of the year will save £13k.

A refund for the overpayment of childcare vouchers during 09/10 has
resulted in a one-off saving of £19k. In addition a favourable outcome in
respect of an estimated accrual made at the end of 2009-10 for
outstanding childcare voucher and recruitment advertising costs has
resulted in a one-off saving of £31k; The latest estimate from RBWM in
respect added years pensions liabilities for former employees indicates a
potential overspend of £4Kk, this position will continue to be reviewed. The
latest review of Corporate Repairs Schedule is showing a further
reduction in spend of £77k. A reduction in training spend, saving £1k and
income from meeting refreshments saving £11k. Increased one-off costs
relating to the Asset Management Review will amount to £18k.
Recognition of a £180k council wide procurement savings target will be
offset by savings being identified across all directorates. To date
reductions in energy costs already reflected in front line outturns will be
further supplemented by other contractual reductions including postage
and telephony. This is partially offset by the use one-off monies originally
set aside to employ an Energy Manager £49k which will now be held
vacant for the remainder of the year. A Budget realignment exercise in
respect of procurement savings will take place as part of the 2011/12
Budget to ensure the ongoing savings are allocated across all
directorates.

Reduced staffing costs of £13k along with anticipated under spends on
running costs of £74k are offset by a shortfall in budgeted income of
£19k. A total of 12.5 vacancies across the department, some filled by
temporary staff, generate a net saving of £139k. A saving of £241k is
expected against the Corporate Repairs budget by restricting
maintenance to essential items only and by re-procuring support
contracts, e.g. water hygiene inspection. These savings are offset by the
following pressures:

Reduced level of eligible salary recharges to the capital programme of
£207k due to the reduced work on capital and other projects. A one-off
pension charge relating to 09/10 for £46k has arisen following the late
receipt of an invoice in respect of the added years pension liability for
former employees. The anticipated loss of rental income from empty
commercial properties and industrial starter units will result in a pressure
£75k. The reduced demand for land charge searches arising from the
economic downturn together with recent legislative changes announced in
respect of property searches have identified a total budget pressure of
£58k. The legislative element estimated at £20k will be on-going for
future years;

The latest estimated cost of accommodation and running costs for Age
Concern in Slough is highlighting an overspend of £40k.

Savings have arisen from the vacancy of Deputy Borough Secretary to be
held for the year of £95k offset by the cost of interim arrangements for the
same period of £65k. The review of supplies and services expenditure
within Corporate Property & Valuation has saved £10k. The balance of
overspend will be managed within the cash envelope to give a breakeven
position.

Total Variance

(304)

Performance & Financial Reporting/2010-11/0&S 20-01-2011

Page 59




Housing Services

Appendix B (Cont.)

Service Area

Total
Variance
£000

Explanation

Ex People 1% (Slough) - balances

(1,215)

Following the transfer of the People 1t (Slough) ALMO back in-house, the
cash balance from the ALMO has been transferred into the HRA. This
variance represents the movement of this cash into HRA balances upon
closure of the bank account.

Previously reported : (£1,215K)— No change from previous month

Housing Repairs Fund

280

The allocation of the management element of the Council’s repairs
contract with Interserve - contractual commitment of £455k for 2010/11.
Reduced requirement for the ‘guaranteed sum’ element of the contract
(indexation and number of properties) (-£221K). Other minor increases
(£46K).

Previously reported : + £280K — No change from previous month

Dwelling Rents

(267)

Due to the late release of the Housing Subsidy determination, the
increase in average rent of approximately 1% was not factored into the
base budget. This variance represents the increase in dwelling rents
expected due to this rise.

Previously reported : (£267K) — No change from previous month

Non Dwelling Rents

(75)

A number of capital receipts below the council’s de minimus relating to
disposal of garage sites have been identified, giving rise to additional non
dwelling income.

Previously reported : (£75K) — No change from previous month

Staffing Costs (Housing Service;

Lettings; Environmental/Grounds
Maintenance/ Other Management
General)

200

Details of the proposed new structure for Housing Services have been
published. This variance represents the net effect of any termination costs
that will be incurred in year, offset against savings from posts becoming or
being held vacant throughout the year. The impact of these movements
has been felt across a number of budget lines, with the majority of costs
hitting Housing Services.

Previously reported : + £200K — No change from previous month

Housing Subsidy

(44)

A net difference of £44K to the projected negative subsidy payable in the
current year. This emanates largely from changes in stock nos. and the
portfolio’s archetype breakdown. The Council has to pay subsidy on the
basis that housing income exceeds expenditure.

Previously reported : (£44K) — No change from previous month

Interest on Balances

128

Reduced income from interest on internal funds due to interest rates
remaining at a lower level than originally budgeted for. Economic
indicators and the Bank of England Monetary Policy Committee suggest
that there will be no upward movement of rates in the short term and
therefore the forecast for this income has been reduced to reflect this
trend. .

Previously reported : + £128K — No change from previous month

Housing Service (excluding staffing
costs)

(202)

Following a thorough review of the HRA. a number of budgets associated
with the former People 1% organisation and the reintegration into SBC are
no longer required (e.g. External Audit Fees; Management Board
Administration; and Housing Futures). In addition, the review has
identified a number of other HRA budgets earmarked for general running
costs which are not committed to be spent in year. These have therefore
been removed.

Previously reported : (£202K) — No change from previous month

Utilities

70

Budget correction required following the review of all HRA budgets. Actual
utility costs in prior year were found to be higher then budgeted for in
2010/11 and, therefore, the budget has been increased to reflect this.

Performance & Financial Reporting/2010-11/0&S 20-01-2011

Page 60




Previously reported : + £70K — No change from previous month

Revenue Contribution to Capital
Qutlay (RCCO)

106

The HRA Capital Programme and associated financing has been
reviewed in recent months to ensure that prudent financing is in place for
all Capital schemes. The increase in RCCO represents the amount
required to fund the scheme following the loss of ALMO Capital Funding
in year. Given the level of balances held in the HRA it is deemed prudent
to fund elements of the scheme from revenue as opposed to unsupported
borrowing.

Previously reported : NIL £106K. Adverse movement in comparison
to previous month

Other variances under £50K (net)

(123)

Variance is the net of the following movements:

e -£36k variance against charges for services and facilities
representing the actual income received for leasehold service
charges. All charges have now been billed in full

e  (£65k) recharges, being the sum of £15K charges to capital
schemes, and £50K reduction in recharges no longer required.

e  +£25k requirement for additional budget for cleansing of HRA
shops

e (£50k) additional running costs budgets found not be committed
during budget review

o +£3k interest receivable on Sale of Council Houses identified in
previous months

Previously reported : (£123K) — No change from previous month

Total Variance

(1,142)

Performance & Financial Reporting/2010-11/0&S 20-01-2011

Page 61




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



0 (62) v. €01 €01 399 lejol
0 (€€) 19 (0[0) 00l Juswdojana doINIBS (V 3LON) uoisiroid podsuel| ynoA
0 801 (£12) (gze) (gze) Juswdojana( doIAIBS SISEM [l4pueT]
0 (c1) 1 %4 Ge Ge puewsg saoedg uadQ % sMied
0 0 6 6 6 sannenu| Aoljod | (AesinN weyxapn) Apisgns daisyIopn JO SsoT
0 (€) A 0l 0l saAljenu| Adljod Ao1j0d siojeladQ aulH ajenlld - Buisuaol
0 (0}) 0c 0€ 0¢€ saAleniu| Adljod (V 3.LON) uoneuipiood pooyinoqybiaN
0 (2) I G G |enjoeJjuo) 90IAJ8S |0JJU0) }sed
0 (¥) 9 ol ol |enjoeJjuo) 90IAIBG sleljsibay - sjuswabueny juior
0 (29) el 0/l 0/l paT puewsaq (30u) JedA Juauind wouy sainssaid BulobuQ
0 0 cl cl cl pa7 puewsg (sinoy jo 1o )uonesibel sboq Aens
0 (9) Ll Ll Ll pa7 puewsg uspiem jewiuy
0 (0}) 0c o€ o€ pa7 puewsg Juswiadlojuz Buied |IAID
LININNOYIANSG 17IN9 8 N3O
0 (159) 68¢ o6 o6 gMI [ejol
0 (8) 8 Gl Gl JjuswdolaAaq 921AI9S (8ABS 0} }SOAU|) Atelqi [esjua) Jo uoisinoideay
0 %4 (£1) (o¥) (o¥) Juswdolaaa aoInIBS BuisnoH aie) enxg
(malney
0 (gg) /1l 0S 0S juswdojarag 99IAI8S Aseiqi jo ped) sinoH bBuiuadQ Aseiqi
0 (802) 6yl 1G€ 1G€ puewsg sabexoed ale) pa puewa(
0 (¥) € 9 9 juswdojarag aoInIBS Buntiopn aliqojn
0 (62) 34 0§ 0§ juswdojara aoInIBS 434410\ DHO
0 (1) 14 04 0. juswdojara aoInIBS LHIND - s1abeue aieQ g
0 (¥9) L€ G/ G/ JjuswdoaAag adIAeS | ubisapal 92IA1as BAsIyde 0} Jabeuel Josloid
0 (1p) e 08 08 Juswdolanag a21M8S | sebeyoed a1ed 8anpal 0} S18210 BuIMaINSY ¢
0 (€1) 8 0c 0c saAlenu| Adljod ajua) jesq ybnols
alua)
(Z11) €8 002 00z |enjoeliuon) 80Inosay As|bueT 1o} 126png apiroidey
SjuswWjlWWod
(gg) 2 /S /G pa puewaq |enjoe - sabeyoed aie) pa] puewsaq
ONIFFTTIM 8 ALINNNWOD
(965) £9¢ 656 656 SO3 |ejol
(G2) 14 0§ 0§ aAle|siba sinoy Buluado 82IAJ8S UINOA
(191) 0 191 191 pa7 puewaq ainn4 ay} 1o} sjooyds bulpjing
(062) 06¢ 089 089 pa7 puewsQ s}ebpng juswade|d
(€2) 1 %4 14 14 pa7 puewsg @o1nIag Alosiapy uoldopy
(¢2) 0 cl cl pa7 puewsg wea] |eba7 julor - Juswabueury juior
(G2) 14 0§ 0§ pa7 puewsg 90IAISS JOBJUOD
S3JIAYIS S.NJAUATIHO ® NOILvYONa3
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
v-4 g-0 o) g A4
alep 0} juadg
aouelep juadg aq 0}
|elol alep 0} Uimolo pajoadx3y paalby adA|
snielg pajewnsy aouelep |enjoy ymolo) ymolo) ymolo) apil |esodoid
9 xipuaddy L1-010Z sisAjeuy yimouo [ejuswiedesq

Page 63



0 (921°1) 6v.'C GZ6'C GZ6'C _ HLMO¥9 TVIOL
©
0 0 €el'l €el'l €el'l _ ajesodio) |ejol %u
@)
0 0S 0S 0S puewsaq ainssald joloy xe] Aleuonalosiql oo
0 0 0 0 puewsg YIMoIH SPIA |IPUNOH
0 €¢s €¢s €¢s anenu| Aoljod Juswabeue Ainseas |
0 051} 0S1L°) 051} annemu| Aoljod d¥IN 8 swweiboid [ende) Buipung
0 0 0 0 pa7 puewsg Saljlioud Jaquisi\ Jaylo
0 0 0 0 pa puewaq Buimouiog |eyded ainin4 jo Buipun4
[ 31Vi0dd09|
0 0 0. 0. 0. _ aviieiol
. Namws 0 0 0. 0. 0. pa puewsg uolsnjou| %@ JuswdojaAsq dlWouU0o]
[ LNINdOT3A3A ® LNIWIAOULNI|
0 0 0€l 0€l 0€l _ S$92IN0SdY |e}o|
0 0 oLl oLl oLl pa7 puewsQ Sjuay |eldJswwo)
0 0 0z 0z 0z aAle|siba] Aiejoloag ybnoiog
S33d¥NOS3y
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
v-4 g-0 o) g A4
alep 0} juadg
aouelep juadg aq 0}
|elol alep 0} ymous pajoadx3y paalby adA|
snjeis pajewnsy aouelep |enjoy ymolo) ymolo) ymolo) apil |esodoid

9 xipuaddy

L1-01L0Z sisAjeuy yimouo ejuawiiedag



LL/LO/YL six'fomeoxidg

Ll (eg) (09) ((05) Aousioyg (spunj 90| "S) @ouUBUSJUIEBIN SPUNOID
L (€1) (02) (02) Aousioyg VdH 0} abieyoay
L (1) (02) (02) Aousioyg [endeD/\yH 0} sebieyoay
8l (2€) (53) ((g9) Aousioyg aoueusjulely syled
INIINNOYIANS 1711N9 ® NIIFAIO
(se) 98l (z20°1) (262°1) (ze2't) gMO [ejoL
0 (ge) (s¢) (ge) uononpay 8dIAes 1MSD -1S0d 3IOAA [elo0g 8j8leq
0 (Gov) (S9v) (Gov) AydeiBowag YosagmaN Jo uoisiroidas sy} jo uopsjdwo)
[ 0 (g) (09) QwWooU| |euoiippy awoou| 8)idsal JO MBIASY ASUO|\ J0H anjep
Buinl Juspuadapul
(21) (2£€) (0z¢g) (002) uonoNpay 92IAI8S @dUBYUS Jayuny O} aled aAljeulalje apiroid 0) anunuo)d
0 0 0 (09) Aousioyg uofjeuliojsuel | aled |el00g Jnpy
¥S (92) (ogt) (ogl) Aousioyg Aeiqiq [eua) Jo uoisiroiday
0 (o0}) (o01) (o01) Aousioyg Heys Aousby jo asn paonpay
pujuies|
Buojey] ur s}so0o Bulyoes) pue ulwpe 8onpal pue
9l 0 (91) (91) AousIo1y3 SINOY J0)N} [BUOISSSS B|qIXS]} 9SBSIOU| O} SABS 0} }SOAU|
8G (z9) (oL1) (oL1) Aousioyg $82IAI8S Ajlunwiwio) Jo ainjoniisay
0c 0 (02) (02) Aousioyg 8INjonJisay sedIAIeS JINpY
L (2) (¥1) (ze) Aousioyg S[99YAA UO S[eaj JO MaIASY ASUOIN J0} Bnjep
[44 0 (z¥) (¥2) Aousioyg waysAg Bullojuoy [[e) puaix3
ONIFFET13M 8 ALINNININOD ©
()
L6l (9g1°1) (ecet) (eeet) so3a el P
o
ol (02) (og) (0€) uononpay 8oIAeg suolss|wpy |ooyds Alewld
0 (82) (82) (82) uononpay 8dIMeg Hoddng ulwpy ul uolonpay
0 (ov) (%) (ov) uononpay 8dIAeg Spun4 spJepueig JO JUSWIBSA|OASP UON
00L (s2) (621) (s21) uodNpPay 8oIAIBS aunjonyisay juswanoidu] |00yYos
0 (€2) (€2) (€2) uononpay 8dIAIeg JOSIAPY 6| - ¥7| 8w Led o} uoponpay
S)}sod boud s|jooyos
0 (69) (69) (69) uononpay aoIAIag Buinoidw| - S}oBIUOD WIB] PaXxi4 JO |emausal-uoN
19 (egl) (002) (002) uononpay 8dIASg pund s,uaJpjiyd ssoioe Bulpunj malrsy
0 (9€2) (9€2) (9€2) uononpay 8dIAeg Hoddns 8ouepuUsyY @ JNOIABYSY JO MIIASY
0 (€2) (1) (€2) uolonNpay 82IAI8S Jabeue Absjens Alewld- }sod juedea syeleq
0c (L) (19) (19) Aousioyg Aousidiy3 % g uoisnjou]
0 (G9) (s3) (G9) Aousioyg S92IAMI9g Bulislso pue uodopy Jo uolesijeuoljey
0 (€6) (€6) (€6) Aousioyg Juesb ogy s|ooyds papuaix3 asliin
0 (002) (002) (002) Aouaroyg uonenofsu-a1 J0BJUOD [00YOS O] SWOH
0 (09) (09) (09) Aousioyg  Ajligesig ynm uaip(iyg - sjuswsdeld Ajoyny Jo IO
S3JIAY3S S.NIHATIHO ® NOILYONA3
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
v-4 a-0 0] 3| v
ajep 0} paAsiyoy
aouelep pansIyoy 8q 0}
|lejol ajep 0} sbuineg pajoadx3 paalby adA)
snjejg pajewnsy aoueleA lenjoy Buinesg Buineg sbuineg o)L [esodoid
9 xijpuaddy 11-010Z SsisAjeuy sbuiaeg jejuswiiedag




LL/LOPL

snjeis

six'fomeoxidg

(&)
(@)
Q)

0 [45 (¥¥) (92) (92) uoiRoNpay 8dIAIeS Bulures] 3sileroadg
0 (3% (¥1) (/9) (29) uolPNPay 9IAI8S 0Q} (921A19S JO 81njoNlI}sal) SanuaAay
09 0 zZ¢ Z¢€ (82) QwWooU| |euoiippy (sebueyd S0 UN0I Ul 8SE8IdU|) SONUBASY
0 6v (99) (s01) (go1) uopenobaN [enjoeuo) poddng [9gaIS O 1SOD Ul UoiONpal - 9SO/ JUBWIND0Id
0 8 (1) (02) (02) awoou| [euolippy|  (swoodul |,ppe) sjuswAedianQ Jo Alanoday - syjausg
0 0 (0€) (og) (0€) uondNpay ddIAIBS J921J0 Adljod- 3sod Jueden dj9leQ
0 34 (62) (09) (09) SWodU| [euolippy Aoeinooe panoidwl sjyauag buisnoH
0 0S8 0 (09) (09) Aousioyg sbulneg juswainoold
0 Ge 0 (G2) (g2) Adusioiy3 uondwnsuod ABiaus aonpal - Ajljiqeuleisng
0 0€ (01) (o¥) (ov) Aousioyg JueJb Jo [eAoway - ASY U0o]
0 0 (0€) (og) (0¢€) Aousioyg }sod J9ojO SoUBWIOUSd JUBOEA
0 0 (02) (02) (02) Aousiog| selousioly3 buidesyasnoH - a1pua) 82IAI8S Jawolsn)
sjabpng buluies |
0 8z (6) (2¢) (2¢) Aousioiy3 ssosoe N4A Buipinoid juswainooid sAlO8YyS  BION
Aoueoea-wes ] Buluies|
0 (g1) (s1) (g1) Aousioy3g isijeroads @ ojesodio) UIYPM UILPY Ul UORONpaY
uonesiiin
juelb paseasoul pue SUORNQUIUOD 10}08S AJBJUN|OA
6E (g1) (zg) (z9) Aousioiy3 ur uoponpal - uoisnou] ¥ juswdojeAsg  Olwouod]
SSO7 %R JuUswaind0id
0 (02) (02) (02) Aousioyg ‘Bwoy ulypm uoponpal yejs Alejunjon swiy Hed
IN3IINJOTIA3A ® LNIINIAOXUINI
89 (¢6€) (L9v) (L9v) $921N0SaYy _th%
14 (G1) (19) (19) uondNpay ddIAIBS S92IAI9S [eba) Jo malnal WA
0 (09) (09) (09) uondNpay ddIAIBS LS| Mma1nal Asuoly Joj snjep
0 (o0}) (o01) ((o01) uondNpay ddIAIBS (W 0} 8A0W) 92IAIBS JO MBIASY - ||0JAed '8 HH
0 (112) (112) (112 Aousioyg 90IAISG SdueUIH BY} JO uolesijeljua)
0 oy oy 0¥ Aousioyg Je3 \ Mojjed - suolds|g
0 (09) (09) (09) Aousioyg (Buines g e aq p|noys) saoinag Apadold Jo mainay
[44 (2) (62) (62) Aousioyg 196png Aoue)nsuods / Buluies] uj uoonpay
S$304N0S3d
0 98 (s61) (182) (182) 399 |ejol
0 € (2) (o1) (01) SWodU| [euolippy sabJeyd Jo malAal - d)sep Aving
poddns
0 0 (09) (0%) (09) uononpay 89IA18S Aoueynsuod aonpal-poddns Buiuueld ybnojs jo pesH
0 0 (op) (9%) (op) uolPNpPay 9IAI8S }sod Jssuibu3 Jodsuel] Juedea 8818
0 0 (02) (02) (02) uolPNpPay 9IAI8S Aoueynsuod Juswabeue|) podsuel] adnpay
0 0 (G2) (S2) (G2) SWOodU| [euolippy ssed a)sem ,siapel] [lews
0 00l 0 (o01) (oo1) SWodU| [euolippy 9JIAISS UOIO9|0D 3ISEAA dpel] JO deg
0 0 (o1) (o1) (o1) SWOodU| [euolippy SUIOJU| s)led ul siaped |
0 0 (00l1) (001) (00l1) uojjenjobap |enjoesuo) Bau joes3U0D saleq Aleuoissaouo)
0 Ll (€€) (09) (09) uonenobaN [enjoeljuod awayog sbumaT buisnoH
0 (€8) 191 0S¢ 0S¢ Aousioyg aoueusjulel\ skemybiH
0 0 °14 14 14 Kouaioy3 ueld [sAel L
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
V-9 g0 o] 9 v
ajep o} paAaIyoy
aoueleA paAaIyoy aq 0}
jelol ajep 0} sbuines pajoadx3 paalby adA
pajewns3y aoueleA lenjoy Buineg Buineg sbuines 9|} |esodoid




LL/LOPL

six'fomeoxidg

Page 67

(¥0€) LSLL (S¥0‘p) (s6.L'S) (L6%'S) SONIAVS TVLOL
(6€€) 688 (068) (6LL°1) (ovv'L) ajesodio) |ejo
PREEEe (6c€) /688 (068) [(622°1) (orv'L) [ fouepyg| 1eyQ / Bulyoid-ay ende) / Juswabeuey Anseas
3LV30dd0D
0 0 (68) (68) (68) X390 lejol
0 (82) (82) (82) uoponpay 90IAISS Buyels sonpal - swwo)
0 (9) (g) (9) uoloNpay 82IAI8S sjo8loud diod juaziyio wwo)H
0 (ov) (ov) (ov) Aousioy3 VO - suope||eoue) suolduosang
alsymss|e quQ juedeAa
0 (91) (91) (91) Aousoy3 ejejep-A1sAllop 80IAIBS [9pOWSY - SO S,9AINOSXT
JAILNOAX3 43IHD
09 (143 (022) (s6S) (559) aziieol
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
v-4 -0 2 g v
ajep 0} paAsIyoY
aouelep pansIyoy aq 0}
jelol ajep 0} sbuines pajoadx3 paalby adA
snjejs pajewnsy aoueleA |lenjoy Buineg Buineg sbuines 9|} |esodoid




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Departmental In Year Reductions Analysis 2010-11 Appendix D
Proposal Title Savings Saving Saving Actual Variance Estimated Status
Type Agreed Expected Savings to date Total
to be Achieved Variance
Achieved to date
A B C C-B B-A
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
REVENUE REDUCTIONS
EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S SERVICES
Young People Substance Misuse Partnership ABG (10,246) (10,246) (6,831) 3,415 0
Young Peoples Substance Misuse ABG (14,754) (14,754) (9,836) 4,918 0
School Development Grant ABG (400,000) (400,000) (348,000) 52,000 0
Positive Activities for Young People ABG (220,000) (220,000), (220,000) 0 0
Teenage Pregnancy ABG (44,535) (44,535) (29,690) 14,845 0
Children's Social Care Workforce ABG (13,950) (13,950) (13,950) 0 0
Care Matters White Paper ABG (34,452) (34,452) (22,968) 11,484 0
Child Death Review Processes ABG (5,907) (5,907) (5,907) 0 0
LSC Staff Transfer: Special Purpose Grant ABG (34,400) (34,400) (22,933) 11,467 0
Harnessing Technology Grant (112,596) (112,596) (112,596) 0 0
Total Education & Children's Services (890,840) (890,840) (792,711) 98,129 0
COMMUNITY & WELLBEING
Carers ABG (25,924) (25,924) (25,924) 0 0
Learning & Disability Development Fund ABG (8,146) (8,146) (8,146) 0 0
Local Involvement Networks ABG (7,000) (7,000) (7,000) 0 0
Mental Capacity Act & Independent Mental Capacity ABG (15,000) (15,000) (15,000) 0 0
Mental Health ABG (66,619) (66,619) (66,619) 0 0
Migrant Impact Fund - Migrant Resource Centre Grant (76,875) (76,875) 76,875 0
Migrant Impact Fund - Migrant Resource Centre b/fwd Grant (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 0 0
AIDS Support Grant Grant (13,000) (13,000) (13,000) 0 0
Stroke Grant Grant (4,500) (4,500) (4,500) 0 0
Delete admin support post and office supplies. Core Budget (62,000) (62,000) (62,000) 0 0
Continuing Healthcare Core Budget (25,000) 0 0 0 25,000
Grants to not-for-profit organisations Core Budget (75,000) (75,000) (75,000) 0 0
Libraries strategy (stock, holding vacancies) Core Budget (35,000) (35,000) (35,000) 0 0
Cultural Services (Creative academy support) Core Budget (9,000) (9,000) (9,000) 0 0
Cultural Services (West Wing Income) Core Budget (30,000) (30,000) (30,000) 0 0
Cultural Services (Reducing maternity cover). Core Budget (5,000) (5,000) (5,000) 0 0
Community Services restructure Core Budget (10,000) (10,000) 0 10,000 0
Transport Core Budget (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) 0 0
Sports Coaching programme Core Budget (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) 0 0
Long Life Learning Core Budget (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 0 0
Relinquish part of one-off monies bid re safeguarding Grant (42,000) (42,000) (42,000) 0 0
Total Community & Wellbeing (605,064) (580,064) (493,189) 86,875 25,000
GREEN & BUILT ENVIRONMENT
Environmental Damage Regulations ABG (319) (319) (319) 0 0
Pitt review implementation — Surface Water ABG (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) 0 0
Management Plans
Stronger Safer Communities ABG (34,287) (34,287) (34,287) 0 0
Road Safety Grant ABG (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) 0 0
Climate Change ABG (22,500) (22,500) (22,500) 0 0
Housing and Planning Delivery Grant Grant (450,000) (450,000) (450,000) 0 0
Migrant Impact Fund - Housing Improvements Grant (75,000) (75,000) (75,000) 0 0
Total Green & Built Environment (646,106) (646,106) (646,106) 0 0
RESOURCES
Resources - Support Services Core Budget |  (199,500)  (199,500)  (199,500)| 0l 0 GREEN |
Total Resources (199,500) (199,500) (199,500) 0 0
IMPROVEMENT & DEVELOPMENT
Adult Social Care Workforce ABG (28,478) (28,478) (28,478) 0 0
Economic Assessment Duty ABG (29,750) (29,750) (29,750) 0 0
Improvement & Development Projects Core Budget (250,000) (250,000), (250,000) 0 0
Total Improvement & Development (308,228) (308,228) (308,228) 0 0
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Prevent ABG | (125,000)  (125,000)  (125,000) 0| 0 GREEN |
Total Chief Executive (125,000) (125,000) (125,000) 0 0
CORPROATE
Local Authority Business Growth Incentives Scheme LABGI | (112,000)  (112,000)  (112,000)| 0| 0
Balance of Concessionary Fares funds not allocated Grant | (28,000)| (28,000)| (28,000)| 0 0
Total Corproate (140,000) (140,000) (140,000) 0 0
TOTAL REVENUE REDUCTIONS (2,914,739)  (2,889,738) (2,704,734) 185,004 25,000

Page 69



Departmental In Year Reductions Analysis 2010-11

Appendix D

Proposal Title Savings Saving Saving Actual Variance Estimated Status
Type Agreed Expected Savings to date Total
to be Achieved Variance
Achieved to date
A B C C-B B-A
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
CAPITAL REDUCTIONS
GREEN & BUILT ENVIRONMENT
Integrated Transport Block Grant (360,000)  (360,000)  (360,000)| 0| 0] GREEN
Road Safety Capital Grant (47,000)| (47,000)| (47,000)| 0 0 GREEN
Total Green & Built Environment (407,000) (407,000) (407,000) 0 0
TOTAL CAPITAL REDUCTIONS (407,000) (407,000) (407,000) 0 0
TOTAL REDUCTIONS (3,321,739)  (3,296,738) (3,111,734) 185,004 25,000

Page 70



AGENDA ITEM 5

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24" January 2011
CONTACT OFFICER: Julie Evans, Strategic Director Resources
(for all enquires) 01753 875300
WARD(S): All
PORTFOLIO: Leader, Finance and Strategy — Councillor Anderson
PART |
KEY DECISION

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2011/12 TO 2014/15

1. Purpose of Report

This report sets out the latest projections of the Council’s Revenue budget for the
period 2011/12 to 2014/15 following the previous Cabinet report of 13" December
2010 and the Policy, Performance and Review Group (PPRG) on 10th January
2011.

2. Recommendations

The Cabinet is requested to resolve:

(a) That the current council projected revenue budget for 2011/12 to 2014/15 be
noted.

(b) That the savings plan for 2011/2012 as set out in Appendix A be confirmed and
progress to date be noted.

(c) That areas of savings allocation for elements of support services as summarised
in para 5.7, be considered and agreed, and that officers be requested to
implement them with immediate effect where possible.

(d) That the adverse impact of the CSR settlement on some previously agreed ECS
savings be noted.

3. Community Strategy Priorities

The Revenue and Capital budgets are the Council’s financial plans for the
forthcoming year. As such, the budgets will allocate resources to enable the delivery
of the Council’s Community Strategy Priorities through the individual departmental
and service plans.

Page 71



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

Other Implications

Financial Implications

These are contained within the body of the report. The outcome of the
comprehensive spending review has had a small adverse impact on previously
reported forecasts in relation to the scale of the funding cuts. However, the impact is
mitigated to some degree in the short term by greater than expected success in the
agreed areas for savings. It was planned any additional savings secured would
offset requirements of CSR in future years, therefore the significance of the scale of
the public sector spending cuts will have an adverse impact in future years for
Slough.

Further, some £270k savings agreed as part of the £4.423m previously committed
in 2011/2012 as a result of the PPRG process in 2010/2011 have been
compromised by unexpected funding cuts to specific areas of proposed savings in
Education and Children’s services. This provides total savings therefore of £4.153m
for 2011/12

To date £5.962m of savings have been identified and agreed subject to consultation
via a combination of cross cutting corporate initiatives, management reductions, and
savings secured from back office functions and support service areas. Full details
are provided in Appendix A. A further £1.166m savings are identified for
consideration in para 5.7.

Human Rights Act & Other Legal Implications

The Council has various legal responsibilities around financial matters but, of
primary importance: the Council must not plan to spend more than the resources it
has available to it in any one year — the Council must set a ‘balanced budget’.

The 2003 Local Government Bill places a duty on the Section 151 officer to
consider the robustness of budget estimates, the adequacy of reserves and the
affordability of its capital programme in preparing its budget for the year.

There are no other legal or Human Rights Act implications.
Workforce

If agreed, the savings options to be considered will involve a combination of the
deletion of vacant posts alongside voluntary redundancy/ early retirements on the
ground of efficiency and reductions in working hours arising from expression of
interest submitted by staff under the workforce planning exercise currently
underway. Compulsory redundancies may be considered as a last resort, the
Council will ensure that HR policies are applied to minimise the impact of
redundancies and will look for redeployment opportunities for affected staff.

Supporting Information

Members will recall from the budget report presented to Cabinet on 9 November
2010 that the forecast outcome of the 2010 Comprehensive Spending Review
(CSR) for local government did not alter the Councils 2011/12 — 2014/15 medium

Page 72



5.2

5.3

term financial strategy of achieving savings of circa £19m over the next 4 years.
The settlement has now been confirmed and overall the figure of cuts is marginally
lower but with greater emphasis on the earlier years. These higher than expected
cuts over the next 2 years are expected to be offset by higher than targeted savings
in the key areas agreed (Appendix A).

The provisional grant settlement provides clarity on the levels of national grant we
can expect to receive for the next 2 years, although some elements of funding
(notably schools) provide only a one year settlement position. The model uses the
four year national picture presented in the CSR in October as the basis for
forecasting uncertainty in the future.

The remains some uncertainty with respect to elements of grant funding outside of
the CSR and we currently await confirmation of allocation from a number of
government departments (notably Home Office and DWP) Consequently this paper
provides members with progress against the savings targets and estimates of
savings requirements in the light of the information known to date.

Table 1: SBC Revenue Budget Projection 2011/12 to 2014/15
Slough BC Medium Term Financial Model - 2010/11 to

2014/15

Details Latest position post Finance Settlement
10/11  11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
102,39 103,97 108,09 102,392 102,97

Opening Budget 5 9 2 2 7

Inflation

Pay (Freeze 10/11 and 11/12) 600 (600) 600 1,000 1,200

Low Pay Protection (£250 annuall

increase) 0 150 (150) 0 0

NI Increase (Government state impact

will be minimised) 0 300 0 0 0

Prices 600 1,300 1,050 1,100 1,100

Total Inflation 1,200 1,150 1,200 2,300 2,300

Total Previously Agreed Growth 5,875 3,273 2,232 (211) 22

Total Previously Agreed Savings (4,051) (4,153) (1,835) (200) 0

Total New Savings mitigating cuts to

Public Sector Spending 0 (5,962) (1,436) 17 5

Page 73



Latest position post Finance Settlement
10/11  11/12 12/13 13/14  14/15
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Grants rolled in using Tailored 0 5,536
Distribution
0 783 0 0 0

Schools Development Grant ending
Total Pensions Adjustments 0 475 510 540 30
Capital Programme Adjustments (1,440)  (508) 734 0 0
Specific Grant & Transfer Adjustments 0 3,344 1,099 272 877
Council Tox Freeze Grant 0 (1,187) (1,187) (1.,187) (1,187)
New Homes Bonus (estimate) 0 (130) (260) (320) (520)

103,97 106,60 104,46 101,86 102,92
BUDGET REQUIREMENT 9 0 7 6 7
COLLECTION FUND 0 0 0 0 0
SPECIFIC GRANTS ROLLING INTO
FORMULA GRANT 5,536 5,488
FORMULA GRANT 56,756 51,713 46,640 51,607 48,510
COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT 47,223 47,860 48,817 49,794 50,789

103,97 105,11 100,94 101,40
TOTAL ESTIMATED FUNDING AVAILABLE 9 0 5 0 99,300
TOTAL BUDGET GAP 0 (1,491) (5,522) (486) (3,628)
Annual grant “CUTS” IMPACT (7,483)  (6,958)  (469) (3,623)
Cumulative grant Cuts Impact over (18533
period )

Reducing the future funding gap — progress to date

It can be seen that, primarily related to the CSR and other funding assumptions,
there remains a substantial funding gap for the period 2011/12 to 2014/15 that will
need to be managed. Securing these savings is critical in reducing the impact on
services of the challenging cuts in future years.

5.4  Good progress has been made against he first tranche of savings representing an
estimated savings value of £6.9million w.e.f. 15 April 2011 are set out in Appendix
A. The focus of the savings in line with Members requirements is focussed away
from customer facing front line services and requires reductions in corporate areas
such as management costs, and support services.

5.5 Internal procurement savings of £255k have been secured to date and included on
Appendices A as set out below.

Category Saving
Gas £100,000
Electricity £100,000
Stationery £45,000
Postal Services £10,000

Page 74



5.6

Procurement also provided services for a number of tenders during 10/11. The
savings arising from these activities underpin the savings in operational areas of the
Council enabling cost reduction whilst protecting and in many cases improving
service delivery.

The following summarises the proposed additional elements of savings
opportunities for 2 further support areas; Property Services (incorporating Facilities
Management & Procurement) and Finance.

(@) Finance estimated total saving value £383k
Key elements: The Finance service will be remodelled to secure a more
customer focussed commercial approach which reflects the needs of the
business. 11 Vacant posts will be deleted and some elements of the service
will transfer to the proposed transactional services centre.

(b) Property Services total savings value £783k
Key elements: The savings will be achieved by a combination of the deletion
of current vacant posts alongside significant reductions in service operational
costs as a result of the accommodation review. Resourcing the Housing
Capital programme via internal resources will provide alternative work for
some members of the internal team currently focussed primarily on corporate
repairs and renewals projects (an area of significantly reduced expenditure in
the light of accommodation changes and recent and planned capital
investment in new community facilities). Property Services will be refocused to
directly project manage the delivery of the capital programme and the council’s
asset management strategy.

Analyses proposed savings

Savings Proposed
2011/12
Overall Total
Area of Activity Saving Progress EOI's Other support
Year 1 £'000 £'000 £'000
Target 6,900
agreed to date (5,962)
Service areas:
Finance 383 0 383 383
Property Services Incorporating: 783 65 718 783
Assets & Property Management
Corporate Facilities Management
Procurement
Annual Contribution if agreed 1101
Value 11/12 825
Current target 6900
Additional requirement CSR 583
Revised Target 11/12 7483
Remaining Requirement by 1/04/2011 1491

5.7

As can be seen in the table above the proposals presented for consideration
represent total savings from these areas circa £1.16million and exceed the
required minimum of 20% for these areas. In line with Members direction, wherever
possible savings have been secured via voluntary expressions of interest, the

Page 75



5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

deletion of vacant posts and the removal of temporary staff. Taking into account
expressions of interest already agreed in these areas (£65k), the total savings
proposed reflect an additional annual contribution circa £1.1million savings on top of
the £5.9m already secured with a part year effect of £825k in 11/12. After taking into
account vacancies, fixed term contracts and temporary arrangements the proposal
reflects no net reduction in permanently occupied posts, however the
reconfiguration of services to meet current needs does carry an associated risk of
potential redundancy for the affected post-holders in the current roles.

If agreed, prior to implementation the detail of the above proposals will be subject to
the requisite consultation and impact assessment process.

Asset Management Review

The Council is currently undertaking a review of its Assets both land and premises
and trading functions which will be reported to Cabinet in February 2011. Land and
premises are being reviewed on the following basis:

Community Benefit

Revenue costs

Revenue generating opportunities

Alternative use to enhance community benefit
Disposable opportunities

The asset management review will also cover the Council looking to re-profile and
reduce the capital programme. In preparing the proposed revised capital
programme, departments and AMG have considered the overall capital strategy
and service priorities to enable delivery of the Council’s business plans and within
projected resources available, at a prudent and sustainable level. Council’s future
revenue business plans will also impact on the capital programme as any changes
to the service provision could result in either a capital asset being identified as
surplus to requirement and therefore potential additional capital receipt or
additional capital required to upgrade an asset to enhance the service provision.
These will also be considered and reviewed as part of the budget build process at
the cabinet meeting on 7™ February 2011 alongside the capital programme in order
to ascertain the requisite savings in capital financing requirements.

Review of Trading Functions

Those functions which currently trade and/or could increase trading are being
reviewed for;

¢ In house income generating opportunity

e Fees and charges review

e Arms length income generating opportunity — where this increases income to the
Council
It is anticipated the outcome of any fees and charges review will contribute to
the 12/13 forecast shortfall.

Page 76



5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

Review Specific Grants

The Council receives a substantial amount of funding through specific grant
regimes. The MTFS presented with this report reflects the current position in lost
grant income known at this time. However, it should be noted that a number of
significant grants (primarily education) have only been confirmed for a 12 month
period.

Reserves

SBC'’s general reserves are £5.4m. Drawing on reserves to fund any budget gaps is
a last resort and a clear and timely plan for their replenishment would need to be
agreed.

Inflation

The medium term financial plan includes provision for inflation based on
government estimates for CPI adjusted for economic analyst’s projections which
assumes an annual rate of 2.6% for the financial year 2011/12. The latest published
CPI rate for the year ending October 2010 indicates that CPI is currently running at
3.2% which is 0.6% above the estimated annual rate for 2011/12.

Whilst the latest rate of 3.2% is not necessarily reflective of the annual rate that will
prevail in 2011/12 it is worth noting that it has someway to drop to align itself to the
rate predicted by central government and economic analysts. Consequently the
actual rate of inflation will continue to be reviewed over the coming months and
should it remain higher than currently provided for in the budget any necessary
adjustments will be reflected and reported to members as appropriate. It is worth
noting that the current ‘gap’ of 0.6% equates to an additional cost of £300k.

Inflation Analysis [ 2011/12] 2012/13] 2013/14 | 2014/15
Estimated amended annual CPI inflation rate used in MTFP 2.6% 2.1% 2.2% 2.2%
Current annual CPI rate for year ending October 2010 3.2%

5.16

5.17

5.18

The Effect of the Decisions

Some of the savings proposed within this report would, if implemented, result in a
number of posts being deleted, and therefore there is the potential for
redundancies. In the event of any compulsory redundancies, the Council will
immediately implement a ‘redeployment process’ to try to find suitable roles for
affected staff. Dependent on decisions, officers will also consider whether there is
scope to apply for a direction from the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government to capitalise all redundancy costs incurred.

Risks
Budgets are necessarily based on assumptions about what will happen during the
next financial year; and therefore there is an inevitable risk that these assumptions

might be wrong.

The main foreseen risk is that the proposed savings are not delivered. In an attempt
to reduce this risk the budget will be closely monitored via the monthly financial

Page 77



management reports and updated budget information, including savings achieved,
will be reported to Cabinet throughout the financial year.

Comments of Other Committees

This report will be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 20"
January 2011. Any comments from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be
reported to Cabinet separately.

Conclusion

This paper sets out the latest assessment of the Council’'s Revenue Budget for the
years 2011/12 to 2014/15.

Appendices

Appendix A - Detail of £5.9m savings secured to date

Background Papers

‘I’ Agendas and Minutes from the Cabinet meetings held on 13" December and 9™
November 2010

Page 78



Appendix A

Progress to date year 1 Savings

Area of Activity Target |Notes Progress Savings Banked
Saving 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 | 2014/15
EOl's Other Total EOl's Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1. Reviewing the Council’s approach to income generation, cash and debt (750)|3 elements : Management of Old Debt, [Management of old debt: Bad-debt (536) (536) 0
management. Processes to improve collection rate  |write-off in progress to be completed by
(both of these enable us to reduce bad |31 December 2010. Recalculation of
debt provision). 3rd element is an provision to take place in January

invest to save project (fixed investment|2011. Collection of public sector aged
costs of £40k) seeking to improve our |debt (fully provided for). Saving
revenue generating opportunities. dependent on significant improvement
in collection.

Processes to improve collection
rate: Draft one of bad debt policy
currently under consultation. Processes
being reviewed and changed. Exploring
potential for an outside agency to
collect debt on our behalf. Outside
agencies will be conducting due
diligence of our systems during
December 2010.

Improve Revenue Generation:
Business cases for additional income
collection currently being drafted for
consideration by members prior to

6. obed

inclusion in 2011-12 budget
Sub total - reviewing the Council's approach to income generation, cash and debt management 0 (536) (536) 0 0 0 0 0
2. Reshaping our support services, separating our transactional from (2,500)|The EOI exercise has identified total Underway
professional/technical support services and realigning senior management savings of £1.878m. This comprises
in the process, securing a 20% overall cost reduction. £1.7m against the general fund and

£0.178m against the HRA. Of the
£1.7m general fund saving £1.205m is
attributable to support services over
two years with the balance of £0.495m
from front line services.

Management proposals currently under
formal consultation indicate a reduction
in the cost of senior management of
£726k. The savings are reflected
accross a number of departmental
savings proposals. Taking into account
the experossions of interest, vacancies
and the removal of temporary and fixed
term posts the proposals result in 2
potential redundancies.

Service area detail

Audit Risk and Insurance (102) (132) (234) 0 0 0
Legal 0 (227) (227) 0 0 0
HR (206) (37) (243) (20) 0 (20)
OTHER EOI - Support/Management (897) (115) (1,012) 0
Printing 0 (175) (175) 0
Policy, Performance & Learning Development (100) (198) (298) 0
Revenues & Payments (42) (65) (107) 0
Economic Development & Inclusion (131) (139) (270) 0
Customer Services 0 (397) (397) 0
IT (306) (253) (559) 0
Housing benefits (111) (190) (301) 0




08 abed

Communications & Marketing (22) 0
Finance 0
Property Services 0
Democratic Services
|Sub total - reshaping support services & management savings | (1,917) 0 (20)
3. Reviewing our assets. Reducing the cost of office accommodation NB £225k already included in £4.4m, |The tender process for the demolition 0
requirements, ensuring value for money in running costs of all Council not reallocated. Asset review currently |works of the annexe is underway.
buildings. underway and recommendations Separation of utilities is a positive
scheduled for January Cabinet position estimated cap cost £10k.
meeting. (alongside capital programme |Rateable value of the new building
reductions/property team savings). footprint provides estimated NNDR
reduction of £202k pa. £633k pa
revenue spend identified to date.
Further analyses currently underway.
4. Reviewing all major contracts and all commissioned services seeking a Includes all cross cutting corporate Current year concluded, open book 0
minimum 4% saving and securing a change to the basis of inflationary contract s negotiations and supplier e.g [negotiation process for 11/12 savings
increases. energy/utilities, telephony, catering. involving changes to significant
contracts underway.
5. Reducing, reshaping and changing, where possible, the way we finance Linked to capital programme, internal |Awaiting the outcome of the asset (31) (31)
our capital programme to reduce borrowing costs. borrowings and repackaging of existing |review/cap programme review.
debt.
6. Taking other opportunities across the Council to reduce staffing arising These rely on the business ability to Completed (495) 0
from expressions of interest. continue ahead of transformational
changes in next phase (2012/2013).
The EOI exercise has identified total
savings of
£1.878m. This comprises £1.7m
against the general fund and £0.178m
against the HRA. Of the £1.7m general
fund saving £1.205m is attributable to
support services over two years with
the balance of £0.495m from front line
services.
7. Review of the allocation of Voluntary Sector Grants with the intention of (385) (385)
only procuring services required on a commissioning basis.
8. Anticipated savings from the set up of the Transactional Services (1,000) (1,000)
Centre.
9. Review of Fees and Charges 0
[Total (2.412)] (1.416)]  (1.436)




AGENDA ITEM 6

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24" January 2011

CONTACT OFFICER: Trevor Roffe, Director of Property Services,
Neil Aves, Assistant Director, Housing Services

(For all Enquiries) (01753) 787594
WARD(S): All
PORTFOLIO: Neighbourhoods and Renewal — Councillor Swindlehurst
PART |
KEY DECISION

HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME - FUTURE STRATEGY AND DIRECTION

1. Purpose of Report

This report offers members the opportunity to review the priorities within the
Housing Capital Investment Programme in light of the closure of the Council’s
ALMO and the loss of the final tranche of Decent Homes capital funding and to
consider any strategic changes in the procurement or delivery of future work
programmes.

2. Recommendations

The Cabinet is requested to resolve:

(a) That the results of the Housing Capital Programme Option Appraisal process
be noted

(b) That the future housing capital programme be planned, procured and funded
based upon option six (para 7.5 refers) and

(c) That the additional funding requirement of £2.85M to fund the 2011-12 HRA
capital programme be met from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue
balances.(para 7.7 refers)

3. Community Strateqy Priorities

Celebrating Diversity, Enabling inclusion
Adding years to Life and Life to years

Being Safe, Feeling Safe

A Cleaner, Greener place to live, Work and Play
Prosperity for All

3.1 The council’s housing capital programme can contribute to each of the strategic
priorities as it continues to deliver decent homes for all and when considered
together with the estate improvement programme can give tenants a warm, safe
and clean home environment in which to prosper.

Page 81



5.1

5.2

5.3

Other Implications

(@) Financial

The financial implications associated with the proposed changes to the Housing
Capital Investment Strategy have been considered by the Housing Asset Strategy
Group and the Corporate Management Team. The options appraisal report makes
specific reference to the financial impact of each option against the sustainability
of the Housing Revenue Account. If members support the approval of option six
then the £2.85m funding requirement could be met from either the HRA revenue
balances or through additional prudential borrowing.

It is proposed that the Cabinet consider that the capital funding requirement of this
option be met from the HRA revenue balances. Through prudent management and
savings accrued by returning to in-house service delivery, the HRA is forecasting a
£10.5m surplus for 2010/11 and has identified funding of capital schemes as a key
growth area to use this surplus. The Government has announced that no
supported capital borrowing will be available for the majority of Councils, including
Slough for HRA capital schemes. Therefore it is preferable to pursue financing
options which reduces the need for unsupported borrowing. The ongoing costs of
borrowing both in terms of interest payable and Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP) costs are estimated at £271K per annum and will continue to affect the
HRA for the longer term (25 years) as well as having an impact on Prudential
Indicators. Whilst the HRA has the capacity to meet these costs from revenue it
appears both more prudent and affordable to fund capital investment from the
HRA revenue balances.

(b) Human Rights Act and other Legal Implications

There are no Legal or Human Rights Act implications.

Background

The Housing Investment Strategy over the past four years has primarily focused
on meeting the requirements of the Government’s Decent Homes standard
through the delivery of optimum volumes of internal and external packaged
improvement work across the Council’s housing stock. The priority sequencing of
this work was derived from the stock condition survey data based on property
investment needs; in addition to this the geographical sequencing was also
influenced by local priority considerations around the Indices of deprivation, crime
statistics and welfare adaptation priorities.

The Council was able to draw down the Government’s additional £45.4m funding
allocation to meet the Decent Homes standard after the ALMO was awarded the
Audit Commission’s 2 star quality standard in October 2007. However by this time
the Government had extended their original 2010 deadline for achieving the
Decent Homes standard to 2012 and as such altered the council’s funding profile
over this period.

The impact of this extension to the deadline meant the Council had to deliver a
larger programme of work than originally envisaged due to more properties
requiring investment work to meet the Decent Homes standard during the 2010 to
2012 period. Had the original funding been available to complete the programme

Page 82



54

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1.

6.2

by the end of 2010 the council would have made further savings against the
project management and contractor overhead costs.

The Council has also had to re-prioritise some of its financial resources within the
capital programme over and above the assumptions made by FD Savills Ltd (the
Council’s strategic advisors), in the original business plan, thus creating further
demands on the overall funding available to deliver decent homes, for example an
annual increase of £500k in aids and adaptation spend during 2006 to 2008 to
reduce the Council’s large waiting list, Housing IT project upgrade £700k, Digital
TV upgrade £800k and Building Regulation changes around gas and electrical
works, etc.)

A large scale Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU) procurement exercise
was undertaken in 2006 with the award of long-term partnering contracts for 3
successful constructors: Apollo, United House and lan Williams Ltd. Each
constructor has been working across the borough in geographical areas, project
managing optimum volumes of internal work packages (i.e. 8 to 10 homes per
week) that were derived from the SCS to ensure maximum value for money from
the programme.

The optimum sequencing of the work meant that a typical internal package of work
could include elements that had already failed the Decent Homes standard (e.g.
Kitchen and a bathroom) and other elements that were going to fail during the 5
year programme (e.g. boiler, electrics or windows, etc) or in some cases in
subsequent years. Our assessment looked at the age, condition and cost of this
additional work required in the near future to determine whether it should be
brought forward. Thus optimising the use of resources to do the full volume of
work per property at the same time.

The effect of packaging the work in this more holistic way has resulted in greater
savings per property as well as enabling a greater volume of investment work to
be completed in a shorter period of time. It could also be said that it has helped to
minimise the disruption whilst maximising the benefit of the improvement work to
tenants due to one package of work rather than several across a number of years.

Impact of the Investment Strateqy

When the Council was requested to consider the Government changes to
extending the decent homes deadline to 2012 and the funding profile that made up
the £45.4m allocation, Savills carried out an assessment of the additional decent
homes work required of the Council against the original business plan to establish
the financial impact of this change. This resulted in a £4.95m deficit against the
original Business Plan that had to be found through greater procurement
efficiencies.

The procurement process and supply chain negotiations have clearly met the
desired objectives as at the end of March 2010 The Housing Capital Programme
had already delivered 196 kitchens, 375 bathrooms, 395 boilers and 1,057 minor
electrical upgrades above and beyond the original business plan assumptions.

When comparing the effect the packaging investment strategy has had on the
work required in the stock condition database it clearly demonstrates how it has
reduced investment need in terms of catch-up but also in future years. As a result
of this from 2012/13 the average funding requirement (for the subsequent 5 years)

Page 83



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

7.1

to carry out all the elements of decent homes work reduces dramatically to £1.6m
per annum. This average spend could be reduced further to £1.05m if only those
elements of work that fail decency are undertaken.

Nevertheless statistically the database still shows the immediate pressure to meet
decent homes compliance by 2012 remains the real priority. To a large extent the
priority of the majority of the work required under the external packaged
improvements programme (i.e. Bromycroft, Odencroft, Travic, etc on the Britwell
estate and Brammas & Spackmans Way, on the Chalvey estate) relate to
essential capital improvement works rather than specifically decent homes work.
Some of the benefit of the decency works based on the external packaged
approach often impact on funding required in future years rather than immediately.

There are a number of previously approved schemes that need to be re-assessed
due to changes in terms of their priority or demand. An example of this is the
‘Warden Call alarm system replacement’. This became a priority scheme for the
council due to the national BT Network upgrading programme (CN21) that was
due for completion this year effectively rendering our systems inoperative as there
would not be compatible with the new network. BT subsequently announced this
summer that the project had been abandoned until future years. Therefore any
major investment to the Warden call system has now been deferred until the
council has completed the wider review of the ‘Supported Housing service that will
determine the requirements of the future system.

Similar to this there are other capital investment projects within the 2010/11 capital
programme that do not directly impact on decent homes compliance and as such
should be considered for deferral into future programme years so that a greater
reduction in the number of properties that still remain non-decent can be realised.
Through the deferral of these projects a further £1.2m of funding within the current
2010/11 years allocation could be re-prioritised to target homes that fail the
decency standard. (See appendix 2 for the full list of schemes recommended for
deferral)

There is £1.85m of external ‘wall finishes’ and ‘roof covering’ decent homes work
identified within the stock condition survey that requires completion by 2012. A
programme of re-surveys has commenced and early indication supports the belief
that the outcome of these verification surveys will confirm that the majority of these
properties are not currently failing the DH standard and their condition is such that
any investment work can be appropriately deferred over the next 3 to 5+ years.

Options appraisal of possible future investment strategies

In preparing this report officers have considered six potential options for future
investment strategies and these are as follows

OPTION 1 - Deliver all the previously approved Capital Investment Programme for
2010 to 2012 based on the originally approved strategy. Continue to deliver the
programme to meet the Slough DH standard as per the Strategic Framework
Contract, combining all elements of investment work into internal and external
packages to obtain optimum price per property. Eg package including kitchen,
bathroom, heating replacement, electrical upgrades and external door, etc.

Page 84



7.2

7.3

7.4

OPTION 2 - Continue to deliver packaged improvement as referenced in Option 1
but defer non-decent homes related work programmes into future years. i.e. Estate
improvement schemes, Non-decent homes investment works, Re-survey some of
the properties within the stock condition survey that have been identified as
requiring external work to establish ‘just in time’ replacement dates.

OPTION 3 - To include all the work identified under Option 1 but on an elemental
basis. Rather than packaging all the internal work together, deliver a programme
that specifically focuses on the replacement of those individual elements of work
that mean the property fails the decent homes standard. The External Works
projects would still be packaged together to achieve greater life cycle efficiencies,
minimise access equipments/scaffolding costs and obtain improved product
warranties, etc.

OPTION 4 - As Option 3 but also defer the non-decent homes work identified in
Option 2.

OPTION 5 - As per Option 4 but also extend the deadline for achieving the decent
homes standard until the end of 2012 rather than as previously reported to the
HCA as the end of 2011.

OPTION 6 - This option follows the same principle as option 5. In that it will deliver
the decent homes standard on an elemental basis by the end of 2012. But it also
includes £500k funding in the 2011/12 programme to commence the delivery of
the councils ‘Estate Improvement Programme’

In reviewing each option in turn, officers and the Council’'s Corporate Management
Team had to considering each in the light of the over-riding question, ‘What are
the Council’s key priorities going forward with regard to the delivery of the Housing
Capital Investment Programme’?

a. To deliver a programme that meets the customer priorities?

b. To ensure that the Council’s housing stock is adequately maintained to
meet the Government’s Decent Homes standard by 20127

c. To continue to deliver more holistic packages of internal work per property,
over and above the Government standard?

d. To ensure the council delivers a ‘Decent Communities’ programme as well
as ‘Decent Homes'.

e. To ensure the Councils Housing Revenue Account remains sustainable in
the medium to long term.

It is also important to note that, the existing Decent Homes Framework contracts
will be time expired at the end of 2010/11. Therefore the decision making process
around ‘Internal packaged’ versus ‘Elemental’ work programmes within the option
appraisals will have a substantial impact on the future procurement strategy for
this work.

The Council’s commitment to its tenants as part of the return to in-house service
provision was the continued delivery of the Decent Homes programme against the
current timetable. This, in part, was a response to the fact that tenant
representative groups where influential in the original procurement exercise which
covered:

Page 85



7.5

7.6

7.7

The ‘packaging’ approach.

An agreement on the Slough Decent Homes Standard.
An element of product choice.

Agreed Customer Service standards.

Tenants priorities still remain the delivery of internal decent homes work i.e.
kitchens and bathrooms but with the installation of external ‘secure by design’
doors featuring more prominently than at the start of the programme. Tenants
need to be consulted on any proposed changes to the strategy so that proposals
can be considered and agreed by tenants as part of the Council’s ‘Local Offer’
under the Tenant Services Authorities (TSA) ‘Home Standard’. This process is
already underway and there were a number of very positive comments from
tenants about the possible move to an elemental investment programme approach
in the future that came out of the council’s ‘local conversation’ workshops that the
housing service ran in last quarter of 2010.

Whilst there is an immediate financial pressure to deliver Decent Homes
compliance by the Governments 2012 deadline, once the Council has achieved
this, the level of financial resources required to maintain this standard across the
borough over the following 5 years is affordable within the Government’s current
housing subsidy allowance. What also remains affordable is the Council’s ability
to deliver a number of substantial external and estate improvement work
programmes, e.g.:

Roof coverings. £3.75m
Wall finishes. £2.25m
Gutters and rain water goods. £2.3m
Estate improvement schemes. £3.0m

Although six options were proposed and the levels of expenditure/funding required
calculated accordingly, there was an obvious assumption that with reduce public
expenditure forecast for future years, it would not be prudent to increase levels of
borrowing as a means to fund the programme. Accordingly if the options were
considered to be based upon additional funding from HRA balances then only
option four onward remained viable, the first three options resulting in the HRA
falling into deficit at varying points within the next eight years.

Based upon the above there is a strong recommendation to members from both
the Housing Asset Strategy Group and the Council’s Corporate Management
Team (CMT) in support of option 6 as the preferred way forward based on the
following reasons:

a. Due to the uncertainty of the current economic climate and the substantial
financial efficiencies the council needs to realise over the next four years, this
option minimises the level of additional funding required to support the
delivery of the housing capital programme. It also provides the council with
sufficient time and opportunity to assess the impact of the proposed
Government changes to the Housing Subsidy allowance if the new self-
financing legislation comes into force as expected in April 2012.

b. The option provides a clear procurement strategy for officers to maximise the
benefits of the highly competitive construction market through the
commissioning of short term contracts. (i.e.1 to 2 year max duration)

c. It delivers the priorities of work within the programme that tenants hold as the
most important. E.g. kitchen, bathroom and entrance door replacement.

Page 86



7.8

7.9

d. Ensures the condition of the Council’s housing stock meets the Government’s
decent homes standard by the end of 2012.

e. Relies on additional funding of only £2.85M from HRA balances ensuring that
the Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA) remains sustainable in the
medium to long term.

f. It supports the Council’s wider strategic objectives as it delivers the equivalent
of a ‘Decent Communities’ and ‘Decent homes’ programme in parallel through
the commencement of a dedicated ‘Estate Improvement’ programme.

A revised five year housing capital programme has been produced to
demonstrate the likely outcome of the proposed strategic changes associated
with option six. (see appendix 1 attached) The programme estimates a projected
final outturn of £7.95m for the 2010/11 year against the £10.9m budget. This is
based on the re-prioritisation of schemes, deferral of non decent homes work and
the timescales associated with the procurement of new contract as detailed in the
enclosed report. It also reflects the current contract dispute claim with lan
Williams Ltd that has impacted on the continuation of the internal works scheme
originally scheduled for delivery from April 2010. The original budget allocation of
£1.3m has been set aside to mitigate any further financial risk until the
negotiations are concluded.

The programme sets out the required funding to deliver a scheme of internal
elemental improvements to meet decent homes compliance plus other essential
capital investment works in line with the 30 year housing investment plan. An
indication of the financial resources required to support the programme has been
included to demonstrate whilst £2.85m of additional funding is required in the
2011/12 year, subsequent years remain affordable to meet the investment
demand. If members approve this recommendation, the transfer from HRA
balances will be reflected in the HRA budget report for 2011-12 due to be
considered at the February meeting.

Conclusion

When the Council approved the proposal to end the contract with People 1st
(Slough) Ltd and return to in-house service provision it did so in the knowledge
that this would reduce the available funding to complete the decent homes
investment work in line with the Government’s 2012 deadline. Despite this a
commitment was given to all tenants that the programme would continue to be
delivered as originally planned. This report is final confirmation that through the
short term use of available HRA balances this commitment to tenants can be
achieved. In future years the Government’s proposals on self financing could
drastically alter how a Council plans the investment and maintenance of its stock
and as details of these proposals emerge members will of course be fully
appraised of their implications.

Appendices

Appendix 1:  Housing capital programme 2010/11
Appendix 2:  Housing capital programme 2010/11 to 2016/17

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



APPENDIX 1

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2010 /2011 Thro' 2016/2017

Capital EXPENDITURE Current ReProfiled Revised Revised Revised Revised Revised Revised Revised
Code Budget Budget Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
2010/2011 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2010/17
Jun 2010 Dec 2010 Dec 2010 Dec 2010 Dec 2010 Dec 2010 Dec 2010 Dec 2010 Dec 2010
Stock Improvements £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
P544 |Affordable Warmth / Central Heating 55 55 58 50 50 50 50 50 363
P562 |Asbestos & Health & Safety Works 349 349 450 450 300 300 300 300 2,449
P563 |Bromycroft & Odencroft External Refurbishments 1,515 1,515 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,515
P463 |Broom & Poplar 250 250 0 0 0 0 0 0 250
P545 |Capitalised Essential Repairs 165 200 166 150 150 150 150 150 1,116
P564 |Darvills Lane - External Refurbs 0 0 300 0 0 0 0 0 300
P555 |Digital Switchover 550 550 50 0 0 0 0 0 600
P546 |Environmental Improvements (Allocated to Forum) 50 100 50 50 50 50 50 50 400
P565 |Estate Improvements/Environmental Works 0 0 500 500 500 500 500 500 3,000
P541 |Garage Improvements 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 350
P860 |Housing Play Area Improvements 65 65
P547 |Major Aids & Adaptations (C.Tenants) 600 600 500 500 500 500 500 500 3,600
P548 |Mechanical Systems Upgrading 350 350 250 100 100 100 100 100 1,100
P549 |Misc Modernisations & Health & Safety 300 200 150 0 0 0 0 0 350
P567 |Pantile Row - External Refurbs 0 158 0 0 0 0 0 0 158
P568 |Parlaunt Road Flats - Refurbishment 293 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
P569 |Replace Fascias, Soffits, Gutters & Down Pipes 258 0 0 0 450 700 700 450 2,300
P551 |Security & Controlled Entry Modernisation 200 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 350
P570 |Spackmans & Brammas External Refurbs 1,229 755 0 0 0 0 0 0 755
P543 |Supported Housing DDA Assess - Essential Repairs 200 80 266 0 0 0 0 0 346
P573 |Upgrade Landlords Lighting/Communal Areas 300 100 400 0 0 0 0 0 500
TBA |Wardens Call - Disbursement Alarms 500 20 180 0 0 0 0 0 200
P574 |Weekes Drive - Summerlea Gutters, Downpipes 150 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 150
P552 |Window Replacement Programme 354 54 300 110 0 0 0 0 464
P516 |Winvale Refurbishment 125 125 1,195 0 0 0 0 0 1,320
P557 |Integrated Housing IT System 81 81 0 0 0 0 0 0 81
P558 |Internal Decent Homes Work 2,746 1,671 4,934 741 560 1,250 1,250 1,425 11,831
P559 |External Decent Homes Work 0 0 132 2,000 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,052 7,184
P560 |Parlaunt Shops-Flat Roof Replacement (Non-op Inv 100 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 100
Total Stock Improvements 10,835 7,378 10,231 4,751 4,760 4,700 4,700 4,677 41,132
Other Housing Revenue Account Expenditure
P440 |Acquisition of C.P.O. Property 16 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
Professional Fees @ 7.5% 553 700 356 357 353 353 351 3,022
TOTAL HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT CAPITAL 10,851 7,947 10,931 5,107 5,117 5,053 5,053 5,028 44170
ESTIMATED SOURCE OF FINANCING - HRA £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Balances B/F 0 0 2,904 -0 -4 -31 7 44
Capital Grants 16 16
Revenue Contributions (RCCO) 356 356
Major Repairs Allowancce - B/F 1,026 1,026
Major Repairs Allowance 4,924 4,924 4,977 4,904 4,890 4,890 4,890 4,890
ALMO Borrowing 1,538 1,538
Revenue Reserve 65 65
Prudential Borrowing/Balances 2,850
Capital Receipts - B/F 2,726 2,726
Estimated Capital Receipts - in year 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200
Total Resources 10,851 10,851 10,931 5,104 5,086 5,059 5,097 5,134

Page 89




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



¢ XIAN3ddV

9.v'01L 9801 [ (XA 255°8 6991 502°€C AVLIdVO LNNOJJV INNIAIY ONISNOH TV.1O0L
0 9l 9L 0 16 16 Auedold ‘O'd"D jo uoisinboy|  ovvd
ainyipuadxg Junodoy anuaAay BuisnoH 1aYyj0

9.t'01L 10z'1 0LL'0L gLz 2568 [A1-g%4 80L°€C sjuswianoadui] 320)g [ejoL
001 00l 001 Z 001 [4 00l (Au] do-uoN) Juswiade|day Jooy je|d-sdoyg Junepied| 095d
0 0 4 0 0 0 sjuswanoldw| abexoed |eussix3 - ONTY| 6SSd
S0°L 9L vze'L S0Z°L 28L'S1L 28.'GL sjuswanoldu| ebexoed [eussjul - ONTY| 85Sd
0 18 69L- 0sz (114 0S¢ wajsAg || BuisnoH pejesbelu||  L56d
€9v'L Gocl L9 88S‘L oSl 116 juswiysiqiniay o|eAulp| 9LSd
oLl 141 804 601 LEY €¥S swweibold Juswade|doy MOPUIM | 25Sd
0 0S1 /- 0 1] 0 sadidumo( ‘siepng espaWIWNG - 9ALIQ SOMO9M | ¥1Sd
0 00€ 00S 0 (14 swue|ly juswasingsiq - |[eD suepiepy| vEl
002 00€ LS (474 1S 08l seauy leunwwo)/Bunybi splojpue epesbdn| €25d
0 0 Lz 0 (34 698 sjuswanoidw| [eulsjx3 uspnie R onel] | z.Sd
ki4" 002 €8 cll 161 (144 slleday |enuass] - ssassy yaqQ BuisnoH papoddng| evsd
1GE 0 0 0 0 0 shkeuwiyy @ sjooy - sileday [einjonis| L2Sd
0 62Z°l }- 0 0 0 SqInjay [euss)x] sewwelg @ suewsoeds| 0.5d
0S 0S1 002 0¢ ool 0€ GG uonesiuIspoly Ajug pajjosuo) B ANoss|  1SSd
0 0 L- 0 [4 4 syjuswanoidw| Buimay| 0SSd
601 8G¢C 8GC }- 0Ll 0 601 sadid umoQ 3 SIBPND ‘sjyoS ‘selose aoejday| 695d
12x4 €6¢C €62 L V.2 3 601 jusysIqIngay - Sje|4 peoy Juneped| 89sd
6S 0 0 0 0 0 SQUNJOY [BUJOIXT - MOY dlljued| 19Sd
00S°L 0 0 0 0 0 sbuljlam@ [euonipel| UON| 995d
0 0 0 0 0 Sz sjoaloid MON| Z0Sd
0S5l 001 00€ 60/ 44 0€Z 112 Kiojes @ YjlesH g suonesiuIapo osIN|  6vSd
LGl 0s¢ 2 062 12 1S1 Buipeibdn swaysAg [eolueydsy|  8vsd
009 009 L1 009 G6S 00. (siueus] D) suonejdepy B spiy JofeN| LvSd
0S 0S 8¢ 0S 8¢ 14 sjuswanoidwi abeseg| LiSd
890°¢ 0 0 0 0 0 leyuswuoliaug ‘Buidedspue] jeuleyx3| §95d
0S 0S 9¢ 0S {57 05 (wnuo4 0} pajedo|ly) sjuswanoldw| [ejuswuoIAUT | 9vSd
0 0SS .- 0SS 00€ 00€ JoAoyoUMS [eNbIa| §SSd
(1144 0 0 0 1] 0 squnjey [euleix3 - sueT s|iAteqd| +9Sd
991 <9l vve <9l 092 Gol slleday |enusss3 pasiieyded| sysd
0 0s¢ ge- 002 Jejdod g wooig| €9vd
0 SLSL ¥9 LSv'L 6LY'L o'l SjUBIYSIqINISY [BUIBIXT JOIoUspQ B woolg| €95d
1s€ (14 1243 62¢ 149 0Ll SHIOM sOjseqsy| 29Sd
0 0 8- 1} (1]%4 (0]%4 sjuswysIqnyay [eusdu| - INoD uolbullly| L9Sd
8G SS Z SS 14 e BunesH [enuad / YHUIBAA BIQEPIOYY| PrSd
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 0003 sjuawarosdwy )00}8

oLaune | 139ANg | ol aunp [spwAue) |Asenuep |Asenuep (soquadsg

2L0z/L10z | 40 11V | LL02/0L0Z | £L02/040C | LLOZ/0LOZ| 01L02/6002

ajewns3 |YO LYV | sewns3 | juswysnipy|ejewnsy obpng 0102/6002 apo)

pesinay UJ43Q | pesiney |ebpng  |pesiAey | pasiaey  (ebpng JUNLIANIdX3T leyided

T102/0102 JNAVYO0Yd 1v1ldvD INNODOV JNNIATY ONISNOH

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



AGENDA ITEM 8

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24" January 2011

CONTACT OFFICER: Julie Evans, Strategic Director of Resources / Steven Quayle

Solicitor- Regeneration and Major Projects

(For all enquiries) (01753) 875300 / (01753) 875748
WARD(S): Central
PORTFOLIO: Neighbourhood and Renewal - Councillor Swindlehurst
PART |
KEY DECISION

HEART OF SLOUGH - COMPULSORY PURCHASE OF LAND AND INTERESTS IN

LAND - PROPOSED NEW LEARNING AND CULTURAL CENTRE AT DAY CENTRE

AND PRUDENTIAL YARD, WILLIAM STREET, SLOUGH

1

1.1

1.2

Purpose of Report

This report is in respect of the Heart of Slough Regeneration Project (“‘the HoS
Project”). The HoS Project concerns the land shown edged red on Plan 1.

The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet authority to:-

(a) appropriate land owned by the Council as shown hatched black on Plan 2 to
planning purposes and,

(b) make a Compulsory Purchase Order under Section 226 (1) (a) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (the 1990 Act) and Section 13 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 for the acquisition of the land
and interests in land shown coloured pink on Plan 3 and new rights in the land
shown coloured blue on the said Plan 3 at the proposed new Learning and
Cultural Centre which forms part of the HoS Project.

Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action

The Cabinet is requested to resolve:

(a) That the progress on the Heart of Slough Project generally and the current
position on how far negotiations have progressed on the acquisition of the land,
interests in the land and new rights in the land which are the subject of this report be
noted.

(b) That the Council owned land hatched black on Plan 2 be appropriated to planning
purposes pursuant to Section 122(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 in order to
advance the development of the proposed new Learning and Cultural Centre.

(c) That the Council make a Compulsory Purchase Order pursuant to Section 226 (1)
(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 13 of the Local

Page 93



41

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act1976 for the acquisition of the land and
interests in the land which is shown coloured pink on Plan 3 and in respect of the
acquisition of new rights over the land shown coloured blue on the said Plan 3, which
is required for implementation of the proposed Learning and Cultural Centre.

(d) That the Strategic Director of Resources be authorised to:-

(i) take all necessary steps to secure the making, confirmation and implementation
of the Compulsory Purchase Order including the publication and service of all
notices and the presentation of the Council’s case at any Public Inquiry.

(i)  to acquire the land, the interests in the land and new rights within the
Compulsory Purchase Order either by agreement or compulsorily.

(iii) where appropriate agreement has been reached to reduce or delete the plots of
land which are the subject of the Compulsory Purchase Order as shown on
Plan 3.

(iv) to approve agreements with land owners and other interested parties setting out
the terms for the withdrawal of objections to the Compulsory Purchase Order.

(e) That the Acting Borough Secretary and Solicitor be authorised to prepare,
approve and execute all the necessary documentation required throughout the CPO
process including the transfer of the land and interests in the land to the Council and
the settlement and litigation of any compensation claims.

(f) That in the event of a reorganisation of Council functions and the re-designation of
posts the authorisations approved in paragraphs 2.2-2.5 (inclusive) will be transferred
to those postholders who are responsible for the functions of Regeneration and Legal
Services respectively.

Community Strategy Priorities

The HoS Project will support through the construction of buildings or the provision of
services and activities the following:-

Celebrating Diversity, Enabling inclusion
Adding years to Life and Life to years

Being Safe, Feeling Safe

A Cleaner, Greener place to live, Work and Play
Prosperity for All

Other Implications

Financial

The HoS Project remains a complex matter but an outline of the scheme as shown
on Plan 1 is set out in paragraphs 5 and 6 below. The Project has a number of
significant implications for the Council and these include:-

a) Funding and construction of a new Bus Station and Learning and Cultural
Centre,

Page 94



4.2

b)  Undertaking highway infrastructure and public realm works on behalf of the
Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) including risks arising from those

works,

c) The transfer of funds from the HCA,

d) The acquisition and sale of land to facilitate the development, including the
payment of statutory compensation,

e) The sale of surplus land at the TVU Site for residential and other purposes.

f)  The use of current and future capital receipts.

The report to Cabinet on 7" December 2009 (Agenda item 8) set out the Heart of
Slough budget requirement of £45.204M for the financial years 2009/10 to 2012/13
(potential completion). The budget included provision for potential acquisition and
compulsory acquisition of sites required for the implementation of the Heart of Slough
Project. The Cabinet on 12" July 2010 (Agenda item 8) received and considered an
update on the scheme progress including potential contingency sums that may be
required in addition to the approved budget. The Cabinet resolved to note the
potential contingency sum requirement and further resolved that any request for a
contingency sum to be called on be referred to the Cabinet. In an agreement dated
23" December 2009 between the Council and the HCA relating to the provision of
infrastructure and development works at the HoS Project the Council has confirmed
that it has budgeted to undertake the new library works (as defined in the agreement)
during the period 1% April 2010 to 1% April 2013 which relates to the proposed

Learning and Cultural Centre.

Risk Management

Recommendation

Risk/Threat/Opportunity

Mitigation(s)

The Cabinet are requested
to note the progress on the
Heart of Slough Project
generally and the current
position on how far
negotiations have
progressed on the
acquisition of the land,
interests in the land and
new rights in the land which
are the subject of this report.

Lack of progress will
threaten the viability of the
Project.

The officers and the
Council’s Property
Consultants will continue
to seek acquisition of the
Land, interests in the land,
and new rights through
negotiation and
subsequent agreement.

That the Council owned land
hatched black on Plan 2 be
appropriated to planning
purposes pursuant to
Section 122(1) of the Local
Government Act 1972 in
order to advance the
development of the

proposed new Learning and

If the Council land is not
appropriated to planning
purposes any easements
and covenants (third party
rights) may hinder or
prevent the development.

Appropriation will override
the third party rights
subject to payment of
statutory compensation.

Page 95




Cultural Centre

That the Council make a
Compulsory Purchase Order
pursuant to Section 226 (1)
(a) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and
Section 13 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 for the
acquisition of the land and
interests in the land which
is shown coloured pink on
Plan 3 and in respect of the
acquisition of new rights
over the land shown
coloured blue on the said
Plan 3 to this report which is
required for implementation
of the proposed Learning
and Cultural Centre.

Inability to acquire the land
and any interests in the land
together with new rights
may cause delays and
uncertainties

The use of CPO powers
may assist in negotiations
with landowners and third
parties who may have
legal interests/ rights over
the land.

That the Strategic Director
of Resources be authorised
to :-

(a) take all necessary steps
to secure the making,
confirmation and
implementation of the
Compulsory Purchase
Order including the
publication and service of
all notices and the
presentation of the
Council’s case at any Public

Inquiry.

(b) to acquire the land, the
interests in the land and the
new rights within the
Compulsory Purchase
Order either by agreement
or compulsorily.

(c) to approve agreements
with land owners and other
interested parties setting out
the terms for the withdrawal
of objections to the
Compulsory Purchase
Order.

Delegation to the Director of
the matters identified will
enable officers to proceed
without any delays inherent
in referring such matters
back to the Cabinet.

The matters indentified
may need urgent attention/
decisions and without
such delegation the CPO
process will be delayed.

Page 96




4.3

4.4

2.5 That the Acting Borough
Secretary and Solicitor be
authorised to prepare and
execute all the necessary
documentation required
throughout the CPO process
including the transfer of the
land and interests in the
land to the Council and the
settlement and litigation of
any compensation claims.

That in the event of a Lack of clarity of the This resolution will provide
reorganisation of Council decision making process will | a smooth and clear
functions and the re- cause unnecessary delays | authorisation process
designation of posts the to the Project. should there be changes
authorisations approved in to the Council’s officer
paragraphs 2.2-2.5 structure.

(inclusive) will be transferred
to those post holders who
are responsible for the
functions of regeneration
and Legal Services

respectively.

Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications

Section 122 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 enables the Council to appropriate
its own land for any purpose if it is no longer required for the current purpose. The
Council’s records are unclear as to the current purpose of the Council’s land hatched
black on Plan 2, and so for the sake of clarity it is considered best practice to formally
appropriate it to planning purposes. Appropriation to planning purposes will invoke
Section 237 of the 1990 Act so that the development will override any private rights
that exist such as restrictive covenants and easements subject to payment of
statutory compensation.

When acquisition is not practicable or agreement cannot be reached on acceptable
terms, or for other reasons, a local authority may use its powers of compulsory
acquisition, subject to Ministerial confirmation. The relevant power is provided by
Section 226(1)(a) of the 1990 Act which authorises the acquisition of land, interests
in land, including existing rights. Section 226(1) (a) gives a local authority power to
acquire compulsorily any land in their area :-

i. if the authority think that the acquisition will facilitate the carrying out of
development, redevelopment or improvement on or in relation to the land, and

ii.  if they think the development, redevelopment or improvement is likely to
contribute to the promotion or improvement of the economic or social or
environmental well-being of their area.

An extract from the relevant government guidance in Circular 6/2004 which explains
the use of the power is set out in Appendix A to this report.

Page 97




4.5.

4.6

4.7

In addition to the requirements of Section 226(1)(a) of the 1990 Act summarised in
paragraph 4.4 above Members will also need to be satisfied as follows:-

a. That the proposed development of the Learning and Cultural Centre will not be
blocked by any planning problems.

b.  That the proposed Learning and Cultural Centre is potentially viable and
achievable.

c. That consideration has been given on how the use of a Compulsory Purchase
Order (CPO) will impact on those whose human rights might be infringed if
compulsory acquisition occurs.

The need and justification for a CPO under Section 226 (1) (a) of the 1990 Act is
dealt with in paragraphs 5 and 6 below and the consideration of the human rights
implications are specifically referred to in paragraphs 4.7 and 4.8 below.

Section 13 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 provides, in
the context of the compulsory purchase of land, for the acquisition of such new rights
in that land as are specified in the CPO which may be required for the construction
and/or operation of the proposed development. In this case new rights may include,
for example oversailing rights and construction of hoardings and works to
neighbouring properties, together with rights of access and all other rights necessary
for the construction, use and maintenance of the new development.

The use of compulsory purchase is the power of last resort where agreement has not
been reached with the land owners or those with an interest in the land. Such a step
will interfere with the land owners property rights which are protected by the
European Convention on Human Rights. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998
prohibits public authorities from acting in a way that is incompatible with the
European Convention on Human Rights. Various Convention rights are likely to be
relevant to the CPO, including:

. Entitlement to a fair and public hearing in the determination of a person's
civil and political rights (Convention Article 6). This includes property rights and
can include opportunities to be heard in the consultation process.

. Peaceful enjoyment of possessions (First Protocol Article 1). This right
includes the right to peaceful enjoyment of property and is subject to the State's
right to enforce such laws, as it deems necessary to control the use of property
in accordance with the general interest.

. Right to respect for, private and family life, in respect of which the likely
health impacts of the proposals, will need to be taken into account in evaluating
the scheme (Convention Article 8).

Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in the exercise of the
Council's powers and duties as a local authority. Any interference with a Convention
right must be necessary and proportionate. The Council is therefore required to
consider whether its actions would infringe the human rights of anyone affected by
the making of the CPO. The Council must carefully consider the balance to be struck

Page 98



between individual rights and the wider public interest. It is considered that any
interference with the Convention rights caused by the CPO will be justified in order to
secure the social, physical and environmental regeneration that the project will bring.
As well as the fairness of the procedures to be followed under the Acquisition of Land
Act 1981, appropriate compensation will be available to those entitled to claim it
under the relevant provisions of the statutory Compensation Code.

4.8 If the CPO is confirmed and the compulsory purchase powers are implemented,
parties with a qualifying interest (including freeholders, owners of possessory title and
owners of leasehold interests) whose land is acquired, will be entitled to submit a
claim for compensation for items such as the market value of the land acquired and
disturbance costs where applicable, to be assessed in accordance with the statutory
Compensation Code.

4.9 Members attention is drawn to the potential for Blight Notices to be received by the
Council. At any time after the CPO is made, qualifying landowners, (essentially
residential owner-occupiers any owner-occupiers of commercial property with a
rateable value below a prescribed limit, currently £34,800) can serve a Blight Notice
on the Council. This procedure reflects the fact that a proposed CPO may have an
impact on property values prior to the Order being implemented, and
that qualifying landowners might suffer particular hardship as a result of this
impact. If a Blight Notice is accepted by the Council it will be compelled to acquire
the "blighted" property, at a timetable which suits the landowner, rather than
the Council which is essentially compulsory purchase in reverse. This might require
acquisition prior to the CPO being confirmed.

4.10 Members should note that none of the properties that may serve a Blight Notice fall
within the land coloured pink on Plan 3 (i.e. that which is required to be permanently
acquired) so the risk of blight is considered to be low.

4.11 The acquisition of land and interests in land through compulsory purchase is solely a
matter for the Cabinet as it is an executive function by virtue of the Local Authorities
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as amended) and
Section 13 (2) of the Local Government Act 2000 ( as amended).

Staffing Implications

4.12 There are no staffing implications arising out of this report.

Equalities Impact Assessment

4.13 The overall HoS Project takes into account the Council’s requirements relating to the
impact for age, religion, sexual orientation and seeks to mitigate against any adverse
impact.

5 Background/ Supporting Information

Outline of Heart of Slough

5.1 The HoS Project is the Council’s innovative, ambitious, and comprehensive
regeneration of the town centre covering the following four sites immediately
adjoining the Wellington Street/ William Street, roundabout:-

(a) Brunel Bus Station /Compair House (‘Brunel’)

Page 99



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

(b) Thames Valley University (‘TVU’)

(c) The Learning and Cultural Centre (where the new library will be located)
(‘LCC’)

(d) The Existing Library (‘Existing Library )

In addition major road improvement/infrastructure works form part of the HoS Project
with the central improvement being the removal of the roundabout and subways at
the junction of Wellington Street, and Windsor Road/ Stoke Road. Each of the four
sites are shown on Plan 1.

The whole HoS Project has been supported by the Government through the Homes
and Communities Agency who are providing overall support and funding through an
agreement, dated 23" December 2009.The funding of £11m provided by the HCA
comprises a significant contribution to the road improvements/ infrastructure costs.
The HCA applied for outline planning permission for the Heart of Slough regeneration
scheme as a whole and planning permission was granted by the Planning Committee
in July 2009.

Brunel -The development of the new Bus Station on the Compair House site is well
advanced and Members will see that the frame of the structure is now in place and it
is scheduled to be completed and operational by the end of April 2011. The existing
bus operators will be relocated from the existing bus station which will, at the
appropriate time, be demolished and redeveloped with offices through the Council’s
development partner Development Securities Ltd.

Infrastructure - The road improvement/infrastructure works contract is due to be let
under the OJEU European Procurement regime through the competitive dialogue
process in January 2011. The proposed road improvement/ infrastructure works are
scheduled to commence immediately thereafter although there may be some early
mobilisation on site. The majority of the funding of the road improvement/
infrastructure works is, as stated in paragraph 5.2, provided by the HCA and the
proposed works are in budget.

TVU -Thames Valley University is proposing to relocate its educational facilities in
Slough elsewhere and, as part of the HoS Project, the University has agreed with the
Council to co-operate in the joint sale of the site (which is partly owned by the
Council) for residential development and other purposes.

LCC - The LLC site is primarily in the ownership of the Council but in order to
facilitate the development of the new public facility the acquisition of additional land is
required. Further detail on progress is dealt with in paragraph 6 and Appendix C
below.

Existing Library - The Existing Library Site is now owned by the HCA and has been
leased back to the Council until January 2015 to enable the existing library facilities
to continue to serve the public until the new Learning and Cultural Centre has been
constructed and ready for use. Once that has occurred the HCA may redevelop or
alternatively sell the site but no details of any proposals have been discussed at this
early stage.

Page 100



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

The Learning and Cultural Centre

The Planning Position

The Local Plan for Slough 2004 recognised the inadequacy of the town centre and
the potential for its redevelopment. The perceived problems within the town centre
included:-

a) Substantial areas of land being dominated by public highway including the
wasted area of the sunken A4 / William Street roundabout.

b) Severe effect of the A4 with pedestrians forced to use subways and cyclists not
catered for in a safe manner.

c) Alack of focus and identity or sense of entering the town centre.

d) Poor architecture and a lack of any landmark buildings at one of the principal
gateways to the town.

e) Poor pedestrian cycle links between the railway station and the town centre/
shopping centre.

f) A bleak and unwelcoming environment outside Slough railway station with
muddled usage patterns on forecourt areas.

g) A poor and unwelcoming environment in the bus station and the bus station
stops outside the shopping centre.

h) A lack of integrated rail/bus/transport interchange.

As a result of this the Council and its partners promoted the HoS Project which is a
comprehensive regeneration project designed to alleviate the problems identified in
paragraph 6.1 above and regenerate the town centre. The Project as a whole was
granted outline planning permission on 22" December 2009 under reference
P/14405/0000 (the Master Plan).

The LCC site falls within the “Church Square Quadrant” of the Heart of Slough
Master Plan. Within this quadrant outline consent was secured for “The Learning
Curve” building (as it was then known) which comprised a new public library; adult
learning facility; café; together with a linked building comprising a church hall and
several residential flats. The Learning Curve had a 5,192sqm floor area with a
maximum height of 18 metres. A full environmental impact assessment was carried
out as part of the Master Plan application which assessed the environmental affects
of the Heart of Slough Master Plan proposal. This included an assessment of the
environmental affects of the Church Square Quadrant development. This assessment
concluded that the Heart of Slough proposal including the development of the nature
and scale proposed on the LCC site would be acceptable and have a positive impact
on the regeneration of Slough.

On the 5™ August 2010 the Council secured full planning permission for the
development of the LCC Site as follows:-

“‘Redevelopment of the site for a new library and cultural centre including
life long learning facilities , multi performance , council chamber, teaching

Page 101



rooms, gallery space ,cafe, external reading room, new vehicular access,
phased provision of enhanced pedestrian links, public realm and
landscape improvements. The proposal involves the demolition of part of
the rear 3-4 William St, the ramp and toilet block attached to the
Queensmere Shopping Centre, and scope for the future demolition of 7-
11 Mackenzie Square for enhanced public realm and pedestrian links.”

6.5 The planning permission dated 5 August 2010 is annexed as Appendix B to this

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

report.

In order to complete the planning position Members are advised that despite the fact
that the Heart of Slough proposals are well advanced they have still been included in
the Development Plan Document (DPD) in order to give added weight to the
approved Master Plan and to help ensure that development takes place in
accordance with it. The site allocations DPD was submitted to Cabinet at its meeting
on the 22" November 2010 and was recommended for approval. At the full Council
meeting on the 30™ November 2010, the document was formally adopted by the
Council.

The Design of the Learning and Cultural Centre

The LCC site currently serves as an inhospitable space between Slough’s prime
retail area and the developments taking place elsewhere within the HoS Project. The
existing land uses are of low order, predominantly comprising surface car parking
and servicing access. The current pedestrian links through the site are poorly defined
and uninviting. In particular, the area between St Ethelbert’s Church and the
Queensmere Shopping Centre is known to attract anti-social activity.

The LCC has been designed to respond to the principles contained within the Heart
of Slough Masterplan. The LCC design has sought to improve pedestrian
connections through the town centre, particularly in the context of links between the
transport interchange and the High Street. The proposed building has been
developed as a ‘community object’, which is both a landmark in its own right, whilst
offering a sympathetic setting to St Ethelbert’s Church.

It is envisaged that the LCC will offer a wide range of direct and indirect public
benefits. The learning and cultural offer to the local community will be significantly
enhanced and the building itself should serve as a confident and striking landmark to
visitors to Slough.

6.10 Since the external design was approved in August 2010, the public and staff have

6.11

been consulted on the internal services, layout and design. This will be completed by
the end of March 2011 and will inform an updated specification and internal design in
the Summer of 2011.

Negotiations with Landowners/occupiers

Section 226 of the 1990 Act enables local authorities to acquire land compulsorily for
‘planning purposes’. The power provided in the amended section 226 (1) (a) enables
acquiring authorities with planning powers to exercise their compulsory purchase
powers if they think that acquiring the land and any interests in the land in question
will facilitate the carrying out of development, redevelopment or improvement on, or
in relation to, the land and it is not certain that they will be able to acquire it by
agreement.

Page 102



6.12 Government guidance contained within Circular 06/2004, advises that before

embarking on compulsory purchase and throughout the preparation and procedural
stages, acquiring authorities should seek to acquire land by agreement wherever
practicable.

6.13 In this context, the Council has sought to identify, through a land referencing

71

7.2

exercise, those parties who have legal interests in the land which is required to
deliver the LCC. Wherever possible the Council through its Property Consultants
Drivers Jonas Deloitte have entered into early negotiations. The parties who have
land interests which have been identified as being required for the delivery of the
LCC and the current state of negotiations to acquire such land and other interests in
land are detailed in Appendix C to this report.

Conclusion

As Members will see the HoS Project has evolved over a considerable number of
years to provide a comprehensive regeneration of the town centre and in relation to
this report these issues are addressed in paragraph 6 above. Outline planning
permission (which included the Master Plan) was granted in December 2009.
Detailed planning consent for the Learning and Cultural Centre was granted on the
5t August 2010.1t is considered that the scheme will not be blocked by planning
problems as there are no identified planning impediments. The design of the building
is now underway and the funds have been committed to the scheme which is viable
and which will be managed and maintained by the Council.

Negotiations with landowners and those with an interest in the land which the Council
require to complete the assembly of the LCC site have been ongoing for some time.
These will continue even if Members approve the making of a CPO in an attempt to
resolve outstanding issues and reach agreement. However such an Order is deemed
essential at this stage in order to ensure that the regeneration of the town centre is
achieved if agreement cannot be reached.

Members therefore can conclude that there is a genuine need, justification and a
compelling case in the public interest to pursue the CPO at this time having taken
into account the human rights implications referred to above.

Members are therefore requested to approve the recommendations set out in
paragraph 2 above.

Appendices

Appendix A — Extract from Circular 06/2004

Appendix B — Planning Permission dated 5" August 2010
Appendix C — LCC Site — Parties and Current State of Negotiations
Plan 1 — Outline of Heart of Slough Project

Plan 2 — The Council’s land required for appropriation to planning purposes

Page 103



Plan 3 — The land, interests in land and new rights to be acquired by compulsory
purchase, if necessary

Background Papers.

‘1’ DPD Site Allocation.

‘2" Report to Planning Committee August 2010.

Page 104



Circular 06/2004 Appendix 1d

Appendix A

Orders made under section 226 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by section 99
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004)
APPROPRIATE ACQUIRING AUTHORITIES

1. Section 226 of the 1990 Act enables a local authority as defined in section 226(8) (i.e.
county, district or London borough council), a joint planning board' or a national park
authority’ to acquire land compulsorily for ‘planning purposes’ as defined by section
246(1). These are the only bodies to which the powers in section 226 and, hence, the
advice to acquiring authorities in this appendix, apply.

THE POWERS

2. The powers in section 226 as amended by section 99 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act are intended to provide a positive tool to help acquiring authorities with
planning powers to assemble land where this is necessary to implement the proposals in
their community strategies and Local Development Documents. These powers are
expressed in wide terms and can therefore be used by such authorities to assemble land
for regeneration and other schemes where the range of activities or purposes proposed
mean that no other single specific compulsory purchase power would be appropriate.
However, these powers should not otherwise be used in place of other more appropriate
enabling powers®, and the statement of reasons should make clear the justification for
using the Planning Act powers. In particular, the First Secretary of State (‘the Secretary
of State’ in this Appendix) may refuse to confirm an order if he considers that this
general power is or is to be used in a way intended to frustrate or overturn the intention
of Parliament by attempting to acquire land for a purpose which had been explicitly
excluded from a specific power.

3. In preparing and submitting compulsory purchase orders under section 226, acquiring
authorities with planning powers will need to have regard to the general advice in
paragraphs 13 to 57 of this Part, including the guidance about planning requirements
and the justification of the order in paragraphs 16 to 23. Authorities proposing to
acquire land under section 226 should also have regard to the procedural changes
introduced in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and described in the
Annex to this Part of the Memorandum. They should submit their orders for
confirmation via the relevant regional Government Office.

! secrion 244(1) of the 1990 Act.
% section 244A of the 1990 Act.

3 eg. section 164 of the Public Health Act 1875, section 89 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act
1949, section 19 of the Local Government {Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, section 239 of the Highways Act
1980, or section 17 of the Housing Act 1985. See also paragraph 8 of Appendix E, which explains that when land for
housing development is being assembled under planning powers, the Secretary of State will have regard to the policies
set out in that Appendix.

Compulsory Purchase Procedure Manual September 2006 21




Appendix 1d Circular 06/2004

4. The Secretary of State takes the view that an order made under subsection (1) of
section 226 should be expressed in terms of either paragraph (a) or paragraph (b) of that
subsection. As these are expressed as alternatives in the legislation, the order should
clearly indicate which is being exercised, quoting the wording of paragraph (a) or (b) as
apptopriate as part of the description of what is proposed.

Section 226(1)(a)

5. The power provided in the amended section 226(1)(a) enables acquiring authorities
with planning powers to exercise their compulsory acquisition powers if they think that
acquiring the land in question will facilitate the carrying out of development!,
redevelopment or improvement on, or in relation to, the land being acquired and it is
not certain that they will be able to acquire it by agreement. The use of the words ‘on,
or in relation to’ means that the scheme of development, redevelopment or
improvement for which the land needs to be acquired does not necessarily have to be
taking place on that land so long as its acquisition can be shown to be essential to the
successful implementation of the scheme. This could be relevant, for example, in an
area of low housing demand where property might be being tremoved to facilitate
replacement housing elsewhere within the same neighbourhood.

The well-being power

6. The wide power in section 226(1) (a) is subject to subsection (1A) of section 226, This
provides that the acquiring authority must not exercise the power unless they think that
the proposed development, redevelopment or improvement is likely to contribute to
achieving the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental
well-being of the area for which the acquiring authority has administrative
responsibility. The amended power in section 226(1){a) will assist those authorities to
whom the provisions of section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 apply to fulfil their
duties under that section to promote the economic, social and envitonmental well-
being of their area. Acquiring authorities who do not have powers under the Local
Government Act 2000 can also make use of section 226(1) (a). They will also need to
be able to show that the purpose for which the land is being acquired will contribute to
the well-being of the area for which they are responsible. The benefit to be derived from
exercising the power is also not restricted to the area subject to the compulsory purchase
order, as the concept is applied to the well-being of the whole {or any part) of the
acquiring authority’s area.

7. In determining whether the purpose for which they propose to acquire land
compulsorily under section 226(1)(a) can reasonably be expected to contribute to the
achievement of the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or
environmental well-being of their area, an acquiring authority may find it helpful to
have regard to the statutory guidance issued by ODPM in 2001 concerning the
interpretation of that power in the Local Government Act 2000°.

* Under section 336(1) of the 1990 Act, ‘development’ has the meaning given in section 55 (including any special
controls given by direction in relation to demolition and redevelopment (see DoE Circular 10/95: Planning Controls

ouer Demolition)),
* Entitled Power to promote or improve economic, social or environmental well-being, and accessible on the OIDPM website
at: hup://www.odpm.gov.uk/stellent/groups/odpm_localgov/de page/odpm_locgov_605709.hesp
22 September 2006 Compulsory Purchase Procedure Manual



Circular 06/2004 Appendix 1d

8. As that guidance explains, the Government’s purpose in introducing the well-being
power has been to relax the traditionally cautious approach adopted by many local
authorities by encouraging innovation and closer joint working between local
authorities and their partners to improve the quality of life of those living, working or
otherwise involved in the community life of their area. As the guidance goes on to
suggest, each authority will want to consider how the well-being power can be used to
promote the sustainable development of its area by delivering the actions and
improvements identified in its community strategy.

9. It is in this context that acquiring authorities may find the new section 226(1) (a) power
useful. Section 39 of the 2004 Act requires regional and local plans to be prepared with
a view to contributing to the achievement of sustainable development, and sections 1
and 17 require them to adopt a spatial planning approach. Further guidance on this is
given in Planning Policy Statement 1: Creating Sustainable Communities , which points
out that spatial planning goes beyond traditional land use planning to bring together
and integrate policies for the development and use of land with other policies and
programmes which influence the nature of places and how they function.

10. That may well include policies relating to such issues as tackling social exclusion,
promoting regeneration initiatives and improving local environmental quality. All such
issues can have a significant impact on land use, for example by influencing the
demands on or needs for development, but they are not necessarily capable of being
delivered solely or mainly through the granting or refusal of planning permission. They
may require a more proactive approach by the relevant planning authority including
facilitating the assembly of suitable sites, for which the compulsory purchase powers in
section 226(1) (a) may provide helpful support where such acquisitions can be justified
in the public interest.

11.  The re-creation of sustainable communities through better balanced housing markets is
one regeneration objective for which the section 226(1) (a) power might be appropriate.
For example, it is likely to be more appropriate than a Housing Act power if the need
to acquire and demolish dwellings were to arise as a result of an oversupply of a
particular house type and/or housing tenure in a particular locality. A greater diversity
of housing provision may be needed to ensure that neighbourhoods are sustainable in
the long term, and improved housing quality and choice may be necessary to meet
demand. This may involve acquiring land to secure a change in land use, say, from
residential to commercial/industrial or to ensure that new housing is located in a more
suitable environment than that which it would replace. In urban areas experiencing
market renewal problems, the outcome may be fewer homes in total.

Planning matters

12.  Any programme of land assembly needs to be set within a clear strategic framework, and
this will be particularly important when demonstrating the justification for acquiring
land compulsorily under section 226(1)(a) powers as a means of furthering the well-
being of the wider area. Such a framework will need to be founded on an appropriate
evidence base, and to have been subjected to consultation processes including with

® Consultation draft published in February 2004 and accessible on the ODPM website at:
hetp://www.odpm.gov.uk/stellent/groups/odpm_planning/documents/page/odpm_plan_027494.pdf

Compulsory Purchase Procedure Manual September 2006 23

Page 107




Appendix 1d Circular 06/2004

those whose property is directly affected. The Regional Spatial Strategy provides the
regional planning context with which local development documents have to be in
general conformity under section 24 of the 2004 Act and which will set out more
detailed proposals. Where there is a conflict between policies in any of these documents
section 38 provides that the conflict must be resolved in favour of the document most
recently adopted, approved or published.

13.  The planning framework providing the justification for an order should be as detailed
as possible in order to demonstrate that there are no planning or other impediments to
the implementation of the scheme. Where the justification for a scheme is linked to
proposals identified in a development plan document which has been through the
consultation processes but has either not yet been examined or is awaiting the
recommendations of the Inspector, this will be given due weight.

14.  Where the local plan is out-of-date and local development documents are still in
preparation, it may well be appropriate to take account of more detailed proposals being
prepared on a non-statutory basis with the intention that they will be incorporated into
the local development framework at the appropriate time. Such proposals may relate,
for instance, to accommodating the need for further growth in an area. Or they might
be in the form of detailed proposals for handling the consequences of low housing
demand. Such proposals might, for example, be in the form of masterplans or other
detailed delivery mechanism prepared by the relevant local authority and giving a
spatial dimension to the prospectuses of market renewal pathfinders. Where such
proposals are being used to provide additional justification and support for a particular
order, there should be clear evidence that all those who might have objections to the
underlying proposals in the supporting non-statutory plan have had an opportunity to
have them taken into account by the body promoting that plan, whether or not that is
the authority making the order.

15. It is also recognised that it may not always be feasible or sensible to wait until the full
details of the scheme have been worked up, and planning permission obtained, before
proceeding with the order. Furthermore, in cases where the proposed acquisitions form
part of a longer-term strategy which needs to be able to cope with changing
circumstances, it is acknowledged that it may not always be possible to demonstrate
with absolute clarity or certainty the precise nature of the end-use proposed for the
particular areas of land included in any particular CPO. In all such cases the
responsibility will lie with the acquiring authority to put forward a compelling case for
acquisition in advance of resolving all the uncertainties.

Confirmation

16.  Any decision about whether to confirm an order made under section 226(1)(a) of the
1990 Act will be made on its own merits, but the factors which the Secretary of State
can be expected to consider include:

(iy  whether the purpose for which the land is being acquired fits in with the adopted
planning framework for the area or, where no such up-to-date framework exists,
with the core strategy and any relevant Area Action Plans in the process of
preparation in full consultation with the community;

24

September 2006 Compulsory Purchase Procedure Manual

Page 108




Circular 06/2004 Appendix 1d

(ii) the extent to which the proposed purpose will contribute to the achievement of
the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-

being of the area;

(iii) the potential financial viability of the scheme for which the land is being
acquired. A general indication of funding intentions, and of any commitments
from third parties, will usually suffice to reassure the Secretary of State that there
is a reasonable prospect that the scheme will proceed. The greater the
uncertainty about the financial viability of the scheme, however, the more
compelling the other grounds for undertaking the compulsory purchase will need
to be. The timing of any available funding may also be important. For example, a
strict time-limit on the availability of the necessary funding may be an argument
put forward by the acquiring authority to justify proceeding with the order before
finalising the details of the replacement scheme and/or the statutory planning
position;

(iv) whether the purpose for which the acquiring authority is proposing to acquire the
land could be achieved by any other means. This may include considering the
appropriateness of any alternative proposals put forward by the owners of the
land, or any other persons, for its re-use. It may also involve examining the .
suitability of any alternative locations for the purpose for which the land is being
acquired.

£

Section 226{1)(b)

17, Section 226(1) (b) allows an authority, if authorised, to acquire land in their area which
is required for a purpose which it is necessary to achieve in the interests of the proper
planning of an area in which the land is situated. The potential scope of this power is
broad. It is intended to be used primarily to acquire land which is not required for
development, redevelopment or improvement, or as part of such a scheme.

Section 226(3)

18.  In addition to land to which section 226(1) applies (‘the primary land’), section 226(3)
provides that an order made under section 226(1) may also provide for the compulsory
purchase of

(a) any adjoining land which is required for the purpose of executing works for
facilitating the development or use of the primary land; or

(b) land to give in exchange for any of the primary land which forms part of a
common or open space or fuel or field garden allotment.

An authority intending to acquire land for either of these purposes in connection with
the acquisition of land under subsection (1) must therefore specify in the same order, the
appropriate subsection (3) acquisition power and purpose.

Section 226(4)

19.  This subsection provides that it is immaterial by whom the authority propose that any
activity or purpose mentioned in subsections (1) or (3)(a) of section 226 should be

Compulsory Purchase Procedure Manual September 2006 25

Page 109 , o




Appendix 1d

Circular 06/2004

undertaken or achieved. In particular, the authority need not propose to undertake an
activity or achieve a purpose themselves.

Section 245 of the 1990 Act

20.

21.

Section 245(1) provides the Secretary of State with the right to disregard objections to
orders made under section 226 which, in his opinion, amount to an objection to the
provisions of the development plan.

Sections 245(2) and (3) have been repealed and replaced by section 13C of the
Acquisition of Land Act 1981 as inserted by section 100 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act (see paragraphs 19 to 21 of the Annex to this Part).

INTERESTS IN CROWN LAND

22.

Sections 293 and 296 of the 1990 Act apply where an acquiring authority with planning
powers proposes to acquire land compulsorily under section 226 in which the Crown has
an interest. The Crown's interest cannot be acquired compulsorily under section 226,
but an interest in land held otherwise than by or on behalf of the Crown may be
acquired with the agreement of the appropriate body. This might arise, for example,
where a government department which holds the freehold interest in certain land may
agree that a lesser interest, perhaps a lease or a right of way, may be acquired
compulsorily and that that interest may, therefore, be included in the order. Further
advice about the purchase of interests in Crown land is given in Appendix N.

26

September 2006 Compulsory Purchase Procedure Manual

Page 110




l'

APPENDIX B

Application No  $/00533/001
11141

Miss Claire Newbury,
Turley Associates
25, Savile Row
London

WIS 2ES

Town and ntry Planning Act 1990 (as amended

The Town and Couyntry Planning General Regulations 1992 (as amended)

IN pursuance of their powers under the above-mentioned Acts and Regulations, the
Council of the Borough of Slough as the Local Planning Authority, HEREBY
GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION under Regulation 3 of the Town and Country
Planning General Regulations 1992 and in accordance with your application dated 13th
May 2010 and the accompanying plans and particulars, for;

Proposal: REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FOR A NEW LIBRARY AND
CULTURAL CENTRE INCLUDING LIFE LONG LEARNING
FACILITIES, MULTI PERFORMANCE SPACE/COUNCIL
CHAMBER, TEACHING ROOMS, GALLERY SPACE, CAFE,
EXTERNAL READING GARDEN, NEW VEHICULAR
ACCESSES, PHASED PROVISION OF ENHANCED
PEDESTRIAN LINKS, PUBLIC REALM AND LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS. THE PROPOSAL WILL INVOLVE THE
DEMOLITION OF PART OF THE REAR OF 3-4 WILLIAM
STREET, THE RAMP AND TOILET BLOCK ATTACHED TO
QUEENSMERE SHOPPING CENTRE AND SCOPE FOR THE
FUTURE DEMOLITION OF 7-11 MCKENZIE SQUARE FOR
ENHANCED PUBLIC REALM AND PEDESTRIAN LINKS.

Location: DAY CENTRE AND PRUDENTIAL YARD, WILLIAM STREET,
SLOUGH, BERKSHIRE

Dated this 5th August 2010
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITION(S):

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within five years from the date of
this permission.,

REASON To prevent the accumulation of planning permissions, and to enable the
Council to review the suitability of the development in the light of altered circumstances

and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

The development hereby approved shall be implemented only in accordance with the

following plans and drawings hereby approved unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Page 111



ApplicationNo  $/00533/001
11141

(a) Drawing No. 09018-C-015, Heart of Slough Master plan, Rev A, Received 19.07. 10;
(b) Drawing No. 09018-C-011, Site Plan, Rev A, Received 19.07.10;

(c) Drawing No. 09018-C-001, Ground Floor Plan, Rev A, Received 19.07.10;

(d) Drawing No. 09018-C-016, Interim Phase Site Plan, Received 24.05.10:

(e) Drawing No. 09018-C-003, First Floor Plan, Received 17.05.10;

(f) Drawing No. 08004-D-P-007A, Dated 27.01.09, Roof Plan - Phase 1:

() Drawing No. 08004-D-P-008A, Dated 27.01.09, Roof Plan - Phase 1 & 2;

(h) Drawing No. 08004-D-P-011, Dated 15.10.08, Location Plan;

(1) Drawing No. 08004-D-E-051A, Dated 27.01.09, West Elevation;

(j) Drawing No. 08004-D-E-052, Dated 10.10.08, East, South and North Elevation;

(k) Drawing No. 08004-DP-0010A, Dated 27.01.09, Site Service Plan;

(1) Drawing No. 08004-D-P-009C, Dated 02.02.09, Context Plans Pre HoS;

(m) Drawing No, 08004-D-P-002C, Dated 02.02.09, Context Plans HoS;

(n) Drawing No. 08004-D-S-101A, Dated 27.01.09, Longitudanal Sections 1 & 2;

(0) Drawing No. 08004-D-S-102A, Dated 27.01.09, Cross Sections 3 & 4;

(p) Drawing No. 08004-D-S-103A, Dated 27.01.09, Cross Section 5;

(@) Drawing No. BBL-SK300610-02_rev A, Dated 27.07.10, Plan of Visibility Splays.

REASON To ensure that the site is developed in accordance with the submitted
application and to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenity
of the area in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development
Framework, Core Strategy 2006 - 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008
and Policies within The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

. Samples of external materials and design details of external materials to be used on the

development hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the scheme is commenced on site.

REASON To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development and to protect the
amenities of the area in accordance with Core policy 8 of The Slough Local Development
Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008,

+ Prior to the commencement of any part of the development a detailed scheme for the
installation of CCTV cameras to monitor the public realm within site and its immediate
surrounds, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
This scheme shall include details of the provision of CCTV both during construction and
once the development is operational. It shall also include details of:

* The number and location of the CCTV cameras to be installed;

* The specification, transmission and monitoring of the CCTV cameras to be installed;
* The method of connecting the CCTV cameras to the existing Slough CCTV Network;
and

* The ongoing maintenance of the CCTV cameras.

REASON To ensure the public's safety throughout all stages of the development in
accordance with Core Policy 12 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core
Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008,

. No development shall take place within the application site until a programme of
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation has first been
secured and implemented. The written scheme of investigation shall have first been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 112




Application No  $/00533/001
11141

The written scheme of investigation shall include phasing of the investigation, project
design and provision for further investigation work or phase of work to be implemented if
archaeology is found or if construction details change. The provision for further work
shall include mitigation in the form of preservation by record or preservation in situ as
appropriate. Any further work shall be carried out in accordance with details that have
first been approved in writing by the local planning authority.

REASON To ensure that any archaeological remains within the site are adequately
investigated and recorded or preserved in situ in the interest of protecting the
archacological heritage of the borough in accordance with Core Policy 9 of The Slough
Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document,
December 2008.

.+ Prior to the commencement of development approved by this planning permission (or
such other date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority), the following components of a scheme to deal with the risks
associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and approved, in
writing, by the Local Planning Authority:

1. A site investigation scheme, based on Contaminated Land Preliminary Risk
Assessment (Buro Happold April 2010), to provide information for a detailed assessment
of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

2. The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (1) and, based on these,
an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation
measures required and how they are to be undertaken.

3. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in (2) are complete and identifying any requirements
for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for
contingency action.

Any changes to these components require the express consent of the local planning
authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

REASON The site is in a sensitive location regarding groundwater protection. The
Environment Agency have reviewed the Contaminated Land Preliminary Risk
Assessment Report prepared by Buro Happold (April 2010). Potential contaminant
sources were identified on site and the risk to groundwater was assessed as Moderate/Low
and we concur with the recommendations proposed in the report. Therefore, further
investigation of the land with respect to its former use is required to fulfil the condition
and the objectives of PPS23, If the construction of the Library complex will include soft
landscaping and SUDs, leachate test will be required in accordance with Core Policy 8 of
The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008,

.+ Prior to occupation of any part of the permitted development, a verification report
demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved remediation strategy and
the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the
Local Planning Authority, The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring
carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site
remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include any plan (a ‘long-term monitoring

Page 113




10.

11,

Application No  $/00533/001
11141

and maintenance plan’) for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and
arrangements for contingency action, as identified in the verification plan, and for the
reporting of this to the Local Planning Authority.

REASON Depending on the outcome of any ground investigation and subsequent risk
assessment, it may be necessary for remediation to be carried out. If this is the case, it will
be necessary to demonstrate that any work has been carried out effectively and the
environmental risks have been satisfactorily managed in accordance with Core Policy 8 of
The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008.

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at
the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained
written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, an amendment to the remediation
strategy detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

REASON Previous activities on site points to a variety of potential contaminants. This
site sits on top of a Secondary Aquifer and groundwater quality needs to be protected in
accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core
Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008,

Prior to the commencement of demolition of the service ramp and the Queensmere Toilet
Block (identified on Drawing: 09018-SK-260710-Rev A, received on the 28.07.10) a
detailed strategy shall be provided with further details in respect of:

. phasing of demolition and continuance of servicing to the Prudential
Yard;

. suitable alternative public toilets;

. details of the phasing and delivery of the development, including details

of temporary and permanent pedestrian routes to be provided between Wellington Street
and McKenzie Square,

REASON To ensure quality of the development, visual amenity of the area, continued
public access from Wellington Street to Mackenzie Square in accordance with Core
Policies 6 and 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-
2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

Prior to the commencement of development a Construction Traffic Strategy and
Management Plan will be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. This shall include details of loading/unloading and turning areas of
construction vehicles. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
details approved.

REASON In the interests of highway safety and operation in accordance with Core Policy
7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008.

No demolition or construction work shall take place outside the hours of 08:00 - 18:00 hrs
Monday to Friday, 08:00 - 13:00 hrs on a Saturday and there shall be no working at all on
Sundays or public holidays.

REASON To ensure that there is limited impact from construction noise on the Church

Page 114




12.

13.

14,

15.

Application No  $/00533/001
11141

services and Presbytery in accordance with Core Polices 6 and 8 of The Slough Local
Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document,
December 2008.

The development shall not commence until a Construction Method Statement has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include measures
to:

(a) Minimise, re-use and re-cycle waste, including materials and waste arising from
demolition;

(b) Minimise the pollution potential of unavoidable waste; and

(c) Dispose of unavoidable waste in an environmentally acceptable manner,

The approved details shall be implemented during the course of building operations.

REASON In the interests of highway safety and operation in accordance with Core Policy
7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008,

No occupation of the development shall take place until details of all external site lighting
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details
of the external site lighting shall include details of the lighting units, levels of illumination
and hours of use. No lighting shall be provided at the site other than in accordance with
the approved scheme.

REASON In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The
Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan
Document, December 2008.

No building or development approved by this permission, shall commence until a surface
water drainage scheme, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the
hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development, has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall subsequently be
implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is
completed. The scheme shall also include a detailed surface water strategy including full
pipe network and supporting calculations to demonstrate that the system is able to cope

with a variety of storm events up to and including the 1 in 100 year plus allowance for
climate change event,

REASON To prevent the increased risk of flooding, and ensure future maintenance of the
surface water drainage system in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local

Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document,
December 2008,

No building or development shall take place until details of the drainage works have been

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details are to
comply with the following requirements:

. Discharge to surface water sewer to be a maximum of 20
litres/second/hectare:;
. Measures to reduce the overall volume of discharge by 5 %. eg, Green

roofs, reuse, etc; and
. The developer must demonstrate that a competent management system is

Page 115




16,

17,

18,

19.

20.

Application No  $/00533/001
11141

in place for the drainage maintenance. The developer should demonstrate that failure of
his drainage system will not prejudice adjoining property.

REASON To ensure that foul and surface water discharge from the site is satisfactory and
shall not prejudice the existing sewerage systems in accordance with Core Policy 8 and 9
of The Slough Local Development Framewark, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008.

The proposed development shall be designed and constructed to meet a BREEAM
standard of 'very good' with an aspiration for 'excellent' unless it can be demonstrated that
this is not technically feasible and has been agreed in writing by the local authority.

REASON To ensure the sustainability of the development in accordance with Core Policy
8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008,

The proposed development shall obtain at least ten percent of the total predicted energy
requirements of the Development from renewable energy sources, in accordance with the
principles set out in the planning Statement. The details of the proposed roof mounted
solar photovoltaic panels or alternatives to achieve the ten percent renewable energy will
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing prior to a Material
Operation being carried out on the Site.

REASON To ensure the sustainability of the development in accordance with Core Policy
8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008,

Details of the Public Realm within the application site shall be designed in accordance
with the principles set out in the approved Heart of Slough Public Realm Strategy. The
details of the Public Realm shall be consistent with the 'Tllustrative Landscape Masterplan'
(submitted in the Landscape Strategy, Drawing Number: 0918-KD-1005 10-O-1, recorded
on 17 May 2010) submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to the commencement of construction on the application site. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON In the interests of visual amenity and the interests of the amenities of adjacent
occupiers in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development
Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

No building or development shall take place until the applicant has demonstrated to the
Local Planning Authority that any areas intended for A3 (Restaurants and Cafes) use is
suitable for the installation of the necessary ventilation equipment and ducting works.

REASON In the interests of the amenities of the area in accordance with Core Policy 8 of
The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008.

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be permitted
other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may
be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no
resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Page 116




21,

22

23

24,

25.

Application No  $/00533/001
11141

REASON Piling or other penetrative methods of foundation design on contaminated sites
can cause unacceptable risks to the groundwater in accordance with Core Policies 8 and 9
of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008.

No occupation of the development shall take place a Delivery and Servicing Plan has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in
consultation with the Highway Authority. In addition to information on the management
of deliveries and servicing, it should contain explain how the car park will be managed
and contain a risk assessment of the safety of locating disabled parking within the service
yard. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved Delivery
and Servicing Plan,

REASON In the interests of highway safety and to ensure that deliveries and servicing
can be undertaken away from the adjoining highway in accordance with Core Policy 7 of
The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008,

No occupation of the development shall take place until a management plan for
landscaping (including boundary treatments) and the public realm has been submitted and
approved in writing by the Council. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

REASON In the interests of visual amenity, the amenities of adjacent occupiers and to
ensure the setting of listed buildings is protected in accordance with Core Policies 8 and 9
of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008.

No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted at any stage of
development other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority,

which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is
no resultant unacceptable risk to controlled waters.

REASON To prevent contamination of the water environment in accordance with Core
Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026,
Development Plan Document, December 2008.

Prior to occupation of any buildings any machinery, plant or equipment including
ventilation systems and extractor fans must be so enclosed and/or attenuated that noise
there from does not, at any time, increase the pre-existing background noise levels,
Where such units are in the vicinity of residential dwellings, noise levels from machinery,

plant or equipment must not cause an increase of pre-existing noise levels as measured
according to B.S. 4142: 1997,

REASON To ensure that plant/machinery/building is adequately soundproofed in the
interests of the amenities of the occupiers of adjacent residential property or the occupiers
of nearby premises in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development
Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

A detailed design for the new access onto William Street is required to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the Local
Highway Authority. No development shall commence until the approved junction design
has been constructed and a provisional certificate issued by the Highway Authority.

Page 117




26.

27.

28,

29.

ApplicationNo  $/00533/001
11141

REASON In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The
Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan
Document, December 2008,

No part of the development shall be occupied until the pedestrian visibility splays of 2.4 x
2.4 metres (measured from the back of footway) have been provided on both sides of the
access and the area contained within the splays shall be kept free of any obstruction
exceeding 600 mm in height above the nearside channel level of the carriageway.

REASON To provide adequate intervisibility between the access and the existing public
highway for the safety and convenience of users of the highway and of the access in
accordance with Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core
Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

The development shall not be occupied until visibility splays have been provided to the
north of the access between a point 2.4 metres along the centre line of the access
measured from the back line of footway and a point 70 metres along the back line of
footway measured from the intersection of the centre line of the access. The area
contained within the splays and shown in drawing number 09018 - Plan of Visibility
Splays_BBL-SK300610-02_rev A shall be kept free of any obstruction exceeding 0.6
metres in height above the nearside channel level of the carriageway.

REASON To provide adequate inter-visibility between the access and the existing public
highway for the safety and convenience of users of the highway in accordance with Core
Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026,
Development Plan Document, December 2008.

The development shall not commence until a detailed scheme for the provision of a
secure cycle storage/parking (including location, housing and cycle stand details) and
access arrangements has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority / Highway Authority. Unless otherwise agreed in writing the provision of a
secure cycle store and an unobstructed footway shall be provided in accordance with the
Local Planning Authority's 'Cycle Parking Standards'. No part of the development shall
then be occupied until the cycle store and access links have been laid out and constructed
in accordance with the approved details and that area shall not thereafter be used for any
other purpose other than cycle storage,

REASON To ensure that adequate and convenient cycle storage is provided to accord
with the adopted cycle parking standards, T2 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004
and Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Development Plan
Document, December 200 and the Slough Integrated Transport Strategy,

Within six months of first occupation a Travel Plan to be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the Highway Authority.
The Travel Plan shall be produced in accordance with the adopted Slough Borough
Council Travel Plan Guidance and contain, but not limited to, the following:

- Travel survey results for staff and visitor travel;
- Initiatives and measures to encourage access to the site by a variety of non-car modes;
- Short, medium and long-term targets for increasing the modal share of non-car modes;

- Set out a monitoring and reporting procedure to ensure compliance with the Travel Plan
objectives;

Page 118




e

- e

30.

Application No  $/00533/001
11141

- Set out a strategy for marketing and implementing the Travel Plan;

- Identify the Travel Plan Coordinator and outline their responsibilities in delivering the
objectives of the Travel Plan; and,

- Set out what budget is being made available to implement the Travel Plan.

The operator of the Travel Plan shall use their best endeavours to ensure that the agreed
targets within the plan are achieved. The Annual Report shall be sent to the Local
Planning Authority on the anniversary of the implementation of the Travel Plan,

REASON In order to reduce travel by car in accordance with Policy T15 of The Adopted
Slough Local Plan 2004, Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework,
Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008 and to meet the
objectives of the Slough Integrated Transport Strategy.

The development shall not commence development until a revised plan is submitted
showing the location of the roller shutter door or gate/barrier is set back a minimum of
18m from the edge of the adjoining carriageway.

REASON In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The
Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan
Document, December 2008,

INFORMATIVE(S):

This decision has been taken having regard to the policies and proposals in the Adopted
Local Plan for Slough 2004, the Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy
2006 - 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008, as stet out below,
Supplementary Planning Guidance and to all relevant material considerations.

Policies:- PPS1, PPS5, PPS6, PPG13, Policies, EN1, EN3, ENS, EN9, EN17, T2 and T8
of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004, Core Policies, 1, 6, 7, 8, 9,10, 11 and 12 of
The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development
Plan Document, December 2008,

This informative is only intended as a summary of the reasons for the grant of planning
permission. For further detail on the decision please see the application report by
contacting the Development Contro! Section on 01753 477340,

There is a Thames water main crossing the development site which may/will need to be
diverted at the developers cost, or necessitate amendments to the proposed development
design so that the aforementioned main can be retained. Thames Water will not allow
any building within 3 metres of water mains. Unrestricted access must be available at all
times for maintenance and repair. Please contact Thames Water Developer Services,
Contact Centre on Telephone No: 08458502777 for further information,

Thames Water requires details on the historical flows (both foul and surface water) to
enable them to carry out a desk top study. If it is identified that increased flows from the
site are identified, impact studies of the existing infrastructure will be necessary to
determine the magnitude of any new capacity required in the system and a suitable

connection point. The developer may be required to fund this and early contact with
Thames Water is recommended,

Page 119




Application No  $/00533/001
11141

Under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991, the prior written consent of the
Environment Agency is required for any discharge of sewage or trade effluent into
controlled waters (eg watercourses and underground waters), and may be required for any
discharge of surface water to such controlled waters or for any discharge of sewage or
trade effluent from buildings or fixed plant into or onto ground or into waters which are
not controlled waters. Such consent may be withheld. Contact our Permitting Support
Centre on 08708 506506 for further details.

SUDS should conform to the Groundwater Regulations 1998 to prevent the introduction
of substances in List 1 of the regulations, such as hydrocarbons, and pollution from
contaminants in List 2,

The developer should refer to the Interim Code of Practice for Sustainable Drainage
Systems, which can be downloaded from www.ciria.org.uk. They should also refer to
CIRIA Report C609 'Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems - Hydraulic, Structural and
Water Quality Advice'.

. The discharge of clean roof water to ground is acceptable. However, all roof water down-
pipes should be connected to the drainage system directly, or by means of back inlet
gullies sealed to stop pollutants entering the system from surface run-off, disposal or
other forms of discharge.

Roof water should preferably not discharge to soakaways used to drain road and vehicle
parking areas. Drainage from covered car parking floors should be connected to the foul
sewer. Where roof parking is proposed surface water may need to pass through an
approved oil separator before connecting to the surface water system, Guidance on the
use and design of oil separators in surface water drainage systems (PPG 03) may be found
on the Environment Agency website: www.environment-
agency.gov.uk/business/444251/44473 l/ppg.

+ The Environment Agency has provided the the following advice on Soakaway Design;

* Soakaways should be constructed as shallow as practicable and should, under no
circumstances, intersect the water table. Where the surface water is potentially
contaminated (e.g. road / car park run-off), this is particularly important and it is essential
to maintain the maximum distance possible between the base of the soakaway and the
water table to allow the attenuation and biodegradation of pollutants.

* No soakaways shall be constructed in contaminated ground, unless an appropriate risk
assessment has shown that the disposal complies with the Groundwater Regulations 2009
or site-specific environmental quality standards agreed with the Environment Agency,

* If a petrol / oil separator is required in areas where a fuel spill is possible, clean roof
water should not pass through the separator and, preferably, should not discharge to
soakaways used to drain road and vehicle parking areas, The separator will be more
effective if it only has to deal with the most contaminated water. Regular maintenance
will be essential. For more information on this, refer to PPG3, although be aware that this
guidance is more applicable for discharges to watercourses / sewers

. The appl icant will need to apply to the Council’s Local Land Charges on 01753 875039
or email to 0350SN&N @slough.gov.uk for street naming and/or numbering of the unit/s.
!

Page 120




10.

11.

12.

13.

Application No  $/00533/001
11141

The development must be so designed and constructed to ensure that surface water from
the development does not drain onto the highway or into the highway drainage system,

The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to obstruct the public
highway by the erection of scaffolding, hoarding, skip or any other device or apparatus
for which a license must be sought from the Highway Authority.

The applicant will need to take the appropriate protective measures to ensure the highway
and statutory undertakers apparatus are not damaged during the construction of the
development.

This permission shall not be deemed to confer any right to obstruct the Public Right of
Way crossing or abutting the site which shall be kept open and unobstructed until legally
stopped up or diverted under section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The applicant is advised that advisory signs denoting the presence of the public footpath
or bridleway crossing the site are required. Please contact the Rights of Way Officer at
Slough Borough Council in this respect.

The applicant must enter into an agreement under s177 of the Highways Act 1980 to
allow the building/ to oversail the highway (once dedicated),

Informatives

The applicant is hereby informed that commencing development without first having
complied with the pre-commencement conditions as set out in this decision notice may mean
that the decision notice will expire and render the development to be unlawful,

This notice DOES NOT convey any consent that you may require for Building Regulations. If
you are unsure whether you need Building Regulations approval and before you start any
work please contact Building Control Services independently on (01753) 875810 to check
Whether they require an application, '

Page 121




o pm it ¢ e e e —aas . S e T e ag 2% TTS

Application No

S$/00533/001
11141

This approval does not convey any approval or consent under the Building Regulations or any

enactment other than the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Wesley McCarthy
On behalf of

DEC3r3faci Head of Planning and Strategic Policy

Page 122




APPENDIX C

LCC Site — Parties and Current State of Negotiations

This list may be subject to amendment after a further detailed review of the
scheme design and finalisation of the land referencing exercise.

The Council, via its agents Drivers Jonas Deloitte, has sought to engage with
all parties whose land or interests in land are required to assemble the LCC
Site, in order to seek the acquisition of the land/interests in land by
agreement. A summary of the current status of these negotiations is provided
below.

1. Equistates

Equistates Investments Limited (Equistates) — in respect of the rear of 2-6
Prudential Buildings, William Street (former Code Nightclub)

Equistates hold a long leasehold interest in the Prudential Buildings from the
Council, which expires in December 2036. Equistates in turn sub-let the
Prudential Buildings to various parties, including the former Code nightclub
which is held on an under-lease by Broadway Inns until June 2021.

In order to deliver the LCC, it is necessary to remove a rear section of the
former Code nightclub, to provide a new vehicular access to the Prudential
yard from William Street. This in turn will facilitate the removal of the service
ramp from the Queensmere Shopping Centre, which at present provides the
sole means of access to the service yard for larger vehicles.

Equistates have been kept informed of the Heart of Slough proposals as they
have developed over recent years. A number of meetings have been held
between the project team and Equistates and negotiations continue.

2. Broadway Inns

Broadway Inns Limited — in respect of the rear of 2-6 Prudential Buildings,
William Street (former Code Nightclub)

Broadway Inns are not currently in occupation of the former Code nightclub
but hold an underlease expiring in June 2021.

The Council has not yet entered into direct negotiations with Broadway Inns
on the basis that an agreement should first be reached with their landlord
Equistates.

3. Criterion Capital

Slough Shopping Centre LLP (Criterion Capital) — in respect of part of the
Prudential Yard, the ramp leading to the Prudential Yard from the

Page 123



Queensmere Shopping Centre, public conveniences, landscaping, pedestrian
walkways and fire exits

It is necessary to remove the service yard ramp, relocate a toilet block and
amend servicing and fire escape provisions at the Queensmere Shopping
Centre. It is also necessary to acquire land between the Queensmere
Shopping Centre and the Church, which is required for public realm works.

At present, the ramp is the only means of vehicular access to the High
Street/William Street properties which back on to the Prudential Yard.
Consequently various parties, including the Council, retain rights to use the
ramp for the purposes of accessing the Prudential Yard. The ramp is
understood to be regarded as an impediment to realising potential
redevelopment of the western end of the Queensmere Shopping Centre and
its removal is therefore considered to offer potential benefits to Criterion
Capital.

Criterion Capital were initially approached in November 2008 and a meeting
held with Drivers Jonas Deloitte. Following the design development work
which has generated the current LCC proposal, Criterion were invited to re-
engage in negotiations in July 2010. The Council has made a number of
attempts to advance discussions with Criterion but no progress has been
made to date.

4. Scottish and Southern Enerqgy

Scottish and Southern Energy plc — in respect of an electricity sub-station

Scottish and Southern Energy (SSE) control an electricity sub-station located
underneath the Queensmere Shopping Centre service ramp.

For the purposes of compulsory purchase orders, utility operators are deemed
to be statutory undertakers. Whilst a statutory undertaker can be included
within a compulsory purchase order, if the statutory undertaker objects, the
order can only be confirmed if the minister responsible for that utility deems
that the land can be acquired without detriment to the service being provided.

In practice this means that agreement needs to be reached with the statutory
undertaker to relocate or reprovide its apparatus in order to allow a CPO to be
confirmed. Accordingly, the project team is working with SSE to indentify
suitable alternative locations for the sub-station.

5. The Northampton Roman Catholic Diocese Trustee

The Northampton Roman Catholic Diocese Trustee — in respect of a small
grassed area and footway

One of the key considerations in developing the design for the LCC has been

to respect the setting of St Ethelburt’s Church and minimise the level of
disturbance caused.

Page 124



The Learning Curve proposal would have required the relocation of the St
Ethelburt’'s Church Hall, as well as works to the gardens to the rear of the
church. In contrast, the LCC design has sought to minimise the land required
from the Church. Despite these efforts, a small wedge of the Church’s land is
shown on the Title Register to fall within the area required for public realm
works (as shown on Plan 3). Subject to verifying the Church’s ownership of
this land, agreement between the Church and the Council will need to be
reached for its transfer and/or future management.

The Council’s Property Consultants will continue to engage in discussions

with the Church to reach agreement on how best to manage the boundary
with the LCC.

6 Other Rights

In addition to the parties who have interests in land required for the scheme,
there are over 200 existing rights which will potentially be interfered with by
the LCC proposal. These interests are predominantly in the form of rights of
way for access, servicing and fire escape routes. These rights and their
owners will be identified in the land referencing process which is underway.

As part of the planning application process, a survey of the Prudential Yard
operation was undertaken to review how servicing could be accommodated
post development of the LCC. It is intended that a Delivery and Servicing Plan
will shortly be developed once the review of existing rights has been
completed, with the intention of providing appropriate alternative means of
servicing and access where required.

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



PROY LINOWBINGG L0} J00f] Puodas:

0£-50-8002

3 v ® 00521
4 woqt 5z 0
; sdysisuLied ys§bu3

uejd Jupdioog

100} PUNOJL) '@ BOUBIBYSY "SI €604 10 SI0
ybnojg jo ueay

89£810001 QD o3 @560 peAIasaY WBHAdOD uMoID @
80Q AlouopeIg 5AISa{Ey J9H J0 uojssIuLad GUL Y deyy (9GP 9§08 0SZH:) AEAING BOUBUPIQ o1 U0 poseg

{oAa) punaib je
Aiepunoq as Juswdogeasp

i
b il

Aiepunoq uogeaydde
Bupuueyd wouy papnpxa eale

N

e _\ /600 /MO BN 6 WemH NOLLVI G ENINNYId INILLO

Kiepunog uopeoyide Bupueyd _H_ N

e




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



Plan 2
Outline of the Council's land required for appropriation to planning purposes

; N
1

Bus Stg
Multistorg

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



wa\:

EERTAS ‘okoziAm;
1

3ind 4o Asioysinpy
pup uoilplS sng

mm\_ﬁoommm —._‘DN©7 (G.HO|NYA|a.sq| NOILdI¥OS3a LEL] %N"00°S8JBI00SSERUOSIAd MMM
VYNOSY3| STULIN 3V SLINN ONIMVHEA anssi Lyl oy 064412 €0VLO ‘xeq
66LLLZ €0VLO (8L
2y LO-NVId-brve-vd 03HIND3Y SIHOM MIN SIS T NG ol A v |
o o] TVILNZLO DNLLYOIONI NV1d OdO FOSE TS S i) 1 xassne Laom
01300V SHUNE0 SNIAdOHS FANSNTID 10 19ve | T
[eJ8UBD\aYD — Q34INOIY SLHOINE M3IN TVILNILOd l Qv Q30NYHED A4 MY 3L IS U_KM‘WHMMOFM
Whvz-08 10310 NC ‘0 3SNOH SAVTOMVE
nouvoor 314 (3LINS LSY3) 40014 ONZ
os 7 110Z AYVANYE AYVHEITHONOTS siowoio [ |
o g TIONNOD HONOHOE HONOTS
LV © 005:+
v oo
Uy L L0Z 9¥¥610001 “SBuPeBo0Id 1A J0 Uopnoasaid o) pea) Aews pue 1BpAdoD umosD SaBupu| UoaNPoIda) pasuouINEUN BAGOD UMOID © BIHO
Kisuonels sAisalel JoH 10 J8lj0AUOD BU) 10 JEYSG UO @ABAING BOUBUPIQ JO UOISSIuLIad aU) UM [BLBJE ASAINS SOUEUPIO W0 paonpoidas §i dew siu]
o ~
uo
0s ans 3
awsuson O
oy,
s
by 0,
¢

Page 131

RESERS




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132



AGENDA ITEM 10

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24" January 2011

CONTACT OFFICERS: Elizabeth Jenkins, Acting Head of Legal Services

(For all enquiries) 01753 875033

WARD (S): Wexham

PORTFOLIO: Leader, Finance Strategy - Councillor Anderson
PART |

NON-KEY DECISION

APPROPRIATION OF LAND AT MORAY DRIVE, SLOUGH , BERKSHIRE

1.

41

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval to publicise the Council’s
intention to appropriate open space land at Moray Drive, Slough, Berkshire from
open space to planning purposes as set out in paragraph 2.1 below.

Recommendations/ Proposed Actions

The Cabinet is requested to resolve that notice be given of the Council’s intention to
appropriate the land shown edged red on the Plan annexed to this report at
Appendix A, which forms part of the Moray Drive playground (“the Land”), from
open space to planning purposes under the provisions of Section 122 of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended) (the “1972 Act”) and to consider any
objections to the proposed appropriation at its meeting in March 2011.

Community Strategy Priorities

e Being Safe, Feeling Safe
The installation of new play equipment in the play area will contribute to the
safety of children using the play area.

e A Cleaner, Greener Place to Live, Work and Play
The provision of 2 x four bedroom family homes will provide 2 much needed
larger clean, new family homes which will also reduce the housing waiting list.

Other Implications

Financial:

The recommendation contained in this report does not have any significant
implications although there will be a small cost of publicising the Council’s intention
to appropriate the Land from open space to planning purposes should the Cabinet
follow the recommendation in paragraph 2.1 above.

Page 133



4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

Human Rights Act & Other Legal Implications:

A local authority as a landowner may hold its land for a variety of statutory purposes
eg housing, planning or open space. Section 122 of the 1972 Act permits a local
authority to appropriate (transfer) its land from one statutory purpose to another
where it concludes that the land is no longer required for the former purpose.
However, where the land is currently open space a local authority cannot
appropriate it for another purpose until its intention has been publicised in a notice
and any objections received to the proposed appropriation have been considered.
The relevant statutory provisions are contained in Appendix C to this report.

A local authority, acting in good faith, is a sole judge of the question whether or not
any land is still required for the purpose it is held immediately before the
appropriation and this decision cannot be challenged in the absence of bad faith.

Background/ Supporting Information

On the 15" March 2010, the Council, as Local Planning Authority, granted
conditional planning permission for the erection of a pair of separate semi-detached
two story four bedroom houses with access and parking on land adjacent to 53
Moray Drive and rear of 47-53 Moray Drive, Slough, Berkshire. The area of the
Land is shown edged red on the Plan. The proposed development is to be carried
out by the Thames Valley Housing Association and is illustrated on Plan 2 annexed
to this report as Appendix B.

As Members will see the Land that is the subject of the planning permission
comprises part of the playground at Moray Drive, Slough but the retained open
space shown edged blue on the Plan and which comprises 1,353 square metres will
form part of a new play area. The play area is to be constructed by the developer
with Slough Borough Council approval and this will therefore, add a new play area
to this sit in addition to the social housing.

Once the Council has publicised its intention to appropriate the open space land for
planning purposes the Cabinet will need to consider any objections that are
received and apply the legal test as set out in this report (including Appendix C),
before any decision is made.

Conclusion

Members are requested to authorise the publication of the Council’s intention to
appropriate the area of land shown edged red on the Plan from open space to

planning purposes to facilitate the proposed housing development of the Thames
Valley Housing Association.

Appendices
Appendix A - Plan of the Land
Appendix B - Plan 2 of the housing proposal.

Appendix C - Section 122, Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Page 134



Asset Management
Resources Scale 1: 1,250 @

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence No. 100019446

Moray Drive, Slough

/4

Keea: 1,162 sqm

> \ Playground

)
I/ \
// !
g )
\\ Area: 1,353 sqm ‘\ K T ‘.\ '
\ === P B [ \
\ o T Ty
\ L ] Vo
\ =\ == g ] ‘
\
\ lY \\
!
b
_ ok

\ ) 1 Sa~NC=C
/ 16 \ 3 e
\
A\ \ e B - _
\ S - _
T PR _ v
n P T C,LO?’E_ g— 2o 2
"/ ~ ’\)\*\ap\ 2 — i
_ | ‘e . i \ @ B
\ e N Iy _
(\ - h \\
e Vo - -
= -7 o =
_ =\ 9%‘\|\
- \ %%\ f
@ \ b
RN 2
\ R
\ School House Q
/ .
- ard Bdy
\
= g
\
\

Page 135 07/12/2010



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



WOOINU-IRINGO M Z6L6 1688 0204 616 1688 020 L
DHE IML Weyuaxoim ‘Sjesebiei 1§ ‘eoeld 96po PIO §

i
g
-
§
i

uopero0ssy BuISNOH SIGEINEYD ASifeA SoweL uBnois ‘anuq Aeiow
won> woolosd

100ydS YbIH

oljoyred s,ydesor is

punoibhe|d
aining

Page 137

‘JHVLOIH/SNOOH T18VLIVH oL

IUVLOIH/SONITIEMA 2L
SALISNIQ

SIYVLOTH 8110 HO W/OSI8LL
RENENS

(€:1)$30VdS 9

“ONDIEVd

(swoou

I18VLIEVH 21/ 31d03d 24) TVLOL SONITIAMA 2
IN/OSE'80L ® SISNOH d9 / &Y 'ON

:3TINA3IHOS NOILYAOWWODDV

30V1d3H SINIWLYIHL AWVANNOE ONLLSIX

‘SITI3HL WWoSY HLIM TIVAM 3OIHE Wui000Z MIN
4-3

‘3ON34 030HVOH 3SOTI) WWo0sk ONILSIXT
3-a

‘FON3d ALIHNO3S VAIW

“INJWLV3HL AHVANNOg

HONOTS AAIHA AVHOW



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



APPENDIX C

RELEVANT EXTRACTS FROM SECTION 122 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT
(1972) (AS AMENDED)

(1) Subject to the following provisions of this section, a principal council may
appropriate for any purpose for which the council are authorised by this or any other
enactment to acquire land by agreement any land which belongs to the council and
is no longer required for the purpose for which it is held immediately before the
appropriation; but the appropriation of land by a council by virtue of this subsection
shall be subject to the rights of other persons in, over or in respect of the land
concerned.

(2A) A principal council may not appropriate under subsection (1) above any land
consisting or forming part of an open space unless before appropriating the land
they cause notice of their intention to do so, specifying the land in question, to be
advertised in two consecutive weeks in a newspaper circulating in the area in which
the land is situated, and consider any objections to the proposed appropriation
which may be made to them.

(2B) Where land appropriated by virtue of subsection (2A) above is held-

(a) for the purposes of S.164 of the Public Health Act 1875 (pleasure
grounds); or

(b) in accordance with S.10 of the Open Spaces Act 1906 (duty of local
authority to maintain open spaces and burial grounds)

the land shall by virtue of the appropriation be freed from any trust arising solely by

virtue of its being held in trust for enjoyment by the public in accordance with the
said S.164 or, as the case may be, the said S.10.

EJ /012440-P-609 / 87391 Page 1

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



AGENDA ITEM 11

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24" January 2011

CONTACT OFFICER: Alison Hibbert, Head of Culture and Sports Delivery
(For all enquiries) (01753) 875896

WARD(S): All
PORTFOLIO: Cultural and Leisure — Councillor Chaudhry
Education and Children — Councillor Pantelic

Environment and Open Spaces — Councillor Parmar

PART |
NON-KEY DECISION

PLAY AREA DEVELOPMENT

1 Purpose of Report

To inform Members of the Cabinet of progress on the development and
improvement of Slough’s play areas and play development programme and seek
approval to develop a Play Strategy for the next three to five years.

2 Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action

The Cabinet is requested to resolve:

(a) That the achievements over the two years in the provision of play and in the
improvements made to the Council’s play areas across the borough be noted.

(b) That officers develop a new play strategy which will detail the strategic approach
to be adopted for play area maintenance and development over the next three to
five years.

3 Community Strategy Priorities

Celebrating Diversity, Enabling inclusion
The provision of new play opportunities for all children and young people in Slough
will enable them to enjoy their younger years and to play in harmony.

Adding years to Life and Life to years
Children and young people who get the opportunity to be really active in their
formative years will live longer.

Being Safe, Feeling Safe

All the new play areas enable children and young people to play in a safe
environment whilst being able to explore and develop important skills vital to
successful child development. All installations meet British Standards.

A Cleaner, Greener place to live, Work and Play

All the new play areas fully endorse the principles of a green environment with the
majority of the facilities being laid to turf or surfacing which promotes grass growth.

Page 141



5.1

Areas surrounding new play developments have been fully landscaped or returned
to grass.

Other Implications

(@)  Financial

£52K of additional revenue funding has been allocated from within existing
departmental budgets to this year’s parks and open spaces maintenance budget to
carryout essential health & safety works and improvements works to a number of
play areas, detailed in appendix 1.

The future play strategy will identify resource implications and source to include
capital investment contributions through effective use of the HRA for housing sites.

(b) Risk Management

Recommendation Risk/Threat/Opportunity Mitigation(s)
Note progress on capital | Delays due to adverse Revise implementation
development weather affecting sites, programme and prioritise
programme identified for Department of | all DofE schemes over
Education funding that as a | others for completion by
result take the work past mid March
31° March 2011 and would
not receive DofE funding.

(b) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications

There are no Human Rights or other legal implications in regard of this report

(c) Equalities Impact Assessment

The current programme of play development and refurbishment is supported by a
comprehensive equalities impact assessment. This highlighted a need to ensure all
play areas were accessible for children and young people with disabilities. The new
strategy will revise this EIA.

(d)  Workforce

Funding for the Play Co-ordinator post ceases in March 2011. Through the Culture
and Sports Delivery Team re-structuring, proposed for April 2011, proposals will
incorporate play development functions into the revised service structure. There will
be no cost implication to the Council.

Supporting Information

There are 86 designated play area sites in the borough. The Council owns and
manages 80 of these, the remainder being Parish Council or privately owned.
Slough in relation to neighbouring boroughs is well served for play areas. In
contrasts the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead only manages 31 play
areas and Bracknell Forest Council manages 26 play areas, with an additional 50
sites being managed directly by its parish and town councils.

Page 142




5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.2.4

5.2.5

5.2.6

5.3

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

Play Area Capital Programme

Over the past two years, up to May 2011, the Council will have successfully
developed and upgraded 35 of its play areas. This equates to 41%.

27 of these are complete replacements of older outdated play equipment with new
creative designs offering children and young people a range of new play
experiences such as safe area water features, trampolines, climbing and ‘aerial
runways’.

Slough has secured over £1,400,000 in capital funding since 2008 to contribute to
these improvements. This funding was initially earmarked for the upgrading of 24
play areas, including 2 flag ship areas based in Salt Hill and Upton Court Park. The
use of section 106 and HRA capital has added a further three.

The capital funding has been supported by a £120,000 revenue grant to employ
two specialist play development workers over a 3 year period.

In June during the final phase of the programme, the Department for Education
announced that Playbuilder (DofE) funding would be frozen, leaving Slough with
eight play areas short of its target. A further announcement on 20" October 2010
reversed this decision, enabling Slough to complete Phase 3, the development of a
further eight play areas across the borough.

The revenue funding for the play development workers has not been re-instated
and therefore funding for the Play Co-ordinators post will cease in March 2011.

Improvement Programme

In addition to the funding secured through the DofE the Council has been
successful in securing a BIG Lottery bid, to the value of £322,000, which combined
with Section 106 and HRA capital contributions has provided further investment
delivering improvements to another 11 play areas, bringing the total to 35 by spring
2011. (See appendix 1)

Play Development Programme

In May 2009 the play development team was established using revenue grant
funding from the BIG Lottery and the Department for Education. The Play Co-
ordinator has been responsible for the delivery and project management of the
capital programme alongside a community play programme, run at venues across
the borough. They are supported by the Play Ranger.

Since July 2009 over 3,500 children have used the play ranger service in indoor
and outdoor venues including parks, libraries and schools. The play ranger service
has also hosted the following events:

e National Outdoor Play Week

e Easter Egg Hunt and a family sports day linking in with National Family
Week

e Play Day — held on the 4™ August in Salt Hill Park, attracting over 1,000
children and parents/carers.

Page 143



5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

5.5.3

554

5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3

5.6.4

e Mini Beasts event
e Willow weaving event with professional artists

Alongside this the team has joined in with a number of local events supporting
community development and children’s play.

Tellus4 Survey 2010

The Tellus national survey gathers the satisfaction levels and views of children and
young people in Years 6, 8 and 10, on their life, their school and their local area.
This includes satisfaction on play areas and parks.

Findings from the survey are used to inform policy development and to measure
progress and performance, at a local and national level, across the five Every Child
Matters (ECM) outcomes. The survey supported five key national indicators
including NI 199 ‘children’s and young people’s satisfaction with parks and play
areas’.

Tellus4 results were published in February 2010 and there was substantial
progress on the NI 199 indicator from the previous year, coinciding with the capital
development programme. Slough results:

e Improved by 12.6% from 43.8% (Tellus3) to 56.4% (Tellus4).

e Improved at a faster rate than our comparators.

e The England average increased by 7.7% and the South East average by
7.2%.

e Slough’s Tellus4 figure of 56.4% was 2.3% above the England average of
54.1%.

e Place Slough in the 3rd quartile of satisfaction

In June 2010 the Government announced its decision to stop the Tellus Survey as
part of its commitment to reduce the burdens which data collection imposes on
schools and local authorities.

Future Strategy

To ensure that we maintain the upgraded play areas and continue to improve
provision across the borough the benefits of developing a new play strategy is
recognised.

During October 2010 the Council undertook an audit of the remaining play areas
across the town to gather background information to inform the future strategy. This
identified the accessibility of play areas, the proximity of plays areas within
neighbourhoods and the condition of the equipment and immediate surrounding.

Work is also underway to establish the true cost of play provision in the borough;
including the annual costs of inspection, maintenance and repairs and future
improvements and developments of play sites. This work is of particular importance
in the context of financial pressures facing the Council and combined with the audit
will inform and shape the future strategy.

It is proposed that a new play strategy for the town is presented to Cabinet in July
2011, following consultation, and sets out the Council’s strategic direction for future

Page 144



play provision. It will be a corporate strategy and will ensure that play provision is
delivered in a way which integrates with other related functions of the Council;
notably town planning, housing, parks and open spaces, sport and recreation
provision and sports and arts development.

5.6.5 The strategy will aim to:

e Provide quality, appropriately located play opportunities which meet with
local need identified by consultation with children, young people, parents and
the community.

e Provide facilities accessible to all children and young people within a
maximum of 10 minutes by foot.

e Provide facilities that are value for money, affordable and for which annual
maintenance costs can be sustained

e Lever where possible, additional capital and revenue funding into the Council
to deliver the strategy

6 Comments of Other Committees

During the past two years a number of reports have been received by the Education
and Children’s Scrutiny Panel. Officer's recommendations have always received
support.

7 Conclusion

Much work has been undertaken to improve the town’s play provision using both
external and Council funding. Over the last two years and up to May 2011, over thirty
play areas, 41%, across all wards, will have received investment to improve the
quality of play provision.

It is acknowledged that Slough is well served for play provision as compared to
neighbouring authorities, and that Slough has high customer satisfaction rates as a
direct result of the play improvement programme.

A new strategy is required in order to build upon this work and ensure that recent
improvements and those agreed in the future are sustainable; particularly in the face
of fiscal challenges facing the public sector, and provide play provision of quality to
children and young people within a maximum ten minute walk of their home.

8 Appendices Attached

‘Appendix A’ Slough Play Areas - Scheme of work programme

9. Background Papers

1’ - Minutes and Agenda from the Education and Children's Services Scrutiny
Panels held on 1% September 2008, 16" march 2009, 24™ June 2009 and 1°
February 2010

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



0102 ‘ubisep ul SMOpE3|\ yied
Jaqwaoe( 0S papN|oul SjUsWg|d [eiNjeu pue |euolipel] ‘papuny lapling Aejd | weyuaddi) poomiaa(g
0102 "ubisap ul
Jagwaoe( G papN|oul SjusWa|d [eiNjeu pue |euolipel] ‘papuny ap|ing Aejd KenleyD | @sSnoH Jamo |
0102 "ubisap ul
Jaqwaoe( 06 papN|oul SjusWg|d [eiNjeu pue |euonipel] ‘papuny lapjing Aejd | ybnosogxo4 | Aep) ueidwels
0102 "ubisap ul
Jagwaoe( GG papn|oul SjusWa|d [eiNjeu pue |euollipel] ‘papuny jap|ing Aejd [NwAeH alawlayng
‘Buideaspue| buipnjoul a01S
6002 yoJen GE pajleisul Juswdinba Aejd uspoom |einjeN ‘papuny Japjing Ae|d 9 sijAeg | 09y 9||IAuRID
‘Buideaspue| Buipnjoul a)01S plal4
6002 yoJen AS pajjeisul Juswdinba Aejd uspoom |einjeN ‘papuny Japjing Aejd © sljiAeg yied Jouep
‘Buideospue| Buipnjoul
6002 yoJen el pajleisul Juswdinba Aejd uspoom |einjeN ‘papuny Jap|ing Aejd weyuieq | peoy Aepeie
‘Buideaspue| buipnjoul shiep
6002 Yyolen 86 pajjeisul juswdinba Aejd uspoom |einjeN -papunj Japjing Aejld | 1S As|bue yied woolg
‘Buidesspue| Buipnjoul
6002 UoJeiN 0S pajjeisul Juswdinba Aejd uspoom |einjepN -papuny Japjing Aejd weyxapn SpJoJyYo0Yy
‘'sselb 0} yoeq uaye) a)s aja1ouo) ‘buidedsspue| buipnjoul Aepn
6002 Yyolen 9 pajjeisul Juawdinba Aejd uspoom |einjepN -papunj Japjing Aejd Aanjeyn suewoedg
0102 ‘eale Aejd uoneusaq "UOIIN|OAS JO aWaY) YlIM pajjelsul yed
Jaqwiada( g9l eale Aeid diysbejs mau Jolepy -108loid papuny Aiapo] O|g uoydn uno)H uoydn
‘eale Aejd uoneunsaq -a)s usaib
6002 Bunmoq pjo uo Buideospue| pue Juswdinba ‘ainjes) Jajem yym
Jaqwiaoa( Gzl pajeisul eale Aejd diysbejy map -108loid papuny Aueno 9|g Kanjeyn yied |IIH 1es
sawayossg
|eyide) Jofep
ajep 0003
uonadworn SHIOM JO anjep uonduosaqg piepn awayoss

V XIAN3ddV

SHIOM\ JO oWayog— sealy Aeld

Page 147



punoi9

‘pajuied aq 0y bumg uonealoay
L 1L0Z Yyoieny 6 ‘ped Aidwa Buiysixs JeAo pajjeisul 8q 03 |elad AIqqopn, [enua) Jakmog
SHIOM
juawanoiduw
peoy
L L0Z Yyoieny 0z Aienuep ul paAl@oal aq 0] subisaq [wAeH yoJnyomaN
LLoc
Aenige 4 oV Atenuer ul paaledal aq 0} subisaq [lemig soo7 Jaddn
L LOZ yoJey o¥ Atenuep ul panledal aq 0} subisa(g weyxapn anuQq Aelopy
ajhod % 09y
L 1L0Z Yyoieny 0l apelbdn |1ouno) ysued apisbuoje pajeysul 8q o} aulidiz |  }004qujoD 3004qu|0D
ajhod %
L LOZ Yoren (pereooje) Gz Aenuer ui uoie)nsuo) | 400JqujoD | ||eH PISIISOAA
L 1L0Z yolen (pa1eo0|e) 05 Atenuep ul uoneynsuo) | ybnoiogxo4 Aemeulo)s
L L0C Yoien (payeoojie) 05 Asenuer ul uoije)nsuo) Mg | Undg Hodpug
1102 "ubisap ul
Kenuer 0s papn[oul SJuswWajd [ednjeu pue |euonipel] "papuny Japjing Aed NwAeH yolosale|
1102 ‘ubisep ul shiep\
Jagwaoe( oY papN|oul SjUBW|d [BINjeU pue |euonipel | ‘papunylapling Aeld | 1S As|bueq yied uldep
1102 ‘ubisep ul uaalo aso|D
Aenuer (% papN|oul SjusWg|d [eiNjeu pue |euolipel] ‘papuny lapling Aejd | weyuaddi) uebipien
0102 -Juswdinba Bunsixe apisbuoje saniunuoddo yied
Jagqwaoe( Gl Ae|d asealoul 0} pajelsul aul diz ‘papuny iapjing Ae|d | Jalsiuiapay] Ja)sIwIapay]
1102 ‘ubisep ul SMOpPE3|\
Aenuer (% papN|oul SJUBW|d [BINjeU pue |euonipel] ‘papunylapling Aejd | weyuaddi) | Aepp aploouo)
‘ubisap ul SMOpPE3|\
1 1L0Z Yyoieny G¢ papN|oul SJUBW|d [BINjeU pue |euollipel| ‘papuny lapjing Aejd | weyuaddi) | aAuQ Sa)e9M\
‘ublisep ul
L 1L0Z Yyoien GY papn|oul SjUsWa|d [Binjeu pue |euollipel] ‘papuny ap|ing Aejd [enua) 09y JakAmog
0102 "ublsap ul Aepn
Jaqwaoe( GY papN[oul SJUSWd|d |eJnjeu pue [euonipel] "papuny Japjing Aeid [NwAeH Ayuomsp|oo

Page 148



‘slledal S+H shuep (sJo1unl)

L Loz Aey Jusawdinba mau yym aoejdal jiun Buiquio plo Jo [ercwdy | 1S Asjbue yied woolg
shiep

L LOZ yoJen sselb 0y yoeq adeospue] | 1S Asjbue] apisfiep

901S pIald

L L0Z yolew "'sayouaq pue juswdinba pjo juieday -Buloeunsal Jnogepunoy © silAeg 3yled Joue

uawdinba pjo juieday (s1ounl) Aepn

L L0Z yolew siiedas S+H Aanjeyn suewyoedg

9018 BEN

LLoZ Aein ‘'soseq BuIMS PO JOAO poaas-ay ‘|eAOwWal 11jels) 9 slfeg uiydjopoo

901S aAuQq

L L0Z Yyoieny juswdinba pjo uleday 9 s||feg [[oMWOoID)

(sJorunl)

‘Buiousy juieday suapJleo

L Loz Aey siiedas S+H weyxspn SpJoJYo0Yy

Buiouay Jo |eAroway

‘Buioepns Jsjes ysem jar BNUBAY

L Loz Aey siiedas S+H uoydn yuominH

Jied

LLoZ Aein Juswiadloyulal sseis) | ybnosogxo4 poombuo
sbuims pue jun Ja|ppo} Jo juledey SMOpPE3I\

L 102 Yyoien siedals S+H | weyuaddi) | aAuq 9IN OM
“Jun Buiquid pjo Jo juledey SMOpPE3I\

L LOZ Yyoieny sliedal S+H | weyuaddip SENRIETIET]

suaple

L 1L0Z Yyoieny aul| diz Japun pajeisul 8q 0} buloepuns Jsjes Weyxapn SpJojyooy
shiep

L LOZ yolen aul| diz Jepun pajeisul aq 0} buioepns Jajes | 1S Asjbue yied woolg
sJiedal S+H ENTOS

L 1L0Z Yyoien aul| diz Japun pajeisul 8q 0y buloepns Jsjes Q sijAeg | peoy 9|jiAuelS

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 150



AGENDA ITEM 12

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24" January 2011

CONTACT OFFICERS: Nigel Dicker, Assistant Director Environmental Services &
Quality & Monica Wilsch, Head of Environmental Quality.

(For all enquiries) 01753 875218
WARD(S): All
PORTFOLIO: Environment and Open Spaces — Councillor Parmar

PART |
NON-KEY DECISION

AIR QUALITY UPDATE

1. Purpose Of Report

1. To advise Cabinet of two Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) to be
declared in the Town Centre, caused by a likely breach of health based
standards for nitrogen dioxide. The areas in question are:

(a) A4 Bath Road from the junction with Ledgers Road/Stoke Poges Lane, in an
easterly direction, along Wellington Street, up to the Sussex Place junction.

(b) A355 Tuns Lane from junction 6 of the M4 motorway in a northerly direction
to just past its junction with the A4 Bath Road and A355 Farnham Road, known
as the “Three Tuns”.

2. To advise Cabinet that the breaches of the health based standards are caused
by road traffic, and that any action plan to address the breaches will therefore be
part of the next revision of the Local Transport Plan (LTP) for Slough.

2. Recommendations

Cabinet is requested to resolve:
(a) That the declaration of the two AQMAs be noted.

(b) That continued air quality monitoring in the town centre area be endorsed, so
that information is available to determine progress in mitigation of the AQMAs.

(c) That officers be instructed to lobby for air quality to continue to be a key
consideration when long term infrastructure projects are discussed or consulted
upon.

3. Community Strategy Priorities

A cleaner, greener place to live, work and play

The UK Air Quality Strategy requires declarations of AQMAs where the health-
based standards are breached. Air Quality action plans are a statutory requirement

Page 151



5.1

5.2

5.3

71

if AQMAs are declared. Poor air quality can exacerbate respiratory or
cardiovascular conditions in some people.

Introducing measures to control or reduce traffic will reduce air pollution, traffic
related congestion and also potentially noise, making for a better quality of life for
those in affected areas.

Other Implications

(a) Risk Management

The declaration is mandatory once it has been determined that the exceedences of
the air quality standard are being breached. Continuation of monitoring will provide
data that tracks progress with mitigation actions and once nitrogen dioxide levels fall
below the health based standard for an extended period, allow the removal of the
declaration order.

(b) Financial

None to this report, but existing budgets will be used to allow essential monitoring
activity to continue as per the recommendations.

(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications

There are no direct Human Rights Act implications to this report. The actual
declaration of Air Quality Management Areas is a designated process and requires
the production of sealed documents by Legal Services, following this report.

Supporting Information

Under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 all local authorities must review and
assess the current, and likely future air quality in their areas. Where a local authority
considers that one or more of the air quality objectives as prescribed in regulations
is not likely to be met, it must declare an AQMA, covering the area(s) concerned.

The Local Authority must then draw up an action plan setting out the measures it
intends to take in pursuit of the air quality objectives in the area. The air quality
objectives are health based and were advised by two committees (Expert Panel on
Air Quality Standards and Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollutants).

Two air quality management areas are to be declared, and an action plan will be
included in the next revision of the LTP as road transport has been identified as the
primary source of the air quality problem. The possible need for these air quality
management areas was foreseen and first mooted in 2005, when the Brands Hill
and M4 AQMAs were declared, and the opportunity was then taken by the Council
to include measures to also help improve or at least control town centre air quality,
in LTP2.

Conclusion

AQMAs in the places described above are a legal requirement because the health-
based limits have been monitored and breaches have been recorded. The breaches

Page 152



are caused by congestion on the town centre road network. At Tuns Lane, Junction
6 of the M4 is also a significant factor in terms of queuing and congestion, although
measures to control or manage traffic on the Highways Agency’s roads lie with that
organisation.

Appendices
Appendix A — Map showing the intended Air Quality Management Areas.

Background Papers

2009 Air Quality Updating and Screening Assessment for Slough Borough Council.

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 154



ZEEBL0 V1 +19quInN 8ousor]
Ipunon ybnosog ubnojg <awey Auoyny

-sfuipaaooud o so uonnoasoud o) pes| few pue
WBukdoD umoiD sabupu uonanpoadas pasuoyneun GpAdod umoig

aayo Aauones sfisalep JoH jo
Jejjosiua 8l Jo usissiuuad aul unm dew Aamng aouBUPIO AUl Uo paseg

Aepunog ybnolog

Remjiey s
specH g ® v S

Kemuojopy

mcm._m:E.(Eo,m_H_
anuap umol ywov [ |

siajwo|y

e —

€

S’L

0

V XIAN3ddV

010z 19plO uswabeuey Aent Jiy

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 156



AGENDA ITEM 13

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24" January 2011

CONTACT OFFICER: Pat Kelleher, Assistant Director, Public Protection

(For all Enquiries) 01753 875211

WARD(S): All

PORTFOLIO: Community and Leisure — Councillor S Chaudhry
PART |

NON-KEY DECISION

PRIMARY AUTHORITY BUSINESS SUPPORT SCHEME

1.

Purpose of Report

To seek Member approval to withdraw the local authorities Home Authority
business advice service with effect from 1 April 2011 and to replace it with a self
funding Primary Authority business support scheme.

Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action

The Cabinet is requested to resolve that the Council withdraw from the local
authorities Home Authority business advice service in relation to trading
standards, food & safety and licensing matters with effect from 1 April 2011 and
that it be replaced with a self funding Primary Authority business support
scheme.

Community Strateqgy Priorities

Excellent transport links and close proximity to London and Heathrow have made
Slough the ideal UK location for many national and multi national companies. As
a consequence, the town is now home to many large and familiar brand names
and is the third most productive “city economy” outside London.

The proposed Primary Authority Scheme will enable the Council’s regulatory
services, namely trading standards, food & safety, and licensing to support local
businesses to prosper and will help create employment and prosperity in the
town.

Other Implications

(@) Financial
The proposed Primary Authority scheme will be fully self funding through direct

charging for business advice. The existing informal Home Authority scheme does
not include provision for charging.

Page 157



(b)  Risk Management

Recommendation Risk/Threat/Opportunity Mitigation

'The provision of a Primary | The proposed Primary Authority
Authority business support | Scheme will enable the Council’s

scheme to replace the regulatory services, namely trading
existing Home authority standards, food & safety and
scheme. licensing to support local

businesses to prosper and grow will
help create employment and
prosperity in the town

(b) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications

There are no Human Rights Act or other legal implications.

(c) Equalities Impact Assessment

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken.
(d) Workforce

The proposal will have positive workforce implications and enable the retention of
a self funding business support service at a time of financial constraint.

5. Supporting Information

5.1  The Primary Authority scheme was introduced by the Regulatory Enforcement
and Sanctions Act 2008 and enables a new type of partnership to be formed
between business and local authorities. This will, in turn, streamline and simplify
the regulatory compliance demands on local businesses in relation to trading
standards, food & safety and licensing matters.

5.2 ltis anticipated that the Primary Authority scheme will help reduce compliance
costs and increase the prosperity of businesses and communities while offering
protection for vulnerable consumers and traders facing unfair competition.

5.3  The role of a Primary Authority is two-fold, namely:-

1. to give Primary Authority advice to its partner business which, if
implemented by the business, gives the business assurance that it cannot
be easily challenged by other regulators

2. liaise with other regulators about its partner business, helping to provide
information to other regulators about the business’s systems and risks, so
that other regulators are well briefed and able to reach proportionate
enforcement decisions about that business, should this be necessary

5.4 Regardless of size, a businesses operating across Council boundaries can form

a Primary Authority partnership with a single local authority in relation to
regulatory compliance.

Page 158



5.5

5.6

The Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008 enables Primary
Authorities to charge partner businesses fees for the costs it has reasonably
incurred. In this regard it is proposed to introduce an hourly charge to partner
businesses receiving advice and support through the Primary Authority scheme.
The introduction of a fee paying scheme will ensure the sustainability of a
compliance advice service to local businesses.

Notwithstanding the above, our regulatory services will continue to provide basic
compliance advice to all businesses trading in the Borough and in particular the
small businesses and sole traders based in the town. There will be no charge
made for informal advice of this nature.

Conclusion

Establishing Primary Authority partnerships with eligible businesses will
demonstrate the Councils commitment to supporting locally based businesses
and key employers in the town. The scheme provides for simpler, more
successful local regulation based on a new relationship between businesses and
local authorities.

Background Papers

1’ - The Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008

2 - Primary Authority in Practice: Insight for Local Authorities

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



AGENDA ITEM 15

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Cabinet DATE: 24™ January 2011

CONTACT OFFICER: Catherine Meek, Deputy Borough Secretary

(For all enquiries) 01753 875011

WARD(S): All

PORTFOLIO: Leader, Finance and Strategy — Councillor Anderson
PART |

FOR INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN

1.

Purpose of Report

To seek Cabinet endorsement of the published Forward Plan.

Recommendation

The Cabinet is requested to resolve that the Forward Plan be approved.

Community Strategy Priorities

The Executive Forward plan sets out when key decisions are expected to
be taken and a short overview. The decisions taken will contribute to all of
the following emerging Community Strategy Priorities:

Celebrating Diversity, Enabling inclusion

Adding years to Life and Life to years

Being Safe, Feeling Safe

A Cleaner, Greener place to live, Work and Play
Prosperity for All

Other Implications

(a) Financial
There are no financial implications.

(b) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications

There are no Human Rights Act implications. The Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information)(England) Regulations
2000 require the executive to set out its programme of work in the coming
four months, as far as is known, in a forward plan. Regulation 12 requires
an annual statement to be published by the proper officer giving notice of
when forward plans will be published for the coming year, explaining what a
forward plan is and how it can be obtained from the local authority.

Page 161



5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Supporting Information

The Forward Plan, which is updated each month on a rolling basis, sets out:

e A short description of matters under consideration and when key
decisions are expected to be taken

e Who is responsible for taking the decisions and how they can be
contacted;

¢ What relevant reports and background papers are available; and

¢ How and when the decision maker intends to involve local stakeholders
in the decision making process.

The Forward Plan contains matters which the Leader considers will be the
subject of a key decision to be taken by the Cabinet, a Committee of the
Cabinet, officers, or under joint arrangements in the course of the discharge
of an executive function during the period covered by the Plan.

Key Decisions are defined in Article 14 of the Constitution, as an Executive
decision which is likely either:

e to result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of
savings which are, significant, having regard to the Council’s budget for
the service or function to which the decision relates; or

e to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working
in an area comprising two or more wards within the Borough.

There are provisions for exceptions to the requirement for a key decision to
be included in the Forward Plan and these provisions and necessary
actions are detailed in paragraphs 14 and 15 of Section 4.2 of the
Constitution.

To avoid duplication of paperwork the Member Panel on the Constitution
agreed that the Authority’s forward plan would include both key and non key
decisions — and as such the document would form a comprehensive
programme of work for the Cabinet. Key decisions are highlighted in bold.

Appendices Attached

‘A - Executive Forward Plan

Background Papers

1’ -Council Constitution

Page 162



uodey Bulioyuop/eouBWIOUSd — SIIjB)f

uoisioa Aayj-UoN — pjog-uoN

uoisioa Aay| — plog

[emauay pue spooylnoqybieN = ¥ @ N ‘Buiaqg|epn pue yjesH = M 9 H ‘seoedg uad( pue juswuoliaug
=% 3 ‘SIMS pue Ayunpoddp = S 3 O ‘UsIp|IyD pue uonedNnpI= J Y J ‘ainsie pue [einyn) = 73 O ‘AJjIgEIUNOJOY pue souewWIOLad = V % d ‘AB8jels pue soueuld = S — A8y oljojj10d

180528 (£5210) ;191
Buluueld

pue uodsuea
‘10)20.1q juelsissy

ajes
Buijeasy ‘ajes Buiag
Keid pue

YoM ‘9Al| 0} aoe|d

*s99130e.d JUswaIojud

pue sayoyid usjjaAea} pue AsdAb jo
uoisinoid ay3 uo uonisod Buluueld ayy
uo dn mojjoj} e Jauiqe) o} Juasaad o]

Abajens

J

*9UON ‘sydjey uel|io Jauaals) ‘Jaues|d y IV | ¥%N pue malnay J9||9Aea] pue AsdAg
#0058 (€5210) :I9L o
‘00528 (€5210) :I19L -
sjo9load Jole a
% uonesauabay S
— J1oji91j08 ‘ajAenp al
U3A]S ‘S921N0SY Keld pue pueT ul s}saidjuj/pue] Jo aseydind
JO 1030011 21693eN3S MIOAA ‘9Al| 0) 9oe|d Aosindwio) — Ajquiassy 9}IS a.jua)
‘sueAg alnp | Jaudalc) ‘Asues|n y IV | 4N | 1einjind pue buiurea 'ybno|g jJo JeaH
102G/8 (€5210) ‘I°L
LL0Z/LO/EL ‘00628 (£G210) :18L ‘Burioyuow
- uswdojanag aouew.lopad pue |eloueul) 1sa)e|
LL/0L0Z | @8nwwo) 0 Jusweanoldw| Jo 8y} UO uoneuwLIoul }BUIge) 0} Juasald o
Burionuo Aunniog J10}108lIq ‘upjied Jeboy
aoueul4 pue ‘§824N0SaY JO J0}2aIIQ 11/0102
pue adsuewlopad MBINIBAQ oIbajeng ‘suenag ainp 1\" v | ved buliojuo|\ adueul4 pue aduew.lolad
way| sjuawnoaoq 99)}lWwo) uonedionied ol|o}
MdN punouabyoeg Jaylo ® uolje}jnsuo) 1921J0 1oeJU0DH fAougd piep -}od way|

V XIAN3ddV

1102 ‘Adenuer yipz ‘Aepuo\ - 13INIGVD



uodey Bulioyuop/eouBWIOUSd — SIIjB)f

uoisioa Aayj-UoN — pjog-uoN

uoisioa Aay| — plog

[emauay pue spooylnoqybieN = ¥ @ N ‘Buiaqg|epn pue yjesH = M 9 H ‘seoedg uad( pue juswuoliaug
=% 3 ‘SIMS pue Ayunpoddp = S 3 O ‘UsIp|IyD pue uonedNnpI= J Y J ‘ainsie pue [einyn) = 73 O ‘AJjIgEIUNOJOY pue souewWIOLad = V % d ‘AB8jels pue soueuld = S — A8y oljojj10d

oLog aunr
0€ UO Slaquia|y

[sued |[emausy B

spooyJdnoqybiaN
pue JuswuoJIAUT
010¢/90/0¢ '8 8Insi9T
pue 010¢/60/7L ‘Ayunwwon
‘0L0Z/LL/SL Upm doysxiom
Jo sbunsaw abueyn sjewIn
wouy senuiw | 0L0zZ/LL/SL (reyodpnod "Juswnoop Arewwns Absjeng
pue suoday [oued | "@SnoyawWIJNSUOD 202S/8 (£S/10) 1oL abueyn ajewn|n s,piemio4 ybno|g
[oued Aunniog Aunniog -ybnojs/-any JuUsWUOJIAUTg JO Jedp |euly 8y} jouige) o} Juasald o
JUBWUOIIAUT [JUBWUOIIAUT :998) 0102 190 jing ¥ usals) ay) ‘Aeid pue
pue ainsie] | pue ainsie] | gz 01 dag ¢ wouy 0 J0j0au41q 2169)B4)S }IOM ‘BAl| 0} aoe|d juswindooqg
N Aunwwo) | ‘AJunwwon | uone}Nsuod alignd ‘Japly asiuaq Jauaalb ‘Jaues|o vy v 118D abuey) ajewi ) s,plemio] ybno|s
‘syebpng |eynde
pue anuaAdYy S,|1I9uno’) ay} poddns—
0} pue Jauuew dAI}03}}d }SOD .Eo_o_tom
ue ul A1aAljap a91a19s spoddns yoiymda
Jauuew e uj pasn pue uwhou_w:o%.
ale sjasse Auadoud s, j1ouno)
a9y} sainsua ysiym ssasoud e sasodoud
}] ‘1ouno?) ayj Buioey sabuajjeyd
40 JybBi| ayj} ul sieak om) )se|
9y} Ul palino20 aAey yaiym sabueyd
jeuelsqns ayj} sjodj4al 3| "€10¢
0} 800Z ue|d Juswabeuel }9ssy ay} ul
3no }as se ABajea}g Juswabeue|y Jossy
00£528 (€5210) 191 juasaud s |1ouno) ay) sajepdn siy |
‘202L1¥ (€5210) (191
$921N0S3Yy ‘leaocadde
Jo 1032311q 10} GLOZ O} 0L0Z ue|d Juawabeuey
o1bajel)g ‘sueny jassy Yeuq ay) sjuasaid poday ay
alnr yuawabeuepy
jossy jo pesH GLoc
M "9UON ‘uopuo [seydIn v iV | v3d 03 0L0Z ue|d Juswabeuely }9ssy Hyeiq
w9y sjuawnosoq 99)lwwio) uonedioed ol|o}
M3N punouByoeg 1Yo ® uoljeynsuo) 13214}0 JoejU0) Ayond pJiem -Jod wiay|

J

110z ‘Arenuer yipz ‘Aepuoy - 1INIGVD



uodey Bulioyuop/eouBWIOUSd — SIIjB)f

uoisioa Aayj-UoN — pjog-uoN

uoisioa Aay| — plog

[emauay pue spooylnogqybiaN = ¥ @ N ‘Bulsg|i@p pue yyesH = M % H ‘seoedg uadQ pue JuswuoliAug
=% 3 ‘SIMS pue Ayunpoddp = S 3 O ‘UsIp|IyD pue uonedNnpI= J Y J ‘ainsie pue [einyn) = 73 O ‘AJjIgEIUNOJOY pue souewWIOLad = V % d ‘AB8jels pue soueuld = S — A8y oljojj10d

110528 (€5210) 181 "ue|d pJemioH aAnoax3 paysiignd
uonnisuocd | 0L0¢/L0/0C Aleyaioeg }seje| 8y} Jouiqe 0} Jussaud o]
S,|IouNo) Aunniog ybnoiog Aindeg
ybnoliog ybno|g |  malnIBAQ ‘Yoo auLsyeD \¥ v 1 s%4 Ue|d pJemio] oAnoaxg
‘sjoued Aunnios pue
810528 (€5210) :IoL 83jIWWOY AUlNIOS PUE MBIAIBAQ 8L}
Aunniog 1921J0 WwoJy seoualajal 1auliqen o) Jussaid o]
pue MaIAIBAQ S92IAISS 2leJooWa(d
WwioJ) Saoualajey J01USS “HJe|) esalo| 1\%4 v | ved AURNIOS pUB MIIAIBAQ WOJ} S80UdISJoY
110¢/c0/1L0
[1IoUN0D PR
L10¢g/L0/SC 00£5/8 (£5210) ‘181 IpNY [enuuy 8y} Joulqe) o} Jussald o]
J|ne | espwwo) $92JN0SaY JO J0j0alIq
M Hpny |enuuy Hpny oiBsjens ‘suea3 ayne 1\ v | v8d JsneT lpny [enuuy
@
Ae|d pue M
YO ‘OAl| 0} aoe|d "suollnguod Jadojansap pue BuipuniQ
Jaudalo) ‘JIaues|) v welb Jo asn syl ybnouyy ybnoloq ms%
ajes ssouoe seale Aeid jo Juswdojanap jeuden
9685/8 (€5210) :loL | Buiead ‘ajes buleg 0%3 8y} uo ssalboud Jo Jouiged wiojul 0|
upny Aeid Alanljeq anneal) jo sieak 0} a)iI7 pue ‘993
N ABojens Aeid pesaH ‘UaqqiH uosly | 8Ji 031 sieahk Buippy v | 189 juswdojanaq ealy Aeld
612528 (€5210) ‘oL
‘812528 (€G210) 1OL
Aenp
[BJUBWIUOIIAUT JO
pesaH ‘YoSs|IA BDIUOIN ENEYg)
/002 Jaqueydes ‘AJjend pue sadInIBS umo] ay) buluiaouod podau Ajjenp Jiy
- 1odal [ElUSWUOIIAUT Aeid pue /002 @Y} uo 18uige) sajepdn uodad siy |
[oued Aunniog ‘1010811 MIOM ‘OAl| 0} @oge|d
N jing pue usalg ejsissy ‘Jayoiqg |9bIN Jaudalo) ‘JIaues|) vy [enjuan | 0%3 yoda1 ayepdn Ajjenp Jiy
way sjuawnooq 29lwwio) uonedionled oljo}
Ma3N punoub)oeg 13Y310 ® uoijeyNnsuon 132110 }oBJUO0D Kuoud piepn -Jod way|

1102 ‘Arenuer yipz ‘Aepuoly - 13NIGVD



uodey Bulioyuop/eouBWIOUSd — SIIjB)f

uoisioa Aayj-UoN — pjog-uoN

uoisioaq Aay| — plog

[emauay pue spooylnoqybieN = ¥ @ N ‘Buiaqg|apn pue yjesH = M 9 H ‘seoedg uad( pue juswuoliaug
=% 3 ‘SIMS pue Ayunpoddp = S 3 O ‘UBIp|IyD pue uonedNpI= J Y J ‘ainsie pue [einjnd = 73 O ‘AJjIgEIUNOJOY pue souewWIoLad = V % d ‘ABsjens pue soueuld = S — A8y oljojj10d

J

LLoc/io/Le
asyluwo) 110628 (€5210) (1oL "ue|d pJemlod aAnoax3 paysiignd
uonnyIsuon Aunniog Aiejaioeg 1s9je| ayj Jouige) o} juasald o]
S,|louNo) pue ybnoiog Aindeg
ybnoliog ybno|g MBIAIBAQ ‘Yoo auLsyeD \¥ v 1 sS%4 Ue|d pJemio] oANnoaxg
‘sjaued Aunniog pue
810528 (£5210) ‘181 99)IWWOD AunnIog pue MaIAIBAQ B}
Aunniog 190110 wloJ} seouslajel 1aulqen o) Jussald o]
pue MmaIAIBAQ S92IAI8S oljeloowa(
woJ] seoualaley Joluag ‘yie|D esala | 1\¥ v | ved AUNNIOS pUE MBIAIGAQ WOJ} Seoualojoy
"CL/1L 10T Ul XB} [IDUNO0D JO |9A9]
ay) bumes g j196pnq ayj Bulouejeq 10}
SJUBWISAAU| apew ale SUoIjepuaWOIIY "SIDIAIDS
fAuoyiny [eoso [1I9Uno9 jo abueu ||} 3y} JaAIIBP
uo asueping 0} paiinbai sasinosal ay} AJ1uapig
€002 sjebpng anuaAsy % |eyide) [enuugs
JOV JUBWILLIDAOS) ayL "pPalA3| 8q 0} Xe] [19UN0) JO JUNOWe;
|esoT] ayj saibe 0} ' Z1/11.0Z 10} s32bpngl
aoueuly juswabeuepy Ainseau] @ jeydem]
lepdeq Joy ‘anuanay 9y} }no }as asay] "salbajesys
9po9 |enuapnid juswabeuew jasse @ Ainsealy
S.v4dID | 1102/10/L2 ‘lejided ‘jersueuyy s j1ouno) ybnoliog
juswabeuepy | 99 IWLIWIOY 00£628 (€6210) :191 ybnojg 10} jeaoisdde s jauiqe) }99s o)
Ainseaa] Aunniog $921n0SaYy
uo aoljoe.d pue JO 10300.1q 21693eN3S SL/vi02g 9}
N | 403p0J S, V4dID M3IAIBAQ ‘sueag alne 1\ liv | S%®d CL/110C ue[d [eloueul{ WId ] wNnIpay
"IoUNOD 8y} SSoJoe Wody Bulojuow
‘00£528 (€6210) 1oL @ouewJopad pue [efoueuly Jseje|
1102/10/.2 a@oueUl{ JO J0joalIq 8y} uo Jauigqen 0} uonewolul Juasald o
Aunniog Ainda( ‘JeAheN [euuy
pue ‘§824N0SaY JO J0}2aIIQ ved 11/0102
"9UON MBIAIBAQ olBejens ‘sueag alne 1\¥ v | ‘s%4 BULIOIUOJ [EIOUBUI] pUe 90UBWIOHSd
way sjuawnooq 29lwwio) uonedionled oljo}
M3N punoub)oeg 13yY310 ® uoijeynsuon 132110 }oBJUOD fAuoud piep -Jod way|

1102 ‘Arenuqad Yy, ‘Aepuoly - 13NIGVD



uodey Bulioyuop/eouBWIOUSd — SIIjB)f

uoisioa Aayj-UoN — pjog-uoN

uoisioaq Aay| — plog

[emauay pue spooylnoqybieN = ¥ @ N ‘Buiaqg|apn pue yjesH = M 9 H ‘seoedg uad( pue juswuoliaug

=0 %3 ‘S|IMS pue \ﬁ_cstoaao =g % O ‘Uaip|iy) pue uoneonpg= O ® J ‘ainsi@ pue [eunjn) =19 D ,>H___QNHCDOOO< pue aduewlioled =V 9 d .>m®ﬁmbw pue adueuld = S94 — >¢v_ oljojji0d

J

1102/€0/€0
asyluwo) 110628 (€5210) (1oL ‘ue|d pJemlod aAnoax3 paysiignd
Aunniog Alejaloag 1s91e| 8y} JouIgqe) o} Juasald o]
pue ybnoiog Aindag
N "9UON MBINIBAQ ‘oo auLBye) v v | s%4 Ue|d pJemIo oAlIN0axXg
‘sjoued Aunnios pue
81068 (€5210) 1L 99IWWOD AunnIog pue MaIAIBAQ B}
19210 wioJ} S9oualajal Jauiqen o} Juasaid o
S92IAI8S 2ljeloowa
N "9UON Joluag “yie|D esala | 1\¥ v | v3d AUNNIOS pUB MBIAJOAQ WO} S90UdI9oy
"1102Z 114dY }S| 8y} woly dAnesado si )
sjuawnooq Jeyj} os pajdope aq 0} spaau ohohw._w:m
KBajeng d.179Ul "L 102 Y24eN JO pud ayy
Aieyusawolddng je saadxa yoiym g4l saoejdau mn_._.._m
‘Loday Loz ‘ybnojg uil podsuely anoidwi 0} 3noT
|ejuswuoiiAug Kienuepr Yy pue §)8s [19uno) ayj moy Joj uejd Jeak m_.P
‘(Arewwing 0102 19qWIBAON B N0 S)9s YoIym jusawnosop Aioynjejs
9A1IN29X3) Yig usamjaq e sl ¢d17 (€d17) ueld podsueu] [ed07]
ue|d Hodsues| Kemiapun 180 LY (€5210) :I9L pJ1yL elp ayj jauiqed o3 juasaid o)
|eoo7 paiyl yeiqg uolje}nsuod Jabeue
‘ueld podsueu | lapjoyayels ABajeng podsuea ) uejd podsuei]
N | 18207 pAiyL yeaqg pue aljqnd ‘ZzemeN qny v IV | ¥'8N | 18207 paiyL s,|1ouno) ybnoiog ybno|g
£02628(€5210) 1I9L
‘00£5/8 (€6210) ‘1L “[IoUNOY 8y} SS0IOE WOoly Buliojuow
L 102/S0/€0 wawdojansqg aouewlopad pue |eloueul) 1saje|
a9)lWwo) 9 juswaroidw Jo 8y} uo Jauiqe) 0} uonewloul Jussaid o]
Aunniog Jojoalq ‘uned Jaboy
pue ‘S824N0SaY JO J030aIIqg S%4 11/0102
N "9UON MBIAIBAQ olbajens ‘sueag alnr 1\¥ v | ‘v8d Buioday [eloueul4 pue 90UBWIoN9d
w9y sjuawnooq 99)lwwio) uonedioied ol|o}
MIN punouByoeg 1Yo ® uoljeynsuo) 1391430 JoejU0) Ayond piep -Jod w9y

110Z ‘Yd4el Yyl ‘AepuolN - 1INIGVD



uodey Bulioyuop/eouBWIOUSd — SIIjB)f

uoisioa Aayj-UoN — pjog-uoN

uoisioaq Aay| — plog

[emauay pue spooylnoqybieN = ¥ @ N ‘Buiaqg|apn pue yjesH = M 9 H ‘seoedg uad( pue juswuoliaug
=% 3 ‘SIMS pue Ayunpoddp = S 3 O ‘UBIp|IyD pue uonedNpI= J Y J ‘ainsie pue [einjnd = 73 O ‘AJjIgEIUNOJOY pue souewWIoLad = V % d ‘ABsjens pue soueuld = S — A8y oljojj10d

LL0c/eo/Le od
a|yluiwo) 110628 (€5210) (1oL ‘Ueld pJemIO 9AlNOSXT paysligndS
Aunniog Alejaloag }s8je| 8y} Jouigqe) o0} Jussaud 0] g
pue ybnoiog Aindag m
"QUON MBIAIBAQ ‘Yoo auLsyen \¥ v | s%4 ue|d pJemio] oAjNoax |
‘sjoued Aunnios pue
81068 (€5210) 1BL 99)IWWOY AunnIog pue MaIAIBAQ B}
Aunniog 19210 woJ} sedualajal Jouiqed o) Jussaid o]
pue MaIAIBAQ S92IAIBS deJoowWa(d
WwioJ) Saouslajey J01USS “YJe|D esalo| 1\%4 v | vsd AURNIOS pUB MIIAIBAQ WOJ} S80UdISJoY
£02528(€5210) 1I9L
‘00£5/8 (€6210) ‘1L “[IoUNOY 8y} SS0IOE WOoly Buliojuow
LLOZ/S0/LE juswdojarag aouewuopuad pue |eloueuly 1sale|
29)Iwwo) Q Juswanoidwy Jo 8y} Uo jauigqed 0} uonew.ojul Juasaid o
Aunniog Jojoaliq ‘upjied J1aboy
pue ‘S92JN0SaY JO J030aIIqg v8d 11/0102
"9UON MBIAIBAQ oibajeng ‘suea ainp 1\ v | ‘s%4 BULIOHUO[A |BIOUBUI{ PUE 8JUBWIOLSd
wiay| sjusawndo( a9)lwwo) uonedionied oljo}
M3N punoubyoeg BYylo ® uolje}INsuon 1321}0 JorJUOH fAuoud pIepn -Jod way|

1102 ‘Iady Y31 ‘AepuolN - 1INIGVD



AGENDA ITEM 16

uanlb saibojode ou ‘Juasqy = qy
Bunesw Jo ped Jojussald = .d

uanlb salbojody = dy
Bunesw sjoym Jojjussaid = d

d

d

1SINYSIPUIMS

d

d

llews

d

Jewled

»d

»d

ollelued

d

Qoo

d

|lemiieyg sy

a oo oo

d

a oo oo

(Ao I a B o B N s B a IR Y0

Ao oo

(Ao I i B o B s B a IR Y0

Aiypneyp s

d

d

d

uosiapuy

vo/LL

€0/vl

¢0/.0

10/¥e

cLicl

(17144

L1/60

0L/8l

60/0C

L0/C1

90/v1

JOTTIONNOD

S31vd ONILIIN

L1 -010Z 1INIEGVO

Qy023d ADNVANILLYV .SHIFININ

Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 170



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Meeting held on 13th December 2010
	3 Annual Audit Letter 2009/10
	Cabinet 24.01.11 Audit Letter Appendix

	4 Performance and Financial Reporting for 2010/11
	O&S 20.01.11 Performance and Financial Monitoring 2010-2011 App A, 20/01/2011 Overview & Scrutiny Committee
	20.01.11 Perf and fin Monitoring 2010-2011 App B, 20/01/2011 Overview & Scrutiny Committee
	O&S 20.01.11 Performance and Finnacial Monitoring Appx C, 20/01/2011 Overview & Scrutiny Committee
	P&F reporting Appendix D

	5 Medium Term Financial Plan 2011/12 to 2014/15
	6 Housing Capital Programme - Future Strategy and Direction
	Cabinet 24.01.11 - Housing Capital Appendix 1
	Cabinet 24.01.11 - Housing Capital Appendix 2

	8 Heart of Slough - Compulsory Purchase of Land and Interests in Land - Proposed New Learning and Cultural Centre at Day Centre and Prudential Yard, William Street, Slough
	Cabinet 24.01.11 HoS Appendix A
	Cabinet 24.01.11 HoS Appendix B
	Cabinet 24.01.11 HoS Appendix C
	Cabinet 24.01.11 HoS Plan 1
	Cabinet 24.01.11 HoS Plan 2
	Cabinet 24.01.11 HoS Plan 3

	10 Proposed Appropriation of Land at Moray Drive,  Slough, Berkshire
	Cabinet 24.01.11 Appropriation at Moray Drive Appendix A
	Cabinet 24.01.11 Appropriation at Moray Drive Appendix B
	Cabinet 24.01.11 Appropriation at Moray Drive Appendix C

	11 Play Area Development
	Cabinet 24.01.11 Play Areas Appendix A

	12 Air Quality Update
	Cabinet 24.01.11 Air Quality Update Appendix A

	13 Primary Authority Business Support Scheme
	15 Executive Forward Plan
	Cabinet 24.01.11 Forward Plan Appendix A

	16 Members' Attendance

